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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some information contained in or incorporated by reference into this report on Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements. These
statements include comments regarding San Cristobal development and construction plans, capital and other costs, funding and timing; the
timing of completion of San Cristobal construction, start-up and sale of concentrates; anticipated spending during 2007; increased funding
requirements, capital costs and working capital requirements for the San Cristobal project; contractual arrangements with Sumitomo, including
Sumitomo s obligations with respect to deferred payments and funding commitments; the likely increased volatility in future earnings due to
derivative positions; anticipated San Cristobal production, grades, recovery rates, mine life, operating costs and cash flows; evaluation and
expansion of our exploration portfolio; the effect of the May 2006 Bolivian Constitutional Court decree regarding the mining code; Bolivian
political and economic conditions; the markets for silver, zinc and lead; and the level of compensation for our executives during 2007.

The use of any of the words anticipate, continue, estimate, expect, may, will, project, should, believe and similar expressions are
identify uncertainties. We believe the expectations reflected in those forward-looking statements are reasonable. We cannot assure you,

however, that these expectations will prove to be correct. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these

forward-looking statements as a result of the risk factors set forth below and other factors set forth in, or incorporated by reference into, this

report:

e worldwide economic and political events affecting the supply of and demand for silver, zinc and lead;

e political and economic instability in Bolivia, including the communities located near the San Cristobal project and
other countries in which we conduct business;

o future actions of the Bolivian government with respect to nationalization of natural resources or other changes in
the mining or taxation policies of the Bolivian government;

e volatility in market prices for silver, zinc and lead;
e financial market conditions;

e uncertainties associated with developing a new mine, including potential cost overruns and the unreliability of
production and cost estimates in early stages of mine development;

e variations in ore grade and other characteristics affecting mining, crushing, milling and smelting operations and
mineral recoveries;

e geological, technical, permitting, mining and processing problems;
e failure to comply with our obligations under the San Cristobal project finance facility;

e failure to reach agreement with Sumitomo Corporation regarding future development or operation of San
Cristobal, or failure to comply with agreements with Sumitomo related to the San Cristobal project;

e uncertainties regarding future changes in applicable law or implementation of existing law, including Bolivian
laws related to tax, mining, environmental matters and exploration; and

e the factors discussed under Risk Factors.

Many of those factors are beyond our ability to control or predict. You should not unduly rely on these forward-looking statements. These
statements speak only as of the date of this report on Form 10-K. Except as required by law, we are not obligated to publicly release any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect future events or developments. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking
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statements attributable to Apex Silver and persons acting on our behalf are qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained in
this section and elsewhere in this report on Form 10-K.

CONVERSION TABLE

In this report, figures are presented in both United States standard and metric measurements. Conversion rates from United States standard to
metric and metric to United States standard measurement systems are provided in the table below.

U.S. Unit Metric Measure Metric Unit U.S. Measure

1 acre 0.4047 hectares 1 hectare 2.47 acres

1 foot 0.3048 meters 1 meter 3.28 feet

1 mile 1.609 kilometer 1 kilometer 0.62 miles

1 ounce (troy) 31.103 grams 1 gram 0.032 ounces (troy)
1 ton 0.907 tonne 1 tonne 1.102 tons
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PART I
ITEMS 1 AND 2: BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

Apex Silver Mines Limited, incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands in 1996, is engaged in the exploration and development of silver
and other mineral properties in Latin America. We have a large diversified portfolio of privately owned and controlled silver and other mineral
exploration properties. We have rights to or control over numerous claims or concessions located in or near the traditional silver producing
regions of Central and South America, primarily Bolivia, Peru, Argentina and Mexico. None of our properties is in production, and consequently
we have no income or cash flow from operations.

Our first development property, the 65% owned San Cristobal project located in southwestern Bolivia, is currently under construction and is
expected to have its first sale of production in the third quarter of 2007. San Cristobal s proven and probable reserves at December 31, 2006,
based on $8.51 per ounce silver, $0.86 per pound zinc and $0.47 per pound lead, total approximately 251 million tonnes of ore grading 55 grams
per tonne silver, 1.54% zinc and 0.53% lead, containing approximately 446 million ounces of silver, 8.53 billion pounds of zinc and 2.92 billion
pounds of lead. The prices used in estimating ore reserves represent the three-year average price for each of the metals as required pursuant to
Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) rules.

As used herein, Apex Silver, we and our refer collectively to Apex Silver Mines Limited, its predecessors, subsidiaries and affiliates or to one or
more of them as the context may require.

All currency references are to United States dollars, unless otherwise indicated.
AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We make available, free of charge through our Internet website at http://www.apexsilver.com, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.
Information on our website is not incorporated into this report and is not a part of this report.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Apex Silver is one of a limited number of silver companies with significant exposure to other metals. Our strategy is to capitalize on the San
Cristobal project and our sizeable portfolio of mineral exploration properties in order to achieve long-term profits and growth and to enhance
shareholder value.

Although our primary focus is on silver, we intend to produce other metals from deposits we may discover or acquire, including zinc, lead and
gold. We are managed by a team of seasoned mining professionals with significant experience in the construction, development and operation of
large-scale, open pit and underground, precious and base metals mining operations, as well as the identification and exploration of mineral

properties. From time to time, we also consider acquisitions of development or producing properties and business combination opportunities.

The principal elements of our business strategy are to:
e complete the successful start-up of the San Cristobal project;

e continue to explore and develop those properties which we believe are most likely to contain significant amounts
of silver and/or other metals and divest those properties that are not of continuing interest; and
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e identify and acquire additional mining and mineral properties that we believe contain significant amounts of silver
and/or other metals or have development potential.

SAN CRISTOBAL PROJECT

Our 65%-owned San Cristobal project is located in the San Cristobal mining district of the Potosi Department in southwestern Bolivia, a region
that historically has produced a significant portion of the world s silver supply. San Cristobal is located in the Bolivian Altiplano in the Andes
mountains, approximately 500 kilometers south of the city of La Paz. The project is accessible by an improved gravel road from the town of
Uyuni, approximately 100 kilometers to the northeast, and from the Chilean border town of Ollagiie, approximately 135 kilometers to the west.
A railroad begins at the Chilean port of Antofagasta, approximately 460 kilometers southwest of San Cristobal, and continues north to La Paz,
passing 50 kilometers to the north of San Cristobal. A spur is being built to connect the mine to the railroad for shipment of concentrates and
receipt of imported supplies. The map below shows the location of the San Cristobal project.
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History

Silver was discovered in what is now the San Cristobal district in the early seventeenth century, and mining has occurred intermittently in the
area ever since. Although no records from the Spanish colonial era mines have survived, and few records exist with respect to production in the
district during the nineteenth and twentieth centuries, the district is believed to have produced millions of ounces of silver.

Other than sporadic underground mining in the area of the planned San Cristobal pit, over the previous 350 years only one portion of the San
Cristobal project, the Toldos deposit, has been mined. The Toldos mine was operated by Empresa Minera Yana Mallcu S.A. as a block-caving
underground operation between 1985 and 1988, and as an open-pit mine and silver heap leach between 1989 and 1995. The Toldos mine was
shut down in 1995 and at present there is no significant mining or processing plant or equipment on the San Cristobal property remaining from
the Toldos mine.
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Development and Construction of the San Cristobal Project

Beginning in 1993, our founders established certain companies to acquire and develop silver exploration properties throughout the world. Our
predecessor companies acquired the concessions comprising the San Cristobal project from Bolivian companies and individuals in a series of
transactions from 1994 through 1997. In 1996, our predecessors began exploring the San Cristobal project and discovered a significant silver,
zinc and lead deposit with the potential to be developed as a large-scale, open-pit mine. Apex Silver Mines Limited was formed in March 1996
and acquired the San Cristobal project and other exploration properties in a series of transactions in 1996 and 1997. We completed the initial San
Cristobal feasibility study, conducted by Kvaerner Metals, Davy Nonferrous Division, in 1997. In December 1997, we completed our initial
public offering.

The San Cristobal property is comprised of certain mining concessions that are part of a large block of concessions covering approximately
500,000 acres, which we own or control. Under these mining concessions, we have the right to carry out exploration, mining, processing and
marketing of all mineral substances located within the concessions, and to use the water found on the concessions. The area includes concessions
covering approximately 88,000 acres, which are held mostly for transportation, power lines and other infrastructure. In order to maintain our
rights to these concessions, we must make annual mining patent payments to the Bolivian government totaling approximately $400,000. We are
not required to pay any royalties in respect of production from the San Cristobal property, although we are required to pay the complementary
mining tax imposed by Bolivian tax authorities. See  Republic of Bolivia.

In July 1999, we completed a detailed feasibility study on San Cristobal. The feasibility study was prepared by an independent engineering firm,
Kvaerner, E&C Metals Division. We subsequently selected Aker Kvaerner as the primary contractor at the project and they commenced detailed
engineering. In September 2000, we completed a metallurgical update to the feasibility study, which noted an improvement in the economics of

the San Cristobal project as a result of certain positive metallurgical and operational factors.

In April 2001, due primarily to weak silver prices, we suspended detailed engineering for San Cristobal and significantly curtailed expenditures
on the project. This interruption continued for a period of nearly three years. During this period, we advanced the project primarily by continuing
the evaluation and negotiation of infrastructure arrangements, including the selection of a port from which to ship the concentrates to smelters,
arrangements for the transportation of concentrates from San Cristobal to the port and the provision of power to San Cristobal.

In 2004, based on improving silver and zinc prices, we retained Aker Kvaerner to complete an updated estimate of San Cristobal capital and
operating costs and an estimated project schedule. They completed this update during the third quarter of 2004, and in November 2004, we
entered into an Engineering, Procurement and Construction Management ( EPCM ) Agreement with Aker Kvaerner. Under the EPCM
Agreement, Aker Kvaerner is responsible for completing detailed engineering, procuring the necessary equipment and managing and overseeing
the construction and installation of the facilities at the San Cristobal project.

The 2004 updated cost estimate prepared by Aker Kvaerner provided the basis for an updated Development Plan. We completed the
Development Plan, a detailed plan for the development and construction of the San Cristobal project, in November 2004.

We plan to mine the San Cristobal deposit from an open pit mine at the rate of approximately 40,000 tonnes of ore per day and process the ore
by conventional flotation methods. We will transport mined ore to the primary crusher by truck and then convey the crushed ore to a mill and
flotation plant with a design capacity of 40,000 tonnes per day. The ore will be ground in a semi-autogenous (SAG) and ball mill circuit, and
then processed by selective flotation to produce separate zinc-silver and lead-silver concentrates and lesser amounts of bulk lead-silver
concentrates. Filtered concentrates will be transported by rail to the port
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in Mejillones, Chile, and then by ocean vessel to smelters and refineries around the world. The project is expected to have a 17-year mine life,
based on current reserves.

We began construction on the San Cristobal project during the first quarter of 2005. By the end of 2006, the project was estimated to be over
90% completed and we anticipate the first sale of concentrates during the third quarter of 2007. All the major mechanical equipment, including
the flotation circuit, filtration plant and the 10-kilometer tailings line, including piping and booster pumping stations for the 15-kilometer water
supply system, has been installed. Major components, including the SAG and two ball mill motors, have been installed and are undergoing
testing procedures. Concentrator construction has shifted to systems completion and is centered on final installation of process piping and
electrical instrumentation equipment. Commissioning activities began in the fourth quarter of 2006 with the electrical substation, utilities, the
primary crusher and overland conveyor.

We have completed construction of a power line from the town of Punutuma to San Cristobal and we began drawing power from the national
power grid during November 2006. We are currently paying spot prices to acquire electricity from the national grid but are negotiating a
long-term power supply arrangement.

During 2006 we began mining ore at the San Cristobal project and as of December 31, 2006 we had stockpiled approximately 6.5 million tonnes
of work-in-process ore. Approximately 1.3 million tonnes of the total stockpiled ore are sulfide ore and the remainder is oxide ore. The sulfide
ore will be processed through the San Cristobal mill first with the oxide ore scheduled for processing later in the mine life.

A long-term agreement is in place for the transportation of the concentrates by rail to the port in Mejillones, Chile. Construction of the rail spur
from the mine site to the main rail line began during the third quarter of 2006. The railroad spur is proceeding on schedule with 95% of the 65
kilometers of roadbed completed and 14 kilometers or 20% of the total spur laid. We expect the rail spur to be completed during the second
quarter of 2007.

Concentrates will be unloaded from the rail cars at a facility at the port in Mejillones and then loaded into ships for export. Construction of the
Mejillones port facility is proceeding on schedule. We expect the port facilities to be completed during the second quarter of 2007.

Once the concentrates have arrived in Mejillones, they will be shipped by bulk carriers to smelters around the world. We have signed long-term
sales agreements with thirteen smelters in Europe, Australia, and Asia for the sale of a majority of the planned production of zinc and lead
concentrates for the first five years of production at San Cristobal. We anticipate selling the remainder of our production on a spot basis.

We have all necessary permits and approvals in hand in order to begin production at the project.
October 2006 Update to the Development Plan

During 2006, using new information obtained as a result of the advancement of construction and mining activities, we undertook a review of the
November 2004 San Cristobal development plan. The updated development plan, which was completed in October 2006, has caused us to
increase our estimate for the total amount of project funding and to increase our estimates of average cash operating costs. We have also
increased our estimates of zinc production and reduced our estimates of silver production for the first five years of operation.

These changes result primarily from record high commodity prices and the required stockpiling of increased amounts of oxide ore for future
processing. Record high commodities prices have had a direct impact on the cost of supplies such as fuel, tires, and reagents, contributing to
increased funding requirements for the project and higher estimated operating costs once production begins. Pre-stripping activity during 2006
provided additional information regarding the orebody, which indicates that the boundary between the surface silver-rich oxide ore that will be
stockpiled for future processing and the
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sulfide ore that will be the first to be processed through the San Cristobal mill is lower than previously believed. This has increased the amount
of oxide ore that must be stockpiled for future processing and has required that increased amounts of material be moved to access the sulfide ore.

Based on the updated development plan, in the first five years of operation San Cristobal is expected to produce annually approximately 16.9
million ounces of payable silver (at an average cash operating cost of approximately $1.97 per ounce), 225,000 tonnes of payable zinc (at an
average cash operating cost of approximately $0.51 per pound) and 82,000 tonnes of payable lead (lead is credited as a by-product to silver
production costs). The higher operating costs result primarily from the increases in the cost of supplies due to higher commodity prices and also
from increases in estimated manpower requirements over those anticipated in the original development plan. During its currently projected
17-year life, San Cristobal is expected to produce annually approximately 15.7 million ounces of payable silver, 166,000 tonnes of payable zinc
and 59,000 tonnes of payable lead.

The financial measure average cash operating cost will differ from measures of performance determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles ( GAAP ). Our estimated cash operating costs include estimated mining, milling and other mine related overhead costs. The
per-ounce of silver cost also includes off-site costs related to projected silver refining charges. The per-pound of zinc cost also includes charges
related to transportation of zinc-silver concentrates and their projected treatment and smelting charges. All cash operating costs exclude taxes,
depreciation, amortization and provisions for reclamation. The average cash operating cost per ounce of silver is equal to the pro-rata share of
estimated average operating costs for the period reduced by the estimated value of lead by-product credits for the period and divided by the
number of payable ounces . The lead by-product credits are net of charges related to transportation of lead-silver concentrates and their projected
treatment and smelting charges. The payable ounces are the estimated number of ounces of silver to be produced during the period reduced by
the ounces required to cover estimated refining, treatment and transportation charges for the period. Average cash operating cost per pound of

zinc is equal to the pro-rata share of estimated average operating costs for the period divided by the number of payable pounds . The payable
pounds are the estimated number of pounds of zinc to be produced during the period reduced by the number of pounds required to cover
estimated refining, treatment and transportation charges for the period. Estimated cash operating costs are allocated between silver and zinc

based on the revenue contribution from each metal using the same prices we use for the purpose of calculating our reserves under SEC

guidelines. We have included estimated average cash operating cost information to provide investors with information about the cash generating
capabilities of the San Cristobal project. This information should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance

that will be prepared in accordance with GAAP. These measures are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations

to be determined under GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

Our estimate for the total amount of project funding required from January 1, 2004 through the beginning of production in 2007 is
approximately $650 million, an increase of approximately $50 million, or 8%, over the original estimate developed in 2004. This amount
includes all estimated costs required to commence production at San Cristobal, including all engineering, procurement and construction costs, as
well as estimates for constant dollar escalation and contingencies. The estimate excludes $22 million advanced through issuance of Ordinary
Shares to the company constructing the power line, $6 million advanced to or escrowed for the company constructing the port facilities and
approximately $43 million of working capital. Advances to the power line and port facility providers are expected to be recouped through credits
applied against payments for the contracted services. Of the $650 million budgeted amount, we have spent $518 million through the end of 2006
and expect to spend the remaining amounts through the start up of operations and the resulting first sale of concentrates expected during the third
quarter of 2007.

11
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Transaction with Sumitomo Corporation

On September 25, 2006, we sold to Sumitomo Corporation ( Sumitomo ) a 35% interest in the San Cristobal project. Specifically, Sumitomo
purchased a 35% interest in Minera San Cristobal S.A. ( MSC ), our Bolivian subsidiary that owns and operates the San Cristobal project; Apex
Silver Finance Ltd., our Cayman Islands subsidiary that holds the metals hedge positions; and Apex Metals Marketing GmbH, our Swiss
subsidiary that markets the project concentrates to smelters around the world. We also sold to Sumitomo a 35% interest in certain other
project-related assets not held by these three subsidiaries.

We continue to own 65% of each of these three subsidiaries and, subject to the provisions of the Shareholders Agreement described below, we
have operational control of the San Cristobal project. The MSC Shareholders Agreement entered into in connection with the sale to Sumitomo
provides that the majority shareholder (currently Apex Silver) will have the right to name a majority of the directors on the MSC board of
directors and to appoint the Chairman of the board. As long as the minority shareholder holds more than 25% of the outstanding stock of MSC,
the minority shareholder will have at least one representative on the board of directors and certain significant matters must be approved by that
minority shareholder s director. These significant matters include the approval of annual programs and budgets, increases of 15% or more over
budgeted capital expenditures or operating expenses (with customary exceptions for emergencies and compliance), merger or liquidation,
permanent cessation or suspension of mining for more than 180 days at the project, or abandonment of the project. If a deadlock with respect to
the adoption or amendment in excess of 15% of a program and budget continues for 180 days, the majority shareholder s directors are then
entitled to approve the program and budget.

The MSC Shareholders Agreement provides that we and Sumitomo will contribute our proportionate share of funding required for MSC to
achieve commercial operations. If either shareholder fails to provide its pro rata share of funding, the shareholder s interest in MSC will be
diluted on a two for one basis. Following the commencement of commercial operations, we and Sumitomo may choose to provide our
proportionate share of additional funding, if any, or be diluted on a one for one basis. If either shareholder s interest in MSC is reduced, the
corresponding interest in the other two subsidiaries would be similarly adjusted so that the parties ownership interests in the three companies
would remain identical.

If Sumitomo were to dilute below 25% ownership of MSC solely as a result of its failure to provide future funding, and were to refuse to
approve a program and budget proposed by Apex Silver for more than 180 days, Sumitomo could elect to sell to us all (but not less than all) of
its remaining interest in MSC for $224 million, reduced pro rata by the percentage of year-end 2005 reserves already produced from the San
Cristobal project.

San Cristobal Project Finance Facility

In December 2005, we entered into a $225 million project finance facility to be used for the completion of construction of the San Cristobal
project. We amended the terms of the project finance facility in September 2006 in connection with the Sumitomo transaction. As of March 27,
2007, we had borrowed $200 million under the facility.

Under the terms of the project finance facility, all of the assets of MSC are secured in favor of the lenders. In addition, we and Sumitomo have
pledged all of the equity interests in our jointly owned subsidiaries: MSC, Apex Silver Finance and Apex Metals Marketing. We and Sumitomo
have each agreed to fund cost overruns at the San Cristobal project and have guaranteed the satisfaction of the metals derivative positions held
by Apex Silver Finance. In each case, our obligation is limited to our pro rata ownership interest in MSC and the obligation will terminate upon
completion of the project, as defined in the project finance facility, which is expected to be no later than December 2008. In connection with
certain amendments to the project finance facility, we and Sumitomo intend to provide a limited post-completion guarantee of the satisfaction of
the metals derivative positions. See Management s Discussion
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and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources San Cristobal Project Finance Facility .

As a result of the restatement of our financial statements relating to the valuation of our open derivative positions we breached certain
representations and covenants under the project finance facility regarding the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
We also had certain other technical covenant violations under the terms of the facility. In March 2007, we received waivers and confirmations
from our lenders for these potential covenant violations and any related events of default. See Managements Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources for further discussion of the covenant violations and related
waivers.

Reserves

We have completed 549 reverse circulation drill holes and 85 diamond case drill holes, for a total of approximately 150,000 meters at San
Cristobal. The drill holes were generally spaced at intervals of approximately 75 meters. This drilling indicates that the mineralization is present
over an area of 1,500 meters by 1,500 meters. The ore deposit defined by this drilling is open at depth and laterally.

The quality assurance/quality control program used at San Cristobal included regular insertion and analysis of blanks and standards to monitor
laboratory performance. Blanks are used to check for contamination and standards are used to check for grade-dependent biases. Duplicate
samples were routinely submitted to different laboratories for assay, with the results of these check assays analyzed in total and separately by
deposit, drill type and grade. We conducted confirmation drilling, including our own twinning of reverse circulation holes with diamond core
holes and independent confirmation drilling by an independent firm.

Using additional data collected during mining activities in 2005 and 2006, proven and probable reserves were calculated in February 2007 using
an $8.37 net smelter return per tonne cutoff value for oxides, a $7.26 net smelter return per tonne cutoff value for sulfides and market price

assumptions of $8.51 per ounce silver, $0.86 per pound zinc and $0.47 per pound lead. These prices represent the
three-year average prices for each of the metals through December 2006 as per guidelines established by the SEC. The
following table shows our proven and probable reserves of silver, zinc, and lead for sulfide ore and oxide ore at the
San Cristobal project. Our reserves were calculated by Mine Reserves Associates, Inc., using a fully designed pit
model that incorporates design slopes, practical mining shapes and access ramps. Ore blocks within the deposit model
are designated as proven if they are within 40 meters (40 percent of the average variogram range) and at least three
drill holes were used to evaluate the block. Ore blocks are designated as probable if they are between 40 meters and
the average variogram range of 100 meters and at least two drill holes were used to evaluate the block. Additionally,
blocks within 40 meters but evaluated by a single drill hole were also classified as probable. Proven and probable
classifications are only determined after economic criteria are applied to define the ore.

Proven and Probable Reserves

Average Grade Contained Metals(1)

Tonnes Silver Zinc Lead Silver Zinc Lead

of ore Grade Grade Grade Ounces Tonnes Tonnes

(000s) (g/tonne) (%) (%) (000s) (000s) (000s)
Sulfide Ore
Proven 188,750 51.6 1.67 0.53 313,000 3,159 997
Probable 40,244 46.5 1.73 0.50 60,000 696 201
Oxide Ore
Proven 19,889 105.8 0.07 0.58 68,000 14 116
Probable 1,890 84.5 0.07 0.52 5,000 1 10
Total 250,773 55.3 1.54 0.53 446,000 3,870 1,324
10
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(1) Amounts are shown as contained metals in ore and therefore do not reflect losses in the recovery process.
Sulfide ore reserves are expected to have an approximate average recovery of 78% for silver, 93% for zinc and 86%
for lead. Oxide ore reserves are expected to have an average recovery of 60% for silver and 50% for lead. Based on
the assumptions contained in the 2006 reserve report prepared by Mine Reserves Associates, Inc., the estimated strip
ratio of the mine is 2.29:1.

Republic of Bolivia

Bolivia is situated in central South America and is bordered by Peru, Brazil, Paraguay, Argentina and Chile. It has an area of approximately 1.1
million square kilometers and a population of approximately 9 million people. Bolivia s official and most widely spoken language is Spanish, but
a large sector of the population is either native Aymara or Quechua Indian.

In December 2005, Evo Morales, the leader of the Movement to Socialism party, was elected president. At various times during 2006, President
Morales and others in his administration have made public statements regarding their desire to exert greater state control over resource
production in Bolivia, including mining. In May 2006, President Morales required companies operating in the hydrocarbon industry to negotiate
new contracts with the government, resulting in some cases in a significantly higher effective tax rate. To date, there have been no formal
proposals to nationalize the mining industry. The government may, however, alter its current policies with respect to the mining industry.

Bolivian law provides for unrestricted repatriation of capital, freedom to import goods and services and equality under the law between foreign
and domestic companies.

Mining companies in Bolivia are subject to a 25% income tax, with taxable income determined in accordance with Bolivian generally accepted
accounting principles. Mining companies are also subject to a complementary mining tax (CMT), which is creditable against the income tax.
The amount of the CMT is equal to the value of the concentrate multiplied by a tax rate, which ranges from 1% to 5% for zinc and lead
concentrates. The value of the concentrate is approximately equal to the amount of contained metals in the concentrate multiplied by a
commodity price that is published by the Bolivian government. Historically, these prices have been approximately equal to market prices. The
Bolivian government is currently considering various alternatives for changes to the Mining Code and mining taxation, which could include
changes in CMT rates. These changes could ultimately result in an increase in the taxation of mining.

We are also subject to other taxes in Bolivia, including dividend and interest withholding tax, import duties, and value-added tax (VAT). Most
remittances abroad of Bolivian source income, including interest income, are subject to a 12.5% withholding tax. In addition, we are required to
pay import duties of 5% on capital goods and 10% on other imports. As an exporter, however, we are eligible for a refund of import duties up to
an amount equal to 5% of the net value of our exports. We are also subject to VAT of 13%. We are eligible for a refund of VAT paid on imports
and raw materials included in the cost of exported goods, but the amount recoverable is limited to 13% of the net value of our exports. For the
purpose of determining the cap on refunds for both import duties and VAT, the net value of our exports is equal to the gross value of our exports
reduced by certain statutory deductions. As provided by Bolivian law, we are importing certain plant components and equipment without
payment of VAT or import duties.

All mineral deposits in Bolivia are the property of the State. Mining concessions awarded by the State grant the holder, subject to certain
payments, the exclusive right to carry out prospecting, exploration, exploitation, concentration, smelting, refining and marketing activities with
respect to all mineral substances located within a given concession. Under Bolivian law, local and foreign companies are treated equally in
obtaining mineral concessions. With respect to nationalized and other concessions still held by State-owned Comibol, private investors may
enter into joint venture, lease or services agreements with
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Comibol. Holders of mining concessions are obliged to pay an annual mining patent, the fees for which are progressive and are based on the
number of years of existence of the concession. Mining concessions are liable to forfeiture when the corresponding annual patent is not paid.
Concessions established before the enactment of the New Mining Code in 1997, which comprise an area of more than 1,000 mining claims, pay
the equivalent of $1.00 per claim per year for the first five years of the existence of the concession; thereafter, the patent increases to the
equivalent of $2.00 per claim per year. Concessions established under the New Mining Code pay the following: for the first five years of the
existence of a concession, the owner is required to pay the equivalent of $25.00 per cuadricula (equivalent to 25 hectares) per year; thereafter the
patent increases to the equivalent of $50.00 per cuadricula per year. Most of our material Bolivian concessions were established prior to
enactment of the New Mining Code.

In May 2006, the Constitutional Court of Bolivia issued a ruling declaring certain articles of the 1997 Mining Code unconstitutional. The Court s
ruling is not effective until May 2008 and the Court urged the Bolivian Congress to enact legislation during that time which may supersede the
ruling. Although the Court s ruling is not expected to impact our ability to operate the San Cristobal project, the ruling may limit the
transferability of our mining concessions and restrict our ability to mortgage our San Cristobal mining concessions as collateral to the lenders
providing financing for the project.

Bolivia has a national environmental policy to protect the environment and to promote sustainable development, the preservation of biological
diversity and environmental education. Under Bolivia s environmental regulations, environmental impact assessments are required, and
concession holders must maintain waterways running through their concessions in their unspoiled state, employ exploration and development
techniques that minimize environmental damage and minimize damage to surface rights, to neighboring concessions and to the environment.

Bolivia has experienced high levels of unemployment and underemployment. Bolivia has a large pool of unskilled and, in the mining sector,
semi-skilled labor, but a relative shortage of skilled labor and managerial expertise overall. A large portion of the labor force that is engaged in
wage employment is also unionized, although union participation is not mandatory and collective bargaining agreements are very rare, as
negotiations are generally carried out between an individual company s union and management.

Geology

The geology of the San Cristobal deposit dates to the Miocene age and is comprised of volcanoclastics (tuff and tuffites), sedimentary and
igneous (intrusives) rocks within a circular volcanic crater approximately four kilometers in diameter. Volcanoclastic and sedimentary units
formed during periods of intense volcanism and subsequent erosion, occupying the center portion of the crater, and were intruded by repeated
intrusive events.

The San Cristobal ore body has formed as a result of syngenetic and epigenetic mineralizing events. Approximately half of the current known
mineralization lies within the volcanoclastic units as disseminated stratabound mineralization, which is of a higher grade than mineralization in
the intrusives. Mineralization within the intrusives is largely restricted to breccias on the outer limits and vein to disseminated hosted towards the
center of the intrusive bodies. The dominant sulfide minerals hosting the zinc, lead and silver are sphalerite, galena and tetrahedrite,
respectively. Surface weathering has affected the upper part of the ore body (approximately forty-five to seventy meters), creating a small layer
of oxide ore which covers the larger sulfide ore body beneath.

The San Cristobal ore body is comprised of two major mineralized zones (Jayula and Tesorera), which outcrop at the surface but join at depth to
form the same contiguous ore body. Initially, the two mineralized zones of Jayula and Tesorera were thought to be two separate ore bodies.
Subsequent drilling and improvements to the geological understanding of the deposit confirmed that Tesorera and Jayula are part of the same
massive ore body, which is currently open in nearly all directions and at depth.
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EXPLORATION

In addition to San Cristobal, we have a portfolio of over 50 property groups in Mexico, Peru, Argentina and Bolivia that we believe contain
potential for silver, base metals and gold mineralization or have other significant exploration potential. These mineral properties typically consist
of:

e concessions which we have acquired, or applied for directly;
e concessions which we have leased, typically with an option to purchase; and

e concessions which we have agreed to explore and develop and, if feasible, bring into production, in concert with
joint venture partners.

We generally seek to structure our acquisitions of mineral rights so that individual properties can be optioned for exploration and subsequently
acquired at reasonable cost if justified by exploration results. Properties that we determine do not warrant further exploration or development
expenditures are divested, typically without further financial obligation to us.

We have increased the rate of evaluation of many of our properties to the point that decisions can be made to either advance them or divest them.
Our board of directors has approved an increase in our exploration budget from $8.5 million in 2006 to $14.5 million for 2007. Our focus is to
drill test our more promising projects to identify which of them may be advanced to a development stage. At the end of 2006, five prospects
were being drilled and several more were undergoing preparatory work for drilling in early 2007. Our more promising projects are located in
Argentina, Mexico and Peru, and early results indicate that at least one project in each country will show sufficient promise to warrant a more
advanced stage of exploration. This would involve more drilling and preliminary metallurgical, engineering and environmental work.

Although we believe that our exploration properties may contain significant silver and/or other mineralization, our analysis of most of these
properties is at a preliminary stage and some or all of the properties may not advance to a development stage. Due to the preliminary stage of
activities at each of our exploration properties, we do not consider any of our exploration properties to be individually material. The activities
performed to date at these properties often have involved the analysis of data from previous exploration efforts by others, supplemented by our
own exploration programs.

In connection with the sale of 35% of the San Cristobal project to Sumitomo, we and Sumitomo entered into a two-year Option Agreement
pursuant to which Sumitomo may acquire a 20 to 35 percent interest in certain of our active exploration properties at historical cost, and in each
of certain inactive exploration properties at historical cost, once we have spent $200,000 in exploration costs. Sumitomo must exercise its option
on each active property within 60 days of receiving complete information regarding the property and on each inactive property within 60 days of
our spending $200,000 on the property. As of March 27, 2007, Sumitomo had not exercised its option to acquire any exploration properties.

METALS MARKET OVERVIEW
Silver Market

Silver has traditionally served as a medium of exchange, much like gold. Silver s strength, malleability, ductility, thermal and electrical
conductivity, sensitivity to light and ability to endure extreme changes in temperature combine to make silver a widely used industrial metal.
While silver continues to be used as a form of investment and a financial asset, the principal uses of silver are industrial, primarily in electrical
and electronic components, photography, jewelry, silverware, batteries, computer chips, electrical contacts, and high technology printing. Silver s
anti-bacterial properties also make it valuable for use in medicine and in water purification. Additionally, new uses of silver are being developed
in connection with the use of superconductive wire.
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Most silver production is obtained from mining operations in which silver is not the principal or primary product. Approximately 80% of mined
silver is produced as a by-product of mining lead, zinc, gold or copper deposits. The CPM Group, a precious metal and commodities consultant,
estimates that total silver supply from mine production, recycling, estimated dishoarding and government stockpile sales has been insufficient to
meet industrial demand from 1990 through at least 2005.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the New York Commodities Exchange ( COMEX ) nearby active silver futures contract s
high and low price of silver in U.S. dollars per troy ounce. On March 27, 2007 the closing price of silver was $13.27 per troy ounce.

Silver
lYear | | High Low
2002 5.13 4.22
2003 5.99 4.35
2004 8.29 5.49
2005 0.01 6.41
2006 14.83 8.74

Zinc and Lead Markets

Due to the corrosion resisting property of zinc, zinc is used primarily as the coating in galvanized steel. Galvanized steel is widely used in
construction of infrastructure, housing and office buildings. In the automotive industry, zinc is used for galvanizing and die-casting, and in the
vulcanization of tires. Smaller quantities of various forms of zinc are used in the chemical and pharmaceutical industries, including fertilizers,
food supplements and cosmetics, and in specialty electronic applications such as satellite receivers.

The primary use of lead is in motor vehicle batteries, but it is also used in cable sheathing, shot for ammunition and alloying. Lead in chemical
form is used in alloys, glass and plastics. Lead is widely recycled, with secondary production accounting in recent years for approximately half
of total supply.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the London Metals Exchange s high and low settlement prices of zinc and lead in U.S.
dollars per pound. On March 27, 2007 the closing prices of zinc and lead were $1.45 and $0.84 per pound, respectively.

Zinc Lead
Year High Low High Low
2002 0.42 0.33 0.24 0.18
2003 0.46 0.34 0.34 0.19
2004 0.56 0.42 0.45 0.29
2005 0.87 0.54 0.51 0.37
2006 2.05 0.87 0.80 0.43
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF APEX

Apex Silver has four executive officers, a President and Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, a
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and a Vice President and Controller. Set forth below is a list of the executive officers and
other personnel of Apex Silver.

Name | | Age [Position

Ueffrey G. Clevenger 57 President and Chief Executive Officer

[Alan R. Edwards 49 [Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Gerald J. Malys 62 Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Robert P. Vogels 49 [Vice President, Controller

Uerry W. Danni 54 Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs

[Terry L. Owen 58 Senior Vice President, Project Development

Robert B. Blakestad 60 [Vice President, Exploration and Chief Geologist

IDonald R. Ratcliff 51 Vice President, Marketing and Treasurer

Jeffrey G. Clevenger. Mr. Clevenger was elected to serve as a director and appointed as our President and Chief
Executive Officer in October 2004. Mr. Clevenger worked as an independent consultant from 1999, when Cyprus
Amax Minerals Company, his previous employer, was sold, until he joined us in 2004. Mr. Clevenger served as
Senior Vice President and Executive Vice President of Cyprus Amax Minerals Company from 1993 to 1998 and 1998
to 1999, respectively, and as President of Cyprus Climax Metals Company and its predecessor, Cyprus Copper
Company, a large integrated producer of copper and molybdenum with operations in North and South America, from
1993 to 1999. He was Senior Vice President of Cyprus Copper Company from August 1992 to January 1993. From
1973 to 1992, Mr. Clevenger held various technical, management and executive positions at Phelps Dodge
Corporation, including President and General Manager of Phelps Dodge Morenci, Inc. Mr. Clevenger holds a B.S. in
Mining Engineering with Honors from the New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology and is a graduate of the
Advanced International Senior Management Program of Harvard University. He is a Member of the American
Institute of Mining, Metallurgical and Petroleum Engineers and the Metallurgical Society of America.

Alan R. Edwards. Mr. Edwards was appointed to the position of Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
in June 2004. From July 2003 until he joined us, Mr. Edwards served first as Vice President, Technical Services and
Project Development and then as Vice President Operations of Kinross Gold Corporation. From March 2002 through
June 2003, he pursued independent business interests. From April 2000 through February 2002, Mr. Edwards served
first as Vice President, Surface Mines, and then as Senior Vice President, Operations of P.T. Freeport Indonesia.

Mr. Edwards was Vice President and General Manager and then President and General Manager of the Cyprus Amax
Minerals Company subsidiary which owned and operated the Cerro Verde open pit copper mine in Peru from 1998
through 2000, and served from 1996 until 1998 as Vice President and General Manager of the Cyprus subsidiary
which owned and operated the Sierrita copper mine in Arizona. Prior to joining Cyprus in 1996, Mr. Edwards spent 13
years in various positions at Phelps Dodge Corporation, including General Manager Operations at Chino Mines
Company and Mine Superintendent at Phelps Dodge Morenci, Inc. He holds a B.S. in Mining Engineering and a MBA
from the University of Arizona.

Gerald J. Malys. Mr. Malys was appointed as our Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer in

June 2006. Mr. Malys was a private investor from 1999, when his previous employer, Cyprus Amax Minerals
Company, was sold, until he joined us in 2006. Mr. Malys was employed by Cyprus Amax Minerals Company from
1985 to 1999, first as Vice President, Tax and Information Services, and
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Corporate Controller from 1985 to 1989, and then as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from 1989 to 1999. From 1972 to 1985,
he held various positions with Gulf Oil Company, including Vice President of Gulf Exploration and Production Company, Assistant Corporate
Controller, Senior Manager Corporate Accounting, and Director of SEC Reporting. Mr. Malys served as a director of Amax Gold Inc. from 1993
to 1998 and of Kinross Gold Corporation from 1998 to 1999. Mr. Malys has a bachelor of science in accounting from Gannon University and is
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Robert P. Vogels. MTr. Vogels has served as controller of Apex Silver since January 2005 and was named Vice President
in January 2006. Prior to joining Apex Silver, Mr. Vogels served as corporate controller for Meridian Gold Company
from January 2004 until December 2004. He served as the controller of INCO Limited s Goro project in New
Caledonia from October 2002 to January 2004. Prior to joining INCO, Mr. Vogels worked for Cyprus Minerals
Company, which was acquired in 1999 by Phelps Dodge Corp., from 1985 through October 2002. During that time, he
served in several capacities, including as the controller for its El Abra copper mine in Chile from 1997 until

March 2002. Mr. Vogels began his career in public accounting where he earned his CPA certification. He holds a
B.Sc. in accounting and an MBA degree from Colorado State University.

Jerry W. Danni. Mr. Danni joined Apex Silver in February 2005 as the Senior Vice President, Environment, Health and
Safety and in March 2005 was appointed Senior Vice President Corporate Affairs. Prior to joining Apex Silver,

Mr. Danni served as Senior Vice President, Environment Health and Safety of Kinross Gold Corporation from
January 2003 until February 2005 and as Vice President, Environmental Affairs from July 2000 until January 2003.
While at Kinross he was instrumental in the design and implementation of integrated environmental, and health and
safety (EHS) systems and processes for Kinross operations worldwide, and was also responsible for management of
the Reclamation Operations Business Unit. From 1994 to July 2000, Mr. Danni was the Vice President of
Environmental Affairs for Cyprus Climax Metals Company. Prior to working for Cyprus, Mr. Danni held senior
environmental, and health and safety management positions with Lac Minerals Ltd. and Homestake Mining Company.
Mr. Danni holds a B.S. in Chemistry from Western State College, and is a member of the Society of Mining Engineers
and a past director of the National Mining Association.

Terry L. Owen. In June 2005, Mr. Owen was appointed Senior Vice President, Project Development of Apex Silver.
Prior to joining Apex Silver, Mr. Owen was an independent consultant from December 2003 through May 2005. From
February 2001 through September 2003, he served as Vice President Capital Projects for INCO Limited. Prior to that
he was employed by Cyprus Amax Minerals Company from 1995 to 2000, in various positions, including Vice
President Project Development. He also held various positions with Freeport McMoran Inc. from 1980 to 1995,
beginning as Assistant General Superintendent of one of Freeport s mines and rising to the position of Vice President
and Assistant General Manager. Mr. Owen holds a B.Sc. in Mining Engineering from the University of Idaho and is a
graduate of the Advanced Senior Management Program of Harvard University.

Robert B. Blakestad. In November 2004, Mr. Blakestad was appointed as Vice President, Exploration of Apex Silver.
Prior to joining Apex Silver, Mr. Blakestad served as Chief Executive Officer of International Taurus Resources from
May 1998 until November 2004. He was Vice President Exploration for Amax Gold from 1996 to 1998 and
Exploration Manager for Cyprus Amax Minerals Company from 1990 until 1996. He held various positions at
Homestake Mining Company from 1979 until 1990, beginning as a Senior Geologist and rising to the position of
Manager, U.S. Reconnaissance. Mr. Blakestad holds a B.S. in Mining Engineering from the New Mexico Institute of
Mining and Technology and an M.S. in Geology from the University of Colorado. He is a member of the American
Institute of Mining, Metallurgical and Petroleum Engineers and of the Society of Economic Geologists. He holds
professional certifications from the State of Washington and the Province of Nova Scotia.
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Donald R. Ratcliff. Mr. Ratcliff was appointed to the position of Vice President, Risk Management and Treasurer of
Apex Silver in November 2006. He was named Vice President, Marketing and Treasurer in January 2007. Prior to
joining Apex Silver, Mr. Ratcliff was Vice President of Phelps Dodge Sales Company since 1999. From 1986 to 1999,
Mr. Ratcliff held various positions with the Cyprus Amax Minerals Company including Financial Analyst,
Coordinator Coal Contracts, Senior Financial Analyst, Coordinator Metals Market Strategy, Assistant Manager Raw
Materials, and Manager Commercial. He began his career at Tenneco Minerals Company where he worked from 1980
through 1986 as a planning analyst and as a planning and project analyst. Mr. Ratcliff holds a B.A. in Economics and
Political Science from the University of Denver and an M.S. in Mineral Economics from the Colorado School of
Mines. He is a Member of the Mineral Economics and Management Society and the American Institute of Mining,
Metallurgical and Petroleum Engineers.

As of March 27, 2007, we had approximately 830 full-time employees.

Our insider trading policy permits our officers, directors and other insiders to enter into trading plans or arrangements for systematic trading in
our securities under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Certain of our officers previously have established such plans, and we
anticipate that some or all of our other officers, directors or insiders may establish trading plans at some date in the future.

ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS

Investors in Apex Silver should consider carefully, in addition to the other information contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this
report, the following risk factors.

We have no history of production.

We have no history of producing silver or other metals. The development of our San Cristobal project requires the completion of construction,
start-up and operation of the mine, processing plants and related infrastructure. As a result, we are subject to all of the risks associated with
establishing new mining operations and business enterprises. There can be no assurance that we will successfully establish mining operations or
profitably produce silver or other metals at any of our properties.

We have a history of losses and may not be able to achieve profitability in the future.

As an exploration and development company that has no production history, we have incurred losses since our inception. As of December 31,
2006, we had an accumulated deficit of $773 million and a shareholder equity deficit of $103 million, due largely to the mark-to-market liability
of our metals derivative positions. Our ability to address and sustain profitability at the San Cristobal project will depend on the prices of silver,
zinc and lead, and on our ability to control costs. There can be no assurance that we will achieve or sustain profitability in the future.

The calculation of our reserves and other mineralization is subject to significant estimates.

Unless otherwise indicated, reserves and other mineralization figures presented in our filings with the SEC, press releases and other public
statements that may be made from time to time are based on estimates of contained silver and other metals made by independent geologists or
our own personnel. These estimates are imprecise and depend on geological interpretation and statistical inferences drawn from drilling and
sampling that may prove to be unreliable. There can be no assurance that:

e these estimates will be accurate;
e reserves and other mineralization figures will be accurate; or

e reserves or mineralization could be mined and processed profitably.
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Reserves and other mineralization estimates may require adjustments or downward revisions based on actual production experience. For
instance, the information we have gathered during pre-stripping activity at San Cristobal during 2006 was one factor in the revisions to our
reserve estimates in February 2007. In addition, extended declines in market prices for silver, zinc and lead may render portions of our reserves
uneconomic and result in reduced reported reserves. Any material reductions in estimates of our reserves and other mineralization, or of our
ability to extract these reserves or mineralization, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

We have not established the presence of proven or probable reserves at any of our mineral properties other than the San Cristobal project. There
can be no assurance that subsequent testing or future feasibility studies will establish additional reserves at our properties. The failure to
establish additional reserves could restrict our ability to successfully implement our strategies for long-term growth beyond the San Cristobal
project.

The San Cristobal project is subject to risks including delays in completion and we may be unable to achieve anticipated production
volume or manage cost increases.

Completion of the development and start-up of the San Cristobal project is subject to various factors, including the performance of our
engineering and construction contractors, mining contractor, suppliers and consultants. Any delay in the performance of any one or more of the
parties listed above could delay or prevent the development of San Cristobal as currently planned. There can be no assurance:

e when or whether the San Cristobal project will be completed and start-up will commence;
e  whether the resulting operations will achieve the anticipated production volume; or

e that the construction costs and ongoing operating costs associated with the development of the San Cristobal
project will not be higher than anticipated.

We have never developed or operated a mine or managed a significant mine development project. We cannot assure you that the start-up of San
Cristobal will be completed at the cost and on the schedule predicted, or that silver, zinc and lead grades and recoveries, production rates or
anticipated capital or operating costs will be achieved.

We believe that we have sufficient funds to complete the development of the San Cristobal project. If the actual cost to complete the project is
significantly higher than currently expected, there can be no assurance that we will have sufficient funds to cover these costs or that we will be
able to obtain alternative sources of financing to cover these costs. Unexpected cost increases, reduced silver and zinc prices or the failure to
obtain necessary additional financing on acceptable terms, to complete the development of the San Cristobal project on a timely basis, or to
achieve anticipated production capacity, could have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

We depend on a single mining project which is not 100% owned by us.

We anticipate that the majority, if not all, of any revenues for the next few years and beyond will be derived from the sale of metals mined at the
San Cristobal project. Therefore, if we are unable to complete and successfully mine the San Cristobal project, our ability to generate revenue
and profits would be materially adversely affected.

In September 2006, we sold 35% of the San Cristobal project to Sumitomo Corporation. As a result of this transaction, Sumitomo obtained
certain rights with respect to the management and operation of the project. For example, certain significant matters for the project require the
approval of Sumitomo, including approval of annual programs and budgets, increases of 15% or more in capital expenditures or operating
expenses and mergers or liquidations. If Sumitomo does not approve our proposals with respect
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to these matters, we may face significant delays in completing the project or improving its operations and may be unable to operate the project in
the manner we believe to be in the best interests of our shareholders.

We and Sumitomo are required to provide our proportionate shares of funding for the project in order to complete construction and begin
commercial operations. In 2005, in connection with the project finance facility, we placed in restricted accounts $184 million to fund
construction of the San Cristobal project. In October 2005, we announced a $50 million increase in anticipated construction costs, which will be
funded 65% by us and 35% by Sumitomo. If additional funding is necessary and Sumitomo does not pay its 35% share of such additional
amounts, we would need to fund those amounts ourselves and there can be no assurance that we would have sufficient capital to fund the
amounts required, and even if we do, additional amounts spent at San Cristobal may decrease our ability to fully fund our exploration program.

Sumitomo is also required to comply with certain provisions of the San Cristobal project financing agreements. If Sumitomo fails to comply
with its obligations, the failure could result in a default under those agreements, in the subsequent acceleration of the San Cristobal project loans
and settlement obligations under the derivative positions required by the project lenders, and enforcement of the lenders liens against the San
Cristobal project. See ~ We may be unable to comply with the terms and covenants of the debt financing for our San Cristobal Project.

Our success will depend on our ability to manage our growth.

As we increase our development activity at San Cristobal and shift from construction to operation, we are experiencing significant growth in our
operations, which we expect to continue and accelerate as we complete construction and anticipate the first sale of concentrates in the third
quarter of 2007. This growth has created and will continue to create new positions and responsibilities for management personnel and will

substantially increase demands on our operating and financial systems, especially those management personnel and systems that are located in
Bolivia. There can be no assurance that we will successfully meet these demands and manage our anticipated growth.

Our profitability will be affected by changes in the prices of metals.

Our profitability and long-term viability depend, in large part, on the market price of silver, zinc, lead and other metals. The market prices for
these metals are volatile and are affected by numerous factors beyond our control, including:

e global or regional consumption patterns;

e supply of, and demand for, silver, zinc, lead and other metals;
e speculative activities;

e expectations for inflation; and

e political and economic conditions.

The aggregate effect of these factors on metals prices is impossible for us to predict. Decreases in metals prices in the past have delayed the
development of the San Cristobal project and could in the future adversely affect our ability to finance the exploration and development of our
other properties, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations and cash flows. There can be no
assurance that metals prices will not decline.
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The following table sets forth for the periods indicated (1) the COMEX nearby active silver futures contract s high and low price of silver in U.S.
dollars per troy ounce and (2) the London Metals Exchange s high and low settlement prices of zinc and lead in U.S. dollars per pound.

Silver Zinc ILead
Year | | High Low High Low | [High Low
2002 5.13 4.22 0.42 0.33 .24 0.18
2003 5.99 4.35 0.46 0.34 0.34 0.19
2004 3.29 5.49 0.56 0.42 45 0.29
2005 9.01 6.41 .87 0.54 0.51 .37
2006 14.83 8.74 2.05 0.87 .80 0.43
2007* 14.70 12.19 1.88 1.40 0.88 .70

o Through March 27, 2007

The closing prices of silver, zinc and lead on March 27, 2007 were $13.27 per troy ounce, $1.45 per pound and $0.84 per pound, respectively.

We may not be successful in hedging against metals price, currency and interest rate fluctuations; we expect to incur mark-to-market
losses on our metals price hedges and could lose money through our hedging programs.

We have entered into metals trading transactions to hedge against commodity and base metals price risks, using puts, calls and forward sales.
The terms of our debt financing for the San Cristobal project require that we utilize various price hedging techniques to hedge a portion of the
metals we plan to produce at San Cristobal. If we fail to maintain the minimum level of hedge transactions required by the terms of our debt
financing for the San Cristobal project, our ability to draw additional amounts from the lenders may be adversely affected. These derivative
positions represent 4%, 13% and 17% of planned life-of-mine payable production of silver, zinc and lead, respectively. Since the third quarter of
2005, when the hedge transactions were entered into, we have recorded an aggregate of $818 million in non-cash mark-to-market losses related
to the open metals derivative positions, resulting from increases in the spot and forward prices for silver, zinc and lead. During the periods that
the derivative positions are outstanding, gains and losses may fluctuate substantially from period to period based on spot prices, forward prices
and quoted option volatilities.

We expect to settle these hedges over time after the San Cristobal project is in production. If the completion and start-up of the project is
delayed, operations are interrupted for any significant period or if we are unable for any reason to sell the quantity of metals corresponding to the
terms of the applicable forward sale, we may be required to settle the forward sale and incur a loss equal to the difference in the terms of the
forward sales agreement and the then current spot price. Depending on the price of the applicable metal at that time, the settlement of the
forward sales could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Further, under certain circumstances, we may be required to liquidate our hedge positions before their anticipated settlement date. Specifically,
the hedge agreements contain a cross-default provision which entitles the hedge counterparties to accelerate the settlement date of the hedge
positions in the event we default on the repayment of amounts due under the project finance facility. Amounts due upon early termination of our
hedge positions could be in excess of the mark-to-market losses we have already recorded. There can be no assurance that we would have
sufficient funds on hand or access to available capital to enable us to meet those commitments.
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Finally, there can be no assurance that the use of hedging techniques will ultimately be to our benefit. Hedging instruments that protect against
metals market price volatility may prevent us from realizing the benefit from subsequent increases in market prices with respect to covered
production, which would cause us to record a mark-to-market loss, or decrease our cash flows and profits. In addition, our ability to hedge
against zinc and lead price risk in a timely manner may be adversely affected by the smaller volume of transactions in both the zinc and lead
markets. Hedging contracts also are subject to the risk that the other party may be unable or unwilling to perform its obligations under these
contracts. Any significant nonperformance could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The exploration of mineral properties is highly speculative in nature, involves substantial expenditures and is frequently
non-productive.

Our future growth and profitability will depend, in part, on our ability to identify and acquire additional mineral rights, and on the costs and
results of our continued exploration and development programs. Competition for attractive mineral exploration properties is intense. Our
strategy is to expand our reserves through a broad program of exploration. Mineral exploration is highly speculative in nature and is frequently
non-productive. Substantial expenditures are required to:

e establish ore reserves through drilling and metallurgical and other testing techniques;
e determine metal content and metallurgical recovery processes to extract metal from the ore; and

e construct, renovate or expand mining and processing facilities.

If we discover ore, it usually takes several years from the initial phases of exploration until production is possible. During this time, the
economic feasibility of production may change. As a result of these uncertainties, there can be no assurance that we will successfully acquire
additional mineral rights, or that our exploration programs will result in new proven and probable reserves in sufficient quantities to justify
commercial operations at any of our properties, other than the San Cristobal project.

We consider from time to time the acquisition of operating or formerly operating mines. Our decisions to acquire these properties are based on a
variety of factors including historical operating results, estimates of and assumptions about future reserves, cash and other operating costs,
metals prices and projected economic returns, and evaluations of existing or potential liabilities associated with the property and its operation.
Our estimates and assumptions may turn out to be erroneous or incorrect. In addition, there is intense competition for attractive properties.
Accordingly, there is no assurance that our acquisition efforts will result in profitable mining operations.

Our profitability depends, in part, on actual economic returns and actual costs of developing mines, which may differ significantly from
our estimates and involve unexpected problems and delays.

None of our mineral properties, including the San Cristobal project, has an operating history upon which we can base estimates of future cash
operating costs. Our decision to develop the San Cristobal project is based on a feasibility study, and decisions about the development of other
projects in the future may also be based on feasibility studies. Feasibility studies derive estimates of reserves, operating costs and project
economic returns. Estimates of economic returns are based, in part, on assumptions about future metals prices. Our profitability will be affected
by changes in the price of metals. Feasibility studies derive estimates of average cash operating costs based upon, among other things:

e anticipated tonnage, grades and metallurgical characteristics of ore to be mined and processed;
e anticipated recovery rates of silver and other metals from the ore;

e cash operating costs of comparable facilities and equipment; and
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e anticipated climatic conditions.
Actual cash operating costs, production and economic returns may differ significantly from those anticipated by our studies and estimates.

There are a number of uncertainties inherent in the development and construction of any new mine, including the San Cristobal project. These
uncertainties include:

e the timing and cost, which can be considerable, of the construction of mining and processing facilities;

e the availability and cost of skilled labor, power, water and transportation;

e the availability and cost of appropriate smelting and refining arrangements;

e the need to obtain necessary environmental and other governmental permits, and the timing of those permits; and

e the availability of funds to finance construction and development activities.

The costs, timing and complexities of mine construction and development are increased by the remote location of many mining properties, like
the San Cristobal project. It is common in new mining operations to experience unexpected problems and delays during development,
construction and start-up at mines and mineral processing plants, and delays in the commencement of mineral production often occur. Further,
mine construction and operation may be impacted by our relationships and standing within the communities in which we operate. Accidents or
events detrimental (or perceived to be detrimental) to the health and safety of our employees, or to the environment or the communities in which
we operate, could negatively impact our operations and create unforeseen problems and delays. Accordingly, there is no assurance that our
future development activities will result in profitable mining operations.

Title to our mineral properties may be challenged.

Our policy is to seek to confirm the validity of our rights to title to, or contract rights with respect to, each mineral property in which we have a
material interest. However, we cannot guarantee that title to our properties will not be challenged. Title insurance generally is not available, and
our ability to ensure that we have obtained secure claim to individual mineral properties or mining concessions may be severely constrained. We
have not conducted surveys of all of the claims in which we hold direct or indirect interests and, therefore, the precise area and location of these
claims may be in doubt. Accordingly, our mineral properties may be subject to prior unregistered agreements, transfers or claims, and title may
be affected by, among other things, undetected defects. In addition, we may be unable to operate our properties as permitted or to enforce our
rights with respect to our properties.

We may lose rights to properties if we fail to meet payment requirements or development or production schedules.

We derive the rights to some of our mineral properties from leaseholds or purchase option agreements that require the payment of rent or other
installment fees. In addition, we must make annual mining patent payments to the Bolivian government totaling approximately $400,000 to
maintain our concessions at San Cristobal. If we fail to make these payments when they are due, our rights to the property may lapse. There can
be no assurance that we will always make payments by the requisite payment dates. Some contracts with respect to our mineral properties
require development or production schedules. There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet any or all of the development or production
schedules. In addition, our ability to transfer or sell our rights to some of our mineral properties requires governmental approvals or third party
consents, which may not be granted.
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We cannot insure against all of the risks associated with mining.

The business of mining is subject to a number of risks and hazards, including:

e adverse environmental effects;

e industrial accidents;

e labor disputes;

e technical difficulties due to unusual or unexpected geologic formations;

e failures of pit walls; and

flooding and periodic interruptions due to inclement or hazardous weather conditions.

These risks can result in, among other things:

damage to, and destruction of, mineral properties or production facilities;
e personal injury;

e environmental damage;

e delays in mining;

e monetary losses; and

e legal liability.

Although we maintain, and intend to continue to maintain, insurance with respect to our operations and mineral properties within ranges of
coverage consistent with industry practice, there can be no assurance that insurance will be available at economically feasible premiums.
Insurance against environmental risks is not generally available. These environmental risks include potential liability for pollution or other
disturbances resulting from mining exploration and production. In addition, not all risks associated with developing and producing silver, zinc,
lead and other metals are included in coverage, and some covered risks may result in liabilities which exceed policy limits. Further, we may elect
to not seek coverage for all risks. The occurrence of an event that is not fully covered, or covered at all, by insurance, could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We may be subject to fines or other penalties in connection with an alleged violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

As we have previously disclosed, we have concluded, based on the results of an internal investigation conducted under the direction of our Audit
Committee, that certain senior employees of one of our South American subsidiaries were involved in making impermissible payments of
approximately $125,000 to government officials in 2003 and 2004 in connection with an inactive, early stage exploration property that is not
related to any of our active exploration or development properties. Based on findings to date, no changes to our previously filed financial
statements are warranted as a result of these matters. We have contacted the Department of Justice ( DOJ ) and SEC and reported the results of
our internal investigation. We have been informed that the SEC and DOJ have commenced an investigation with respect to these matters,
including possible violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. We are cooperating fully with the SEC and DOJ investigations. We cannot
predict with any certainty the final outcome of the investigations, including any fines or penalties that may be imposed.
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Our San Cristobal project and our exploration activities are in countries with developing economies and are subject to the risks of
political and economic instability associated with these countries.

We currently conduct exploration activities in Latin American countries with developing economies, including Bolivia, Mexico, Argentina and
Peru. These countries and other emerging markets in which we may conduct operations have from time to time experienced economic or
political instability. We may be materially adversely affected by risks associated with conducting operations in countries with developing
economies, including:

e political instability and violence;

e war and civil disturbance;

e acts of terrorism;

e expropriation or nationalization;

e changing fiscal regimes;

e fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

e high rates of inflation;

e underdeveloped industrial and economic infrastructure; and

e unenforceability of contractual rights.

Changes in mining or investment policies or shifts in the prevailing political climate in any of the countries in which we conduct exploration and
development activities could adversely affect our business. Our operations may be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with
respect to, among other things:

e production restrictions;

e  price controls;

e export and import controls;

e income and other taxes;

e maintenance of claims;

e environmental legislation;

e foreign ownership restrictions;

o foreign exchange and currency controls;
e labor;

e welfare benefit policies;

29



24

Edgar Filing: APEX SILVER MINES LTD - Form 10-K

land use;
land claims of local residents;
water use; and

mine safety.
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We cannot accurately predict the effect of these factors. In addition, legislation in the United States regulating foreign trade, investment and
taxation could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our San Cristobal project may be adversely affected by changes in the Bolivian Government s policies toward the mining industry.

In December 2005, Evo Morales, leader of the Movement to Socialism party, was elected president of Bolivia. He took office in January 2006.
In May 2006, President Morales required companies operating in the hydrocarbon industry to negotiate new contracts with the government,
resulting in some cases in a significantly higher effective tax rate.

To date, there have been no formal proposals to nationalize the mining industry. The government may, however, alter its current policies with
respect to the mining industry. President Morales and others in his administration have made public statements regarding their desire to recover
natural resource production in Bolivia, including mining. If the San Cristobal project were nationalized, we might be unable to recover any
significant portion of our investment in the project. The Bolivian government is currently considering various changes to applicable mining
taxes, which would have the effect of increasing the overall tax burden on the San Cristobal project. Should these changes occur, the profitability
of the San Cristobal project may be adversely effected.

If as a result of changes in government policy, we did not complete construction or were unable to operate the San Cristobal project, we could
have substantial liabilities in connection with our hedge positions. We do not maintain political risk insurance to cover losses that we may incur
as a result of nationalization, expropriation or similar events in Bolivia.

In May 2006, the Constitutional Court of Bolivia issued a ruling declaring certain articles of the Mining Code unconstitutional. The Court s

ruling is not effective until May 2008, and the ruling urges the Bolivian Congress to enact legislation during that time which may supersede the
ruling. Among other things, the ruling may limit the transferability of mining concessions and restrict our ability to transfer or mortgage our
mining concessions, including the San Cristobal concessions that we have mortgaged as collateral to the lenders providing financing for the San
Cristobal project. There can be no assurance that the Bolivian Congress will enact legislation to permit the transfer or mortgage of concessions
prior to the May 2008 implementation and, if implemented, what the impact of the Court s ruling will be. If the Court s ruling is implemented and
causes a negative effect on the validity of our existing San Cristobal mortgages, that situation could result in a default under the San Cristobal
project finance facility, which could result in acceleration of the loan and hedge liabilities.

Although the political disturbances in Bolivia have not caused any material adverse impact on our San Cristobal project, political and economic
uncertainties and instability may continue and may not be resolved successfully. The political and economic climate may become more unstable,
and political and economic uncertainties may in the future have an adverse impact on the development or operations of San Cristobal.

Our activities are subject to foreign environmental laws and regulations that may materially adversely affect our future operations.

We conduct mineral exploration and development activities primarily in South America and Central America, and are most active in Bolivia,
where the San Cristobal project is located, and Peru, Argentina and Mexico. With the development of San Cristobal, we also expect to conduct
mining operations in Bolivia. These countries have laws and regulations which control the exploration and mining of mineral properties and
their effects on the environment, including air and water quality, mine reclamation, waste handling and disposal, the protection of different
species of flora and fauna and the preservation of lands.
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These laws and regulations will require us to acquire permits and other authorizations for certain activities. In many countries, including Bolivia,
there is relatively new comprehensive environmental legislation, and the permitting and authorization processes may not be established or
predictable. There can be no assurance that we will be able to acquire necessary permits or authorizations on a timely basis, if at all. Delays in
acquiring any permit or authorization could increase the development cost of our projects and could delay the commencement of production.

Environmental legislation in many countries is evolving in a manner which will likely require stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines
and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of responsibility for
companies and their officers, directors and employees. In Bolivia, where there is relatively new environmental legislation, enforcement activities
and strategies are under development, and thus may not be predictable. We cannot predict what environmental legislation or regulations will be
enacted or adopted in the future or how future laws and regulations will be administered or interpreted. Compliance with more stringent laws
and regulations, as well as potentially more vigorous enforcement policies or regulatory agencies or stricter interpretation of existing laws, may
(1) necessitate significant capital outlays, (2) cause us to delay, terminate or otherwise change our intended activities with respect to one or more
projects and (3) materially adversely affect our future operations.

In addition, as a condition of the San Cristobal project finance facility, we are required to comply with the Equator Principles, an assortment of
environmental and social standards that have been adopted by many large global financial institutions. The requirements set forth in the Equator
Principles frequently exceed the requirements under Bolivian law. If we fail to materially comply with the Equator Principles, we would be in
violation of the applicable loan covenant under our project finance facility. This may cause the lenders to declare a default which would have a
material adverse effect on the San Cristobal project and our financial condition. See ~ We may be unable to comply with the terms and conditions
of the project finance facility for our San Cristobal project .

Many of our exploration and development properties are located in historic mining districts where prior owners may have caused environmental
damage that may not be known to us or to the regulators. In most cases, we have not sought complete environmental analyses of our mineral
properties and have not conducted comprehensive reviews of the environmental laws and regulations in every jurisdiction in which we own or
control mineral properties. To the extent we are subject to environmental requirements or liabilities, the cost of compliance with these
requirements and satisfaction of these liabilities would reduce our net cash flow and could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. If we are unable to fund fully the cost of remediation of any environmental condition, we may be required to
suspend operations or enter into interim compliance measures pending completion of the required remediation.

We compete against larger and more experienced companies.

The mining industry is intensely competitive. Many of the largest mining companies are primarily producers of base metals, and may become
interested in the types of silver deposits on which we are focused because these deposits typically are polymetallic, containing significant
quantities of base metals including zinc, lead and copper. Many of these companies have greater financial resources, operational experience and
technical capabilities than we have. We may encounter increasing competition from other mining companies in our efforts to acquire mineral
properties and hire experienced mining professionals. Increased competition in our business could adversely affect our ability to attract
necessary capital funding or acquire suitable producing properties or prospects for mineral exploration in the future.
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Our ability to obtain dividends or other distributions from our subsidiaries may be subject to restrictions imposed by law, foreign
currency exchange regulations and our financing arrangements.

We conduct, and will continue to conduct, all of our operations through subsidiaries. Our ability to obtain dividends or other distributions from
our subsidiaries may be subject to restrictions on dividends or repatriation of earnings under applicable local law, monetary transfer restrictions
and foreign currency exchange regulations in the jurisdictions in which the subsidiaries operate. Further, our debt financing for the San Cristobal
project includes requirements that we satisfy certain debt service reserve or operating reserve requirements or meet debt payment obligations
prior to payment to us of any dividends by our subsidiaries. Our subsidiaries ability to pay dividends or make other distributions to us is also
subject to their having sufficient funds to do so. If our subsidiaries are unable to pay dividends or make other distributions, our growth may be
inhibited unless we are able to obtain additional debt or equity financing on acceptable terms. In the event of a subsidiary s liquidation, we may
lose all or a portion of our investment in that subsidiary.

We may not be able to raise the funds necessary to explore and develop our mineral properties.

Although we believe that we have raised sufficient amounts to fund the expected cost of developing and constructing the San Cristobal project,
we will need additional external financing to fund the exploration and development of our other mineral properties. Sources of external
financing may include bank borrowings and future debt and equity offerings. There can be no assurance that such future financing will be
available on acceptable terms, or at all. The failure to obtain financing would have a material adverse effect on our growth strategy and our
results of operations and financial condition. The mineral properties that we are likely to develop are expected to require significant capital
expenditures. There can be no assurance that we will be able to secure the financing necessary to retain our rights to, or to begin or sustain
production at, our mineral properties.

We may be unable to comply with the terms and covenants of the project finance facility for our San Cristobal project.

In December 2005, in order to finance construction and start-up costs for the San Cristobal project, we entered into a $225 million project
finance facility with several large financial institutions. As of March 27, 2007, we had borrowed $200 million pursuant to the facility and expect
to draw the remaining amounts as part of our funding for the construction of the project. Our obligations under the facility are secured by
substantially all of the assets of certain of our subsidiaries, including our Bolivian subsidiary that holds the San Cristobal project. The terms of
the project finance facility obligate Apex Silver as well as certain of our subsidiaries, including our Bolivian subsidiary, to meet numerous
ongoing conditions and covenants. These covenants include obligations related to the construction and operation of the project as well as certain
financial covenants pertaining to Apex Silver and our subsidiaries. In some cases, such as the lenders approval of the annual update to the San
Cristobal operating plan and budget, determining whether we are in compliance with the covenants depends, at least in part, on the reasonable
judgment of the lenders. Failure to meet one or more of these conditions or covenants could prevent us from future borrowing under the loan
facility and could cause the lenders to declare us in default on our existing obligations. If such a default were declared and remained uncured, all
borrowed amounts could become due and payable immediately and we may be required to immediately settle all outstanding hedge positions.
Since we currently have no operations or source of funds, there can be no assurance that we would be able to repay such amounts. If we are
unable to repay the borrowed amounts or otherwise perform our obligations under the project finance facility, the lenders may be entitled, in
certain circumstances, to enforce their lien and take possession of the secured assets, including the assets that comprise the San Cristobal project.
In addition, failure to pay amounts accelerated under the project
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finance facility may result in a default under the terms of our 2.875% and 4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024.

In the past, we have violated certain covenants or representations set forth in the project finance facility and have requested and received waivers
from the lenders with respect to these potential violations. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources . There can be no assurance that we would be able to obtain similar waivers from the lenders in the
future. In addition, the project finance facility contains a representation that Apex Silver and certain of its subsidiaries are solvent. This
representation must be true each time we borrow under the facility. As a result of the mark-to-market liability related to our metals derivative
positions, it is not certain that we will be able to make that representation at the time of future borrowings. If we are not solvent at a future
borrowing date, the lenders may refuse to grant a waiver of that requirement and would be entitled to refuse to loan additional amounts under the
facility.

We depend on the services of key executives.

We are dependent on the services of key executives including our chief executive officer and a small number of highly skilled and experienced
executives and personnel focused on the development of the San Cristobal project. Due to the relatively small size of Apex Silver, the loss of
these persons or our inability to attract and retain additional highly skilled employees required for the development of the San Cristobal project
may delay or otherwise adversely affect the development, start-up and operation of the San Cristobal project, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Apex Silver and certain lower tier subsidiaries will likely be treated as passive foreign investment companies for U.S. federal income tax
purposes.

We believe that Apex Silver likely was a passive foreign investment company ( PFIC ) for 2004 through 2006, and likely will be a PFIC in 2007
as well as potentially with respect to future years. If we are a PFIC, a holder of Ordinary shares who is a U.S. person for U.S. tax purposes (a

U.S. Holder ) will be subject to certain adverse U.S. federal income tax rules. Under the PFIC rules, a U.S. Holder who disposes or is deemed to
dispose of Ordinary shares at a gain, or who receives or is deemed to receive certain distributions with respect to Ordinary shares ( Excess
Distributions ), generally will be required to treat such gain or distributions as ordinary income and pay an interest charge on the tax imposed
with respect thereto. Certain elections may sometimes be used to reduce the adverse impact of the PFIC rules on U.S. Holders (so-called

qualifying electing fund ( QEF )and mark-to-market -elections), but these elections may accelerate the recognition of taxable income and may
result in the recognition of ordinary income. The PFIC rules are extremely complex, and shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisers
regarding the potential consequences to them of Apex Silver being classified as a PFIC.

In addition, special adverse rules apply to U.S. Holders for any year in which Apex Silver is a PFIC and has a non-U.S. subsidiary that is also a
PFIC (a Lower-tier PFIC ). As discussed below, we likely had a Lower-tier PFIC for 2004 and 2005 and we had a Lower-tier PFIC for 2006.
U.S. Holders of Apex Silver generally will be deemed to own any Lower-tier PFICs and will be subject to the PFIC rules with respect to their
indirect ownership of any Lower-tier PFICs. If we are a PFIC and a U.S. Holder does not make a QEF election for a Lower-tier PFIC, the U.S.
Holder could incur liability for the tax and interest charge described above if (i) we receive an Excess Distribution from that Lower-tier PFIC;
(i1) we dispose of all or part of our interest in the Lower-tier PFIC; or (iii) the U.S. Holder disposes of all or part of its Ordinary shares.
Moreover, a QEF election that is made for Apex Silver will not apply to Lower-tier PFICs. While a U.S. Holder may make a separate QEF
election for a Lower-tier PFIC in order to reduce the adverse impact of the PFIC rules with respect to that Lower-tier PFIC, the QEF election
may accelerate the recognition of taxable income and may result in the recognition of ordinary income. In addition, a U.S.
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Holder who has made a mark-to-market election for Apex Silver could be subject to the PFIC rules with respect to the Lower-tier PFIC, even
though the value of the Lower-tier PFIC already was subject to tax via mark-to-market adjustments at the level of Apex Silver.

We previously disclosed that for 2005 and all subsequent taxable years, the potential for our lower-tier subsidiaries to be classified as Lower-tier
PFICs with respect to new investors could be substantially eliminated without adverse tax consequences. In connection with the completion of
the project financing for the San Cristobal project, however, we were required at the end of 2005 and in 2006 to contribute significant amounts
to Minera San Cristobal S.A. ( MSC ), the Bolivian subsidiary that holds the principal assets associated with the project. Following those
contributions, MSC began to earn interest income and consequently we believe that MSC was a PFIC in 2005 and 2006. As a result, U.S.
Holders may be subject to the adverse tax treatment described above.

In certain filings made in years before 2006, we stated that we believed that Apex Silver may have been a PFIC, but that none of our non-U.S.
lower-tier subsidiaries were PFICs. We now believe that certain of our non-U.S. lower-tier subsidiaries, including MSC, were Lower-tier PFICs
in certain prior years. As a result, there is a possibility that some U.S. Holders may have suffered, or will suffer, adverse U.S. federal income tax
consequences that they arguably might have avoided had they been aware of the PFIC status of these lower-tier subsidiaries. In the future, U.S.
Holders may claim that they have suffered adverse tax consequences for which they could have taken remedial action if they had been aware
that we had subsidiaries that were Lower-tier PFICs. It is not possible for us to determine the number of U.S. Holders, if any, that might make
such a claim or to determine the merits or impact of such claims on us and whether such claims may be material to us.

Apex Silver reported a gain of $199.6 million on its financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2006 as a result of the indirect sale
by Apex Silver to Sumitomo Corporation of a 35% interest in Apex s San Cristobal project for $224 million in cash and certain deferred
payments based on production from the project (the Transaction ).

A U.S. Holder may be taxed on a proportionate share of the gain from the Transaction, as determined for PFIC purposes, and be subject to an
interest charge on the tax liability, as described above, if Apex Silver and MSC are PFICs. A U.S. Holder who has timely made QEF elections
both for Apex Silver and MSC would avoid the Excess Distribution rules, but would generally be subject to tax at rates applicable to capital
gains on the holder s proportionate share of the gain from the Transaction, or, if smaller, Apex Silver s earnings and profits for the year. Some
U.S. Holders who have not made timely filed QEF elections may be eligible to make a retroactive QEF election that would mitigate the adverse
U.S. tax consequences of the Transaction on them. Moreover, under applicable proposed regulations the fact that our lower-tier subsidiaries may
not have had earnings and profits for any taxable year since formation may arguably eliminate any adverse tax consequences arising from the
failure of a U.S. Holder to make a QEF election with respect to the Lower-tier PFICs for prior years if the U.S. Holder makes a timely
retroactive QEF election.

ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As previously disclosed, we concluded, based on the results of an internal investigation conducted under the direction of our Audit Committee,
that certain senior employees of one of our South American subsidiaries were involved in making impermissible payments of approximately
$125,000 to government officials in 2003 and 2004 in connection with an inactive, early stage exploration property that is not related to any of
our active exploration or development properties. Based on findings to date, no changes to our
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previously filed financial statements are warranted as a result of these matters. We have contacted the Department of Justice ( DOJ ) and SEC and
reported the results of our internal investigation. We have been informed that the SEC and DOJ have commenced an investigation with respect

to these matters, including possible violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. We are cooperating fully with the SEC and DOJ

investigations. We cannot predict with any certainty the final outcome of the investigations, including any fines or penalties that may be

imposed.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART II

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS

Our Ordinary Shares are listed on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol SIL. As of March 27, 2007, we had approximately 160
shareholders of record and an estimated 12,000 additional beneficial holders whose Ordinary Shares were held in street name by brokerage
houses.

We have never paid any dividends on our Ordinary Shares and expect for the foreseeable future to retain any earnings from operations for use in
expanding and developing our business. Any future decision as to the payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and
will depend upon our earnings, receipt of dividends from our subsidiaries, financial position, capital requirements, plans for expansion and such
other factors as our board of directors deems relevant. Further, our project finance facility for the San Cristobal project includes a requirement
that we satisfy certain debt service reserve or operating reserve requirements or meet debt payment obligations prior to payment to Apex Silver
of any dividends by our subsidiaries.

The following table sets forth the high and the low sale prices per share of our Ordinary Shares for the periods indicated. The closing price of the
Ordinary Shares on March 27, 2007 was $13.57.

2006 2005

Period | | High Low High Low

1st Quarter s psas| s lae1]| s lioaz] s [i5.80
Dnd Quarter 26.00 12.85 15.84 11.54

3rd Quarter 17.65 13.41 17.20 12.61

Uth Quarter 17.52 14.10 18.01 14.65
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ITEM 6: SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data of Apex Silver for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the period from
December 22, 1994 (inception) through December 31, 2006, are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. This table should be
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations.

For the period
from
December 22,
1994 Inception
Year ended December 31, through
2005 December 31,
2006 Restated(1) 2004 2003 2002 2006
(in thousands)
Statement of Operations:
Operating (expenses)(2) $ (744,607 ) $ (175498 ) $ (21,366 ) $ (6,594 ) $ (9,524 ) $ (1,039,112 )
Other income (expense) net(3) 222,998 13,725 2,521 550 870 253,513
Net loss before minority
interest and income taxes (521,609 ) (161,773 ) (18,845 ) (6,044 ) (8,654 ) (785,599 )
Income taxes (749 ) (379 ) (1,128 )
Minority interest in
consolidated loss 8,813 16 13,388
Net loss $ (513,545 ) $ (162,136 ) $ (18,845 ) $ (6,044 ) $ (8,654 ) $ (773339 )
Net loss per Ordinary Share
basic and diluted $ (9.09 ) $ (334 ) $ (041 ) $ (017 ) $ (024 )
Weighted average Ordinary
Shares outstanding 56,498 48,616 46,528 36,576 35,678
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash used in operating
activities (70,727 ) (24,338 ) (9,218 ) (3,199 ) (3,692 ) (177,604 )
Net cash used in investing
activities (223,012 ) (1,869 ) (518,926 ) (4,519 ) (5,452 ) (859,019 )
Net cash provided by
financing activities(4) $ 338,771 $ 3275 $ 538,370 $ 33875 $ 11,277 $ 1,086,463
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 1,270,096 $ 780,511 $ 6932818 $ 146,167 $ 144,055
Long term liabilities $ 1,278,474 $ 467,743 $ 339,987 $ 599 $ 770
Minority interest $ 40 $ 34 $ $ $
Shareholders equity (deficity $ (103,290 ) $ 227,229 $ 346,116 $ 143986 $ 141,731
(1) See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and the Notes to

our Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2s for a discussion of the matters related to the restatement of the 2005
financial statements.

) The 2006 amount includes a non-cash mark-to-market loss of $672.5 million related to our open derivative
positions and a realized loss of $42.6 million on certain liquidated derivative positions. The 2005 amount includes a
restated non-cash mark-to-market loss of $151.5 million related to our open derivative positions.
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3) The 2006 amounts include a $199.6 million gain related to the sale to Sumitomo of a 35% interest in the
subsidiaries that own our San Cristobal project.

“) The 2006 amount includes $180.0 million of borrowings under the project finance facility and $156.8 million
of net proceeds from the sale of Ordinary Shares. The 2004 amounts include $328.1 million of net proceeds from the
issuance of convertible notes and $208.6 million of net proceeds from sale of Ordinary Shares.

ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read together with the consolidated financial statements of Apex Silver Mines Limited and the
selected financial data and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report on Form 10-K.

Overview

During 2006 we made significant progress on the construction of our San Cristobal project in southwestern Bolivia and at the end of the year the
project was over 90% complete. Virtually all the engineering has been completed and all the major mechanical equipment has been installed.
The most significant remaining task to be accomplished is the completion of the rail spur and the port facilities. Both of those tasks are
proceeding on schedule and should be completed during the second quarter of 2007. We are looking forward to the first sale of concentrates
from San Cristobal in the third quarter of 2007.

In addition to the significant progress on the development of the San Cristobal project, our other highlights from 2006 included the following:

e Sumitomo Transaction In September 2006, we sold a 35% interest in the San Cristobal project to Sumitomo
Corporation. We retained a 65% interest in the project and continue to have operational control, subject to the
provisions of a shareholders agreement entered into with Sumitomo in connection with the transaction. See San
Cristobal Project Transaction with Sumitomo . We recognized a gain of $199.6 million on the sale.

e Public Equity Offering In April 2006 we completed a public equity offering in which we raised $151.1 million.
We have used a portion of the proceeds to advance the evaluation of our portfolio of exploration properties and the
remaining amount remains available for exploration, business development activities or general corporate purposes.

e Project Finance Facility In February 2006 we received our first draw under our $225 million San Cristobal project
finance facility. At year-end, we had drawn $180 million from the facility to finance the construction of the project.
During February 2007 we borrowed an additional $20 million against the finance facility, bringing total borrowings
under the facility to $200 million.

e Royalty Income We received $1.6 million in income from a net smelter return royalty we retained in connection
with our recent sale of an exploration property. In 2004, we sold a section of our Platosa property in Mexico to an
unaffiliated buyer. The buyer began test mining on the royalty section in 2006 and produced silver, zinc and lead with
a net smelter value of $32.4 million. This royalty income represents our first income (other than investment income)
since the inception of the company.

As we near the commencement of production at the San Cristobal project in 2007, we continue to face challenges. Some of these challenges
include:

e Derivative Positions During 2005, we entered into certain forward sales, puts and calls for silver, zinc and lead.
While most of these transactions were required in order to comply with a covenant in
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our San Cristobal project finance facility, a portion of the transactions were discretionary. Because of high spot and forward prices for silver,
zinc and lead, we have recognized significant non-cash, mark-to-market losses on these derivative positions. During 2006, we made net cash
payments of $48.3 million resulting in a realized loss of $42.6 million to settle all of our discretionary derivative positions, and recognized a
non-cash mark-to-market loss of $672.5 million for the year with respect to the positions required by the project finance facility. Non-cash
mark-to-market gains and losses from the open derivative positions may fluctuate substantially from period to period based on spot and forward
prices and option volatilities. However, if current spot prices continue into the future, we anticipate that the increased revenue from metals which
are not hedged will generate a significant benefit to future earnings and cash flows. See ~ Restatement of Prior Periods Results of Operations
below for a discussion of the restated valuations of our open derivative positions.

e Political Matters in Bolivia. At various times during 2006, President Morales and others in his administration
have made public statements regarding their desire to exert greater state control over natural resource production in
Bolivia. To date, there have been no formal proposals by the Bolivian government to nationalize the mining industry
but it is possible that the government may alter its current policies with respect to the mining industry in the future. In
addition, the Bolivian government is currently considering various changes to applicable mining taxes, which would
have the effect of increasing the overall tax burden on the San Cristobal project. At present, various ideas have been
proposed by government officials and others, but there is no legislation pending. Should these changes occur, the
profitability of the San Cristobal project may be adversely effected.

e Managing Growth. As the construction of the San Cristobal project continues to advance, we have experienced an
increase in our administrative and management costs. These costs have arisen primarily due to the increased systems
and personnel required to become an operating company, as well as the expenditures required to maintain compliance
with the San Cristobal project finance facility.

Restatement of Prior Periods Results of Operations

We determined that the method used in prior periods to estimate the fair value of our open metals derivative positions was not appropriate.

Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ( FAS No. 133 ), we record
our open derivative positions at their fair value on our consolidated balance sheet and record the changes in fair value to current earnings at the

end of each reporting period.

Our derivative positions mature or expire on various dates over an approximate six-year period commencing in July 2007. Many of the
derivative positions mature or expire beyond the periods covered by the major commodities price indices such as LME or COMEX, or expire in
future periods covered by those indices with respect to which only limited trading activity has occurred. In instances where only limited market
activity existed, we used price projections provided by an independent third party employing statistical analysis and models to estimate the fair
value of our open derivative positions. The models used by the independent third party relied on commodities prices indices out to three months
and mean reversion statistical estimates beyond the three-month period. Recently, we reassessed the market information reflected in the
commodities prices indices out to twenty-seven months and quoted prices from the counterparties holding derivative positions and concluded
that the additional market information is a more reliable indicator of fair value than the independent third party price projections we previously
used.

Based on the reassessment, we concluded that we had understated the liability related to the open derivative positions commencing with the
quarter ended September 30, 2005. The cumulative liability for our open derivative positions was understated by $95.1 million and $300.5
million at December 31, 2005
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and September 30, 2006, respectively. In addition, correcting the error in the valuation of the open derivative positions impacted the gain and
minority interest that we recognized on the sale of the 35% interests in the subsidiaries that own the San Cristobal project. The gain on the sale
increased from $119.8 million to $199.6 million and the minority interest decreased from $88.4 million to $18.9 million at September 30, 2006.

As aresult, we have concluded that our financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, the year ended December 31, 2005 and
the first three quarters of 2006 should be restated. Use of the additional market information in calculating the fair value of our open derivative
positions will likely result in increased volatility in our earnings during the next three years, the period over which most of the derivatives
mature or expire. We intend to settle these derivatives with revenues from San Cristobal production over the six-year period commencing in
July 2007. Therefore, the cash effect of settling these hedges will be realized as lower revenue over that six-year period and the ultimate losses
or gains from these derivatives will be determined based upon market prices at the time of settlement.

Results of Operations

Gain on Sale of Interest in Subsidiary. During 2006, we sold to Sumitomo Corporation a 35% interest in three subsidiaries
that own our San Cristobal project, market project concentrates and hold the metals derivative positions associated
with the project. We received $224 million in cash and will receive certain future payments from Sumitomo based on
silver and zinc production from the project. We recorded a minority interest of $8.8 million in the net assets sold to
Sumitomo and recognized a gain of $199.6 million related to the transaction. The gain is net of approximately $6.4
million of selling costs we incurred related to the transaction.

Subsequent to the close of the transaction with Sumitomo, we incurred certain losses primarily related to marking to market our open derivative
positions entered into in connection with the project finance facility. Such losses would normally be shared by Sumitomo in proportion to its
35% interest in the subsidiary recording the losses. However, generally accepted accounting principles do not permit the allocation of losses to
the minority interest in excess of the minority owner s interest in the subsidiary, unless the minority interest has a primary obligation to fund such
losses. We and Sumitomo have each guaranteed our respective shares of the project finance obligations and the related metals derivative
positions through the completion of the San Cristobal project (as defined in the project finance facility) at which time the guarantees will
terminate. Project completion must occur by December 31, 2008. Since the derivative positions are expected to be funded through future
earnings from the San Cristobal project, we do not anticipate that Sumitomo will be required to fund its proportionate interest in the
mark-to-market losses prior to the completion of the San Cristobal project. Although Sumitomo s share of the subsidiary s losses for the year
ended December 31, 2006, was $107.7, we only allocated $8.8 million of the loss to Sumitomo and absorbed the remaining $98.8 million loss as
the $8.8 million minority interest benefit reduced the minority interest balance on our consolidated balance sheets to $0 at December 31, 2006.
We anticipate recovering the $98.8 million we absorbed, and any additional minority interest losses we may absorb, from future earnings prior to
distribution to the minority interest. We had no comparable transactions in 2005 or 2004.

See Restatement of Prior Periods Results of Operations above for a discussion of the revised valuations of our open derivative positions which
impacted the gain and minority interest we recognized on the sale of an interest in the subsidiaries. The revised valuation of the derivative
positions resulted in the gain on the sale being increased from $119.8 million to $199.6 million and the minority interest being decreased from
$88.4 million to $18.9 million at September 30, 2006.
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Royalty Income. During 2006, we received $1.6 million of royalty income from a property in Mexico on which we
retained a net smelter return royalty. The property is being test mined by a joint venture partner and we receive a
royalty for product sold from the test mining operation. We did not receive any such royalties for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Exploration. Our exploration expenses, including property holding costs and allocated administrative expenses, were
$8.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to $5.2 million and $5.3 million for the years ending
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in exploration costs during 2006, as compared to 2005 and
2004, is primarily the result of our increased exploration activities in Mexico, Argentina, Peru, and Bolivia. None of
the exploration expenses reported relate to the San Cristobal project.

Administrative. Administrative expense was $21.2 million, $17.9 million and $18.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in administrative expense during 2006, as compared to
2005 and 2004, is primarily the result of increased compensation costs and administrative support costs indirectly
associated with the advancement of our San Cristobal project, including marketing, treasury and compliance with the
San Cristobal project finance facility. In addition, during 2006 we incurred legal fees related to an investigation of the
previously reported improper payments at our South America subsidiary. The increase in administrative expense
during 2005, as compared to 2004, excluding $8.1 million of non-recurring expenses in 2004, is primarily the result of
additional personnel costs and related indirect support costs associated with the advancement of our San Cristobal
project and our project financing efforts. The 2004 administrative expenses included approximately $6.6 million of
one time non-cash compensation expense primarily associated with the retirement of our chairman and a $1.5 million
one time payment made to a consultant related to the convertible note offerings completed during 2004.

Interest and Other Income. 'We had interest and other income of $19.7 million, $14.3 million and $6.1 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 2006 increase in interest and other income, as
compared to 2005 and 2004, is the result of the increased interest we earned on the higher average cash and
investment balances that we held during the year resulting from the proceeds received from the Ordinary Share
offering completed during the second quarter 2006 and the proceeds from the sale of the 35% interest in our San
Cristobal project during September 2006. The 2005 increase, as compared to 2004, is the result of the increased
interest we earned on the higher average cash and investment balances that we held during 2005 resulting from the
proceeds received from the ordinary share and convertible debt offerings completed during 2004. In addition, interest
rates have been gradually increasing since 2004.

Gains and Losses Commodity Derivatives. We recorded a loss of $715.1 million and a restated loss of $151.5 million related
to our total derivative positions for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, compared to a $0.7
million gain recorded for the year ended December 31, 2004. The 2006 and 2005 losses are primarily the result of the
non-cash mark-to-market valuation of our open metals positions related to the project finance facility hedge
requirement and continuing high spot and forward prices for silver, zinc and lead. See ~ Restatement of Prior Periods
Results of Operations above for a discussion of the revised valuations of our open derivative positions.

Interest Expense and Other Borrowing Costs. Interest expense and amortized borrowing costs were $0.8 million, $7.3 million
and $3.6 million resulting from total gross amounts of $26.9 million, $14.2 million and $6.1 million, less interest
capitalized during the San Cristobal construction period of $26.1 million, $6.9 million and $2.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The gross increases are the result of greater average
outstanding debt balances during the progressive years. The 2006 and 2005 amounts include $0.5 and $0.9 million of
accelerated amortization of deferred borrowing costs recorded related to the extinguishment of a portion of the debt
during the respective years. The 2006 interest and other borrowing costs consisted of interest incurred on the project
finance facility, interest incurred on the 2.875% and 4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024 and
interest incurred

43



36

Edgar Filing: APEX SILVER MINES LTD - Form 10-K

44



Edgar Filing: APEX SILVER MINES LTD - Form 10-K

on capital leases. The 2005 interest and other borrowing costs consisted of interest incurred on the 2.875% and 4.0% Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2024 and interest incurred on capital leases. The 2004 interest and other borrowing costs were related to the 2.875% and
4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024.

Income Taxes. Apex Silver Mines Corporation, our U.S. management services company, is subject to U.S. income taxes
on income derived from services provided to Apex Silver Mines Limited and its subsidiaries. Other than amounts
payable by Apex Silver Mines Corporation, we pay no income tax in the U.S. since we are incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and do not conduct or expect to conduct business in the U.S. that would generate U.S. taxable
income. The Cayman Islands currently impose no corporate taxation. We have been granted an exemption until
January 16, 2015 from any form of corporate taxation that may subsequently be adopted in the Cayman Islands. For
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 our income tax provision totaled $0.7 million and $0.4 million,
respectively, and consisted solely of withholding taxes on inter-company investment income and administrative
charges. No such taxes were incurred during the year ended December 31, 2004. Deferred tax assets of approximately
$30.0 million and $14.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, resulting from operating loss
carry-forwards of our subsidiaries, have been entirely offset by valuation allowances.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Investment Balances

At December 31, 2006, our aggregate cash, restricted cash, short and long-term investments and restricted investments totaled $514.9 million
compared to an aggregate of $351.9 million in cash, restricted cash, short and long-term investments and restricted investments at December 31,
2005. The amounts held at December 31, 2006 include $49.8 million in cash and cash equivalents, $367.8 million in investments, $27.9 million
of cash and $51.8 million of investments that are restricted to fund development at our San Cristobal project, $4.0 million of cash restricted to
develop the port facility, $8.0 million of investments to colateralize certain letters of credit and $5.5 million of investments that are restricted and
at maturity will provide the amounts necessary to pay interest through September 2007 on the 4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due
2024.

The increase in our aggregate balance of cash, restricted cash, short and long-term investments and restricted investments at December 31, 2006,
compared to the prior year, is primarily the result of $151.1 million of net proceeds from an equity offering in April 2006, $180.0 million of
borrowings against the San Cristobal project finance facility, and $224.0 million of proceeds from the sale of a 35% interest in our San Cristobal
project to Sumitomo Corporation. In addition, our aggregate cash and investment balances increased as a result of $5.7 million of net proceeds
from the sale of Ordinary Shares to fund the power line construction, $3.4 million of proceeds from employee stock options exercised, $1.4
million of proceeds received from a loan from the power line contractor s parent and a net decrease in restricted cash of $103.2 million. The
increases in our cash and investment balances were all partially offset by $276.9 million invested in property, plant and equipment related to the
development of the San Cristobal project; $70.7 million used to fund operations, property holding costs and administrative costs, net of interest
and other income; the net purchase of $218.7 million of investments; $48.3 million of net premiums and liquidation payments made related to
our discretionary metals derivative positions; $6.4 million of selling costs paid related to the sale of a 35% interest in our San Cristobal project;
$0.7 million paid to the banks related to the project finance facility and payments on long-term debt (capital lease payments) of $2.2 million.

In conjunction with the sale of the 35% equity interest in the subsidiaries that own our San Cristobal project to Sumitomo, the project finance
facility agreements were amended to provide for the release to us of $70.0 million of overrun financing previously held in accounts controlled by
the lenders and approximately $5.7 million previously escrowed to meet interest payments on our subordinated notes. This $75.7 million (which
was included in the $103.2 million of net decrease in restricted cash described above)
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is now unrestricted and available to us for general corporate purposes. At December 31, 2006 these amounts were recorded as investments as
discussed above.

In connection with an amendment to our San Cristobal project finance facility, we plan to deposit approximately $90 million in restricted margin
accounts during the second quarter of 2007 as security for our metals derivative positions. See  San Cristobal Project Finance Facility below.

San Cristobal Project Finance Facility

At December 31, 2006, we had borrowed $180 million under our San Cristobal project finance facility. We borrowed an additional $20 million
in February 2007, resulting in total outstanding borrowings of $200 million as of March 27, 2007. We are required to pay a 1.0% annual
commitment fee on the undrawn amount of the facility. Interest on the outstanding amounts drawn under the facility is based on LIBOR plus a
credit spread, which at December 31, 2006 was 3.3%. The first principal payment under the facility is due in December 2008 with final maturity
in December 2012. In connection with the transaction with Sumitomo, Sumitomo has guaranteed the repayment of 35% of the facility until
completion, as defined in the facility. We have guaranteed repayment of the remaining 65% of the facility until completion. Project completion
must occur by December 31, 2008.

The project finance facility contains covenants that require us to, among other things, maintain certain security interests, financial ratios after
project completion, insurance coverage, minimum sales contracts and metals price protection contracts as well as other requirements. Failure to
comply with these covenants or to cure related violations within specified periods could result in an event of default, pursuant to which the
project lenders could require repayment of all amounts outstanding under the facility and cash settlement of any derivative liabilities associated
with the San Cristobal project.

As a result of the restatement described above, we breached certain representations and covenants regarding the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. On March 15, 2007, we obtained waivers from the project lenders for these breaches and any related
events of default. We have also obtained waivers of compliance with certain technical covenant violations and confirmation that the effects of
the restatement do not constitute a material adverse effect, as defined.

Pursuant to the covenants contained in the facility, we are required annually to submit a revised Construction Budget, Operating Plan, and
Financial Model (collectively the Updated Plan ) for the San Cristobal project by November 1. We are currently operating under the Construction
Budget, Operating Plan, and Financial Model initially approved by the lenders when the facility was entered into (the Initial Plan ) which remains
in effect until the Updated Plan is approved. We submitted our Updated Plan for 2007 in a timely manner. The Updated Plan required prices of
$5.25 per ounce for silver, $0.48 per pound for zinc and $0.26 per pound for lead, compared to spot prices as of March 27, 2007 of $13.27, $1.45
and $0.84, respectively. The Updated Plan also reflected higher operating costs than previously assumed primarily as a result of the impact of
record high commodity prices. A large portion of Apex s operating costs are directly influenced by these high commodities prices, including

costs for diesel, reagents, and tires. The low metals prices required by the facility coupled with higher current operating costs resulted in

projected cash flow that would be insufficient to meet certain other facility requirements, including minimum cash flows and debt service

coverage ratios required after completion. As a result, we requested that the lenders approve certain waivers and amendments to permit the use

of higher metals prices. In early January 2007, the lenders rejected the Updated Plan.

As provided by the terms of the project finance facility, we have since been engaged in discussions with the lenders to agree upon a mutually
acceptable Updated Plan. The lenders have proposed higher metals prices than those contained in the agreement that will allow us to present an
Updated Plan that will meet the project loan facility s financial requirements. The lenders have also proposed an adjustment to the facility s
repayment schedule to require a larger percentage of principal to be repaid in earlier years and an increase in the mandatory cash flow sweep
from 35% to 45% of excess cash flow. We and
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Sumitomo have agreed to purchase zinc puts covering approximately 73,000 tonnes of zinc production in 2008 and 2009. We will also fund a
$91 million margin account with the two banks holding the derivative positions and Sumitomo will provide a post-completion guarantee of the
derivative positions in the amount of $49 million. This support will be decreased by 33% at the end of each of the years from 2008 through
2010.

We and Sumitomo have accepted these proposals and amendments to the facility agreements and an Updated Plan for submission to the lenders
are being drafted. Once the amendments to the agreements and Updated Plan are complete, an affirmative vote by the lenders is required for
final approval. At the date of this filing, formal approval of the amendments to the agreements and the Update Plan by the requisite majority of
lenders has not yet been obtained. While there can be no assurances that lender approval will be obtained, we believe the necessary amendments
and the Updated Plan will be approved by the requisite majority of lenders.

If the amendments and the Updated Plan are not approved by the lenders, until such time as approval is obtained, we would be required to
operate in all material respects, as defined by the facility, in compliance with the Initial Plan. If our operations fail to comply with the Initial Plan
in all material respects, the lenders could declare a default and require us to settle all amounts outstanding under the facility and derivatives
liability. Because our current projections indicate that cash flows and operating ratios will exceed those in the Initial Plan, we believe that
operations will comply in all material respects with the Initial Plan. However, we cannot predict what actions the lenders might take if they deem
that we are not in material compliance with the Initial Plan.

If an event of default occurs, the lenders could require immediate payment of amounts outstanding under the facility and settlement of the
derivatives liability. If such a demand were successfully made, we would require additional debt or equity financing in order to satisfy our
obligations. There is no assurance that we would be able to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms, or at all. We had liabilities in excess
of our assets at December 31, 2006, due to our derivative liability.

Sources and Uses of Funds

During the third quarter 2006, we revised our estimate for the total amount of project funding required for the San Cristobal project from
January 1, 2004 through the beginning of production scheduled for the third quarter of 2007 to approximately $650 million or an 8% increase
over the original estimate developed in December 2004. This amount includes all estimated costs required to commence production at San
Cristobal, including all engineering, procurement and construction costs, as well as estimates for constant-dollar escalation and contingencies.
The estimate excludes $22 million advanced through the issuance of Ordinary Shares to the company constructing the power line, $6 million
advanced to or escrowed for the company constructing the port facilities and approximately $43 million of working capital. Advances to the
power line and port facility providers are expected to be recouped through credits applied against payments for the contracted services.
Excluding the power line and port advances, we have spent approximately $518 million on the Project through December 31, 2006. In addition
to the amounts above, we have incurred interest and other financing costs related to the project finance facility of approximately $20 million and
anticipate an additional $10 million prior to the start up of operations.

During 2007, we expect to spend approximately $160 million on the San Cristobal project, representing the remainder of the approximately
$650 million total project cost estimate, plus an additional $40 million of working capital and $10 million of project financing interest costs prior
to start up of operations. The preceding amounts include $50 million in total project costs and $16 million in working capital in excess of the
original estimates. We expect to fund these cash requirements by liquidating the restricted investments already set aside for this purpose,
drawing the remaining funds available from the project financing facility, and using existing cash and investments to fund our 65% of the
requirements in excess of the original estimates, with Sumitomo funding the remaining 35%. In addition, during the next twelve months we
expect to spend approximately $18 million on general corporate costs and approximately
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$10 million on interest payments related to the outstanding convertible debt. Our current plans call for expenditures of approximately $14
million on exploration efforts during the next twelve months. We plan to fund these expenditures from our existing cash and investment balances
and from interest and other income. In addition we expect operating cash flows to begin during the third quarter of 2007. In addition, as
discussed above, we plan to deposit approximately $91 million in restricted fixed margin account during the second quarter of 2007 as security

for our metals derivative positions.

Because we did not file our annual report on Form 10-K on or before the deadline prescribed by the SEC, we will be unable to use our existing
shelf registration statements to complete public equity or debt offerings until at least March 2008. While we still may be able to access public
capital markets by filing a new registration statement, such offerings may be more difficult and subject to greater delay in the absence of an

effective shelf registration statement.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off balance sheet arrangements.

Table of Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2006:

Contractual Obligations Less Than 2-3 4-5

(thousands) Total 1 Year Years Y ears Thereafter
Convertible debt s psoos7 5 | s | s | s psoos7
Interest payments convertible debt 76,595 9,574 19,149 19,149 28,723
[Bank debt 180,000 64,620 95,220 20,160
Interest payments bank debt 60,798 16,084 30,310 14,060 344
Capital leases 17,349 2,993 5,451 3,693 5,212
Interest payments on capital leases 9,184 2,397 3,467 2,129 1,191
(Operating leases 879 374 505

San Cristobal property leases 6,800 K400 800 800 4,800
[Purchase obligations(1) 49,695 9,695

Fair value of open derivative positions 818,198 39,080 570,982 207,696 439

(1) The amount does not include an approximately additional $60 million of purchase obligations the Company

intends to commit to in the future to complete the San Cristobal Project.

Total interest payments due on the convertible debt includes only those payments expected to be made through 2014 based on our expectation
that the convertible debt holders may require us to repurchase the notes in 2014. The bank debt is all related to the project finance facility and
reflects the anticipated new amortization schedule discussed above in Liquidity and Capital Resources. Interest on the project finance facility is
based on LIBOR plus a credit spread, and the above interest calculation is based on LIBOR at December 31, 2006. As provided in the proposed

amendments to the San Cristobal project finance facility (see

Liquidity and Capital Resources ), the payment schedule for the project finance

facility may be modified to reflect total payments of $115.9 million in years two and three and $64.1 million in years four and five. The
operating lease obligations are related to the office facilities at our corporate headquarters. The San Cristobal property lease payments are
payments we must make to the Bolivian government to maintain our rights to the San Cristobal mining concessions. The purchase obligations
are related to orders placed for long lead time equipment being purchased for the San Cristobal project.

From time to time we enter into lease option agreements related to exploration properties that are of interest to us. These agreements typically
contain escalating lease payments required to maintain our exploration rights to the property. Such agreements are not included in the above

table because exploration success is historically low and the agreements can be terminated by us at any time.
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Regulatory Compliance

Our current and future exploration and development activities, as well as our future mining and processing operations, are subject to various
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the countries in which we conduct our activities. These laws and regulations govern the protection
of the environment, prospecting, development, production, taxes, labor standards, occupational health, mine safety, toxic substances and other
matters. We expect to be able to comply with those laws and do not believe that compliance will have a material adverse effect on our
competitive position. We intend to obtain all licenses and permits required by all applicable regulatory agencies in connection with our mining
operations and exploration activities. We intend to maintain standards of environmental compliance consistent with regulatory requirements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The selection and application of accounting policies is an important process that has developed as our business activities have evolved and as the
accounting rules have changed. Accounting rules generally do not involve a selection among alternatives, but involve an implementation and
interpretation of existing rules, and the use of judgment, to the specific set of circumstances existing in our business. Discussed below are the
accounting policies that we believe are critical to our financial statements due to the degree of uncertainty regarding the estimates or
assumptions involved and the magnitude of the asset, liability, revenue or expense being reported.

Reserves

Reserve estimates involve subjective judgment and are based on numerous assumptions that may later prove to be inaccurate. These estimates
include engineering evaluations of assay values derived from samplings of drill holes and other openings. Additionally, changes in the market
prices of metals may render certain reserves containing relatively lower grades of mineralization uneconomic to mine. Further, availability of
permits, changes in operating and capital costs, and other factors could materially and adversely affect ore reserves. Our current proven and
probable reserve estimates at San Cristobal total approximately 251 million tonnes of ore grading 55 grams per tonne silver, 1.54% zinc and
0.53% lead, containing approximately 446 million ounces of silver, 8.53 billion pounds of zinc and 2.92 billion pounds of lead. The reserves are
based on $8.51 per ounce silver, $0.86 per pound zinc and $0.47 per pound lead. These prices represent the three-year average prices for each of
the metals as per guidelines established by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Mineral properties

When we determine that a mineral property has proven and probable reserves, subsequent development costs are capitalized to mineral
properties. When mineral properties are developed and operations commence, capitalized costs are charged to operations using the
units-of-production method over proven and probable reserves. Beginning September 1, 1997, costs associated with our San Cristobal project
have been capitalized. Capitalized costs at San Cristobal include all direct costs associated with the project, certain interest costs, depreciation on
assets being used to construct the project and other internally allocated costs directly associated with the advancement of the project.

Derivative positions

We record all open derivative positions on our consolidated balance sheet at estimated fair value. Changes in the fair value of the open derivative
positions are recorded each period in earnings. Through December 31, 2006, we had not accounted for any transactions as hedge transactions.
Therefore, all open
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derivative positions have been adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each reporting period with the related change in value recorded to
earnings.

We determine the fair value of our open derivative positions by applying market values obtained from the counterparties holding our derivative
positions. We independently verify that the values received from the counterparties are based on major commodities price indices such as the
LME, COMEX and other available market data. (See Restatement of Prior Periods Results of Operations above for a discussion of the restated
fair market value of our open derivative liability for the periods September 30, 2005 through September 30, 2006). As of December 31, 2006,

the fair market value of our open derivative liability was a net $818.2 million.

Asset retirement obligations

We record asset retirement obligations in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations ( FAS No. 143 ), which establishes a uniform methodology for accounting for estimated reclamation and abandonment
costs. According to FAS No. 143, the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation ( ARO ) is recognized in the period in which it is
incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. An offsetting Asset Retirement Cost ( ARC ) is capitalized as part of the carrying
value of the assets with which it is associated and depreciated over the useful life of the asset. During 2006 and the second half of 2005, we
conducted certain activities at our San Cristobal property, primarily certain earth works and plant construction, that will require future
reclamation and closure expenditures. Prior to the second half of 2005 there were no activities that resulted in an ARO.

See Note 2 of the accompanying Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K for additional accounting policies.

ITEM7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

Our outstanding debt consists primarily of our 4.0% and 2.875% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024 and amounts borrowed under
our $225 million project finance facility for the construction of the San Cristobal project. The Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes bear
interest at a fixed rate and thus do not have exposure to interest rate changes. The project finance facility bears interest at LIBOR plus a credit
spread. As of December 31, 2006, we had borrowed $180 million under the facility. Assuming the full $225 million amount is borrowed under
the facility, an increase of 0.5% in the LIBOR would result in an annual increase in interest expense of $1.125 million. We have not entered into
any agreements to hedge against unfavorable changes in interest rates but may in the future manage our exposure to interest rate risk.

We invest excess cash in U.S. government and debt securities rated investment grade or better. The rates received on such investments may
fluctuate with changes in economic conditions. As a result, our investment income may fall short of expectations during periods of lower interest
rates. Based on the average cash balances outstanding during 2006, a 1% decrease in interest rates would have resulted in a reduction in interest
income for the period of approximately $4.2 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Although most of our expenditures are in U.S. dollars, certain purchases of labor, operating supplies and capital assets are denominated in
Bolivianos, Euros or other currencies. As a result, currency exchange fluctuations may impact the costs of our operations. Specifically, the
appreciation of Bolivianos against the U.S. dollar may result in an increase in operating expenses and capital costs at the San Cristobal project in
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U.S. dollar terms. To reduce this risk, we maintain minimum cash balances in all foreign currencies, including Bolivianos, and complete most of
our purchases, including purchases relating to the San Cristobal project, in U.S. dollars.

We have previously engaged in a limited amount of currency hedging activities primarily related to an equipment order for the San Cristobal
project that was denominated in Euros. At December 31, 2006, we did not hold any foreign currency derivative positions.

Commodity Price Risk

None of our properties are in production and, consequently, we do not have any current revenue from sales. When the San Cristobal project
begins production, our primary source of income will be from sales of concentrates containing silver, zinc and lead. As a result, changes in the
price of any of these commodities could significantly affect our results of operations and cash flows.

To complete the San Cristobal project finance facility, we were required to implement price protection for a portion of our planned silver, zinc
and lead production from San Cristobal. We have entered into contracts utilizing forward sales, puts and calls. Non-cash mark-to-market gains
and losses from these and other derivative positions may fluctuate substantially from period to period based on spot and forward prices and
option volatilities. The actual final financial impact of the derivative positions required by the project financing facility will not be known until
the positions are closed on their future settlement dates. Our outstanding derivative positions represent 4%, 13% and 17% of planned
life-of-mine payable production of silver, zinc and lead at San Cristobal but represent a significantly higher proportion of our planned production
during the six years in which the derivative positions are in place. For the first six years of production, we have hedged approximately 10%,

24% and 32% of planned production of silver, zinc and lead, respectively. See the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements,
Note 9, Sales Contracts and Derivative Instruments

As a result of rising commodity prices, we recorded non-cash mark-to-market losses of $672.5 million on our open derivative positions for the
year ended December 31, 2006. During the same period, we made net cash payments of $48.3 million and realized a $42.6 million loss to settle
the majority of certain discretionary hedge positions that were not required by the project financing facility. As of December 31, 2006, the fair
value of our open derivative positions reflected an $818.2 million liability. Non-cash mark-to-market gains and losses from the open derivative
positions may fluctuate substantially from period to period based on spot and forward prices and option volatilities. However, if current spot
prices continue into the future, we anticipate that the increased revenue from production which is not protected will generate a significant benefit
to future earnings and cash flows. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Results of
Operations .

ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary information filed as part of this Item 8 are listed under Part IV, Item 15, Exhibits,
Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K and contained in this Form 10-K at page F-1.

ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
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ITEM9A: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Consideration of the Restatement

As discussed in Notes 2 and 19 to our consolidated financial statements and as also discussed in Item 7 in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we
have restated our consolidated financial statements as of and for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, the year ended December 31, 2005, and
for each of the three quarters in the nine months period ended September 30, 2006, to correct an understatement of our derivatives liabilities as
of each of those periods end dates.

Our decision to restate our consolidated financial statements follows a re-assessment of the available market information related to our metals
derivatives and the conclusion that quoted prices from trading institutions are a more reliable indicator of fair value than the independent third
party price projections previously used by us. Accordingly, we concluded that our metals derivative liability was significantly understated for the
reporting periods noted above. The effects of the restatement are reflected in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes
included herein.

In connection with the restatement, management identified two material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting at
December 31, 2006. See  Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting presented below.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

‘We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ( the Exchange Act ), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
Disclosure Committee and management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b). Based upon, and as of the date of this
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective
because of the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as described below.

Notwithstanding the material weaknesses described below, management believes that the consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K are fairly presented in all material respects in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of our assets,

e provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
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receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company,
and

e provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company s assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness as to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making its
assessment, management used the criteria set forth in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ( COSO ).

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

Based on its evaluation, management has concluded that the following material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting existed as
of December 31, 2006:

e The Company did not maintain effective controls over the valuation of the metals derivatives positions related to
its project finance facility. Specifically, effective internal controls were not designed and operating to accurately

assess available market data in the valuation of its metals derivatives. This control deficiency resulted in the
restatement of the Company s 2005 annual consolidated financial statements; interim consolidated financial statements
for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and for each of the first three quarters of 2006; and an audit adjustment to
the Company s 2006 annual consolidated financial statements. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a
material misstatement of the Company s derivatives liabilities, gain on sale of interest in subsidiaries, minority interest
in subsidiaries, minority interest in loss of consolidated subsidiaries, and in the accumulated deficit accounts, that
would result in a material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be
prevented or detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material
weakness.

e The Company did not maintain effective controls over the monitoring of its compliance with certain covenants
related to its project finance facility. Specifically, effective internal controls, including monitoring by management
with the requisite level of experience commensurate with our loan compliance requirements, were not designed and
operating to enable the identification of covenant violations which affect certain of the Company s financial statement
disclosures and presentations. This control deficiency could result in the misclassification of the amount outstanding
under the project finance facility, as well as the derivatives liabilities as non-current liabilities, that would result in a
material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.

Because of these material weaknesses, management has concluded that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on the criteria set forth in the COSO framework.
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Management s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, has been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Remediation of Material Weaknesses

To address the material weaknesses described above, management has implemented a remediation plan which will supplement the existing
controls of the Company, as follows:

e strengthen controls to ensure that management accurately assesses all available market information in the
valuation of the Company s metal derivatives.

e hire a Senior Treasury Analyst, with a level of experience to match our loan compliance requirements, who will
have direct responsibility to closely monitor compliance with the Company s project finance facility and other
financing arrangements. Training will also be provided to key personnel regarding the loan compliance requirements.

The material weaknesses will be fully remediated when, in the opinion of the Company s management, the revised control processes have been
operating for a sufficient period of time to provide reasonable assurance as to their effectiveness. The remediation and ultimate resolution of the
Company s material weaknesses will be reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Company s Board of Directors.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes to the Company s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act)
during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III

ITEM10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding directors of Apex Silver is incorporated by reference to the section entitled Election of Directors in our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the 2007 annual meeting of shareholders (the Proxy
Statement ). See PartI Items 1 and 2: Business and Properties Management for information regarding executive officers of Apex Silver.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or
controller or those performing similar functions. A copy of the code of ethics is available on Apex Silver s website at www.apexsilver.com. To
view, click on About Apex Silver on the left side of the page and then click on Corporate Governance . In the event our board of directors
approves an amendment to or waiver from any provision of our code of ethics, we will disclose the required information pertaining to such
amendment or waiver on our website.

ITEM11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption Executive Compensation and Other Information in the Proxy Statement, which
information (except for the report of the board of directors on executive compensation and the performance graph) is incorporated by reference
in this report on Form 10-K.

ITEM12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption Security Ownership of Principal Shareholders and Management in the Proxy
Statement, which information is incorporated by reference in this report on Form 10-K.

ITEM13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Reference is made to the information contained under the caption Certain Transactions contained in the Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated by reference in this report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 14:  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Reference is made to the information contained under the caption Audit Committee Report contained in the Proxy Statement, which information
is incorporated by reference in this report on Form 10-K.
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PART IV

ITEM 15:  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

() Documents filed as part of this report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference:

(1) Our consolidated financial statements are listed on the Index to Financial Statements on Page F-1 to this report.

) Financial Statement Schedules (omitted because they are either not required, are not applicable, or the required
information is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements or related notes).

3) The following exhibits are filed with this report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference.

EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number  Description of Exhibits

3.1 Amended and restated Memorandum of Association of the Company.(1)

32 Amended and restated Articles of Association of the Company.(1)

4.1 Specimen of certificates representing the Company s ordinary shares, par value U.S. $0.01 each.(2)

4.2 Form of Warrant issued in connection with the January 2004 private placement.(3)

4.3 Indenture, dated March 16, 2004, between Apex Silver Mines Limited and The Bank of New York, as Trustee.(4)

4.4 Form of Global Note, dated March 16, 2004.(4)

4.5 Form of Global Note, dated April 1, 2004.(5)

4.6 Form of Warrant issued in connection with the offering of our ordinary shares pursuant to a prospectus
supplement filed April 3, 2003.(6)

4.7 Form of Warrant issued in connection with the offerings of our ordinary shares pursuant to prospectus
supplements filed May 22, 2002 and September 10, 2003.(6)

4.8 Indenture, dated October 15, 2004, between Apex Silver Mines Limited and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee.(7)

4.9 Form of Global Note, dated October 15, 2004.(7)

4.10 Form of Global Note, dated December 14, 2004.(8)

10.1 Management Services Agreement among the Company and its subsidiaries.(9)

10.2 Employees Share Option Plan(10)

10.3 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.(11)

10.4 Form of Incentive Share Option Agreement pursuant to the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.(12)

10.5 Form of Restricted Shares Award Agreement pursuant to the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.(12)

10.6 Form of Option Grant to Non-Employee Directors(13)

10.7 Form of Change of Control Agreement.(14)
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10.8

10.9

10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15

10.16

10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
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Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 16, 2004, among Apex Silver Mines Limited, Barclays Bank PLC
and Citigroup Global Markets Inc.(4)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 15, 2004, by and between Apex Silver Mines Limited and
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.(7)

Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of October 15, 2004, among Apex Silver Mines Limited as
Pledgor, The Bank of New York as Trustee and The Bank of New York as Collateral Agent.(7)

Amended and Restated Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement, dated December 14, 2004 among Apex Silver
Mines Limited as Pledgor, The Bank of New York as Trustee and The Bank of New York as Collateral Agent.(8)
EPCM Services Supply Agreement between Minera San Cristobal, S.A. and Aker Kvaerner Metals Inc., Dated
November 8, 2004.(14)

Open Pit Contract Mining Services Agreement between Minera San Cristobal, S.A. and Washington Group
Bolivia, S.R.L.(12)

Loan Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, between Minera San Cristobal, S.A., the Lenders identified therein and

BNP Paribas, as Administrative Agent.(16)

Loan Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, between Minera San Cristobal, S.A. and Corporacion Andina de
Fomento.(16)

Common Security Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, among Minera San Cristobal, S.A., Apex Silver Mines
Sweden AB, Apex Luxembourg S.A.R.L Apex Metals GmbH, BNP Paribas, Barclays Capital PLC, JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., Corporacion Andina de Fomento and the secured parties and hedge banks party thereto.(16)
Sponsor Pledge Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, between Apex Silver Mines Limited and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A.(16)

Completion Agreement, dated December 1, 2005, among Apex Silver Mines Limited, BNP Paribas, Barclays
Capital PLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.(16)

Retirement Agreement and Release dated February 13, 2006 between Keith R. Hulley, Apex Silver Mines
Corporation and Apex Silver Mines Limited.(17)

Restricted Shares Award Agreement, dated February 21, 2006, between Apex Silver Mines Limited and Keith R.
Hulley.(17)

Option Agreement, dated September 25, 2006, between Apex Silver Mines Limited and Sumitomo
Corporation.(18)

MSC Shareholders Agreement, dated September 25, 2006, between Apex Silver Mines Sweden AB, Apex
Luxembourg S.A R.L., Gotlex Lageraktiebolag nr. 451, and Minera San Cristobal, S.A.(18)

Deferred Payments Agreement, dated September 25, 2006, between Apex Silver Mines Sweden AB and
Sumitomo Corporation.(18)
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10.25
10.26

10.27
10.28
10.29
21
23.1
232
31.1

31.2

32.1
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Omnibus Amendment Agreement, dated September 20, 2006, between Minera San Cristobal, S.A., Apex Silver
Mines Limited, Apex Silver Mines Sweden AB, Apex Luxembourg S.A.R.L, Apex Metals GmbH, Apex Silver
Finance Ltd., Gotlex Lageraktiebolag nr. 451, Comercial Metales Blancos AB, BNP Paribas, Barclays Capital,
Corporacion Andina de Fomento; JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., the Senior Lenders party thereto and the Hedge
Banks party thereto.(18)

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated September 25, 2006, between Apex Silver Mines Limited, Apex
Luxembourg S.A.R.L., Apex Silver Mines Sweden AB and Sumitomo Corporation.(18)

Separation Agreement and Release, dated June 9, 2006, between Mark A. Lettes and Apex Silver Mines
Corporation.(15)

Underwriting Agreement, dated April 6, 2006, between Apex Silver Mines Limited and Harris Nesbitt Corp.(15)
Non-Employee Directors Share Plan, as amended.(19)

Form of Indemnification Agreement.(20)

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consent of Mine Reserves Associates, Inc.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and

Rule 15d-14(a) (Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and

Rule 15d-14(a) (Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

Certificate of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 (Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

ey

@

Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to our amended Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (No. 333-34685) filed

November 18, 1997.

3

C)

&)

Q)

@)

®)
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Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 17, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 2, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 18, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004.
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) Incorporated by reference to our amended Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (No. 333-34685) filed
October 9, 1997.

(10) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998.
(11) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-117202) filed July 7, 2004.
(12) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(13) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-53185) filed May 20, 1998.

(14) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004.

(15) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.
(16) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 8, 2005.

(17) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 27, 2006.

(18) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006.

(19) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(20) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 15, 2007.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed April 2, 2007 on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

Registrant

By: /s/ JEFFREY G. CLEVENGER
Jeffrey G. Clevenger
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant, in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ JEFFREY G. CLEVENGER President, Chief Executive Officer and April 2, 2007
Jeffrey G. Clevenger Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s HARRY M. CONGER Director April 2, 2007
Harry M. Conger

/s OVE HOEGH Director April 2, 2007

Ove Hoegh

/s/ KEITH R. HULLEY Director April 2, 2007
Keith R. Hulley

/sl KEVIN R. MORANO Director April 2, 2007
Kevin R. Morano

/s/ TERRY M. PALMER Director April 2, 2007
Terry M. Palmer

/sl CHARLES B. SMITH Director April 2, 2007
Charles B. Smith

/s/ PAUL SOROS Director April 2, 2007

Paul Soros
/s GERALD J. MALYS Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial April 2, 2007
Gerald J. Malys Officer) and Senior Vice President, Finance
/s/ ROBERT P. VOGELS Vice President and Controller April 2, 2007
Robert P. Vogels (Principal Accounting Officer)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Apex Silver Mines Limited:

We have completed integrated audits of Apex Silver Mines Limited s consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our
opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
changes in shareholders equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Apex Silver Mines Limited and its
subsidiaries (a development stage enterprise) at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and, cumulatively, for the period from December 22, 1994 (date of inception) to
December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2(s) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company restated its 2005 consolidated financial statements.

As discussed in Note 2(1) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for stock compensation
effective January 1, 2006.

As disclosed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the formal approval by the requisite majority of the lender consortium of the
2007 Construction Budget, Operating Plan and Financial Model as required by the terms of the San Cristobal Project Financing Facility has not
yet been obtained.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management s assessment, included in Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under
item 9A, that Apex Silver Mines Limited did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, because

the Company did not maintain effective controls over (1) the valuation of its metals derivatives positions related to its project finance facility and
(2) the monitoring of its compliance with certain covenants related to its project finance facility, based on criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management s assessment and on the effectiveness of the
Company s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
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and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following material weaknesses have been
identified and included in management s assessment as of December 31, 2006:

1. The Company did not maintain effective controls over the valuation of its metals derivative positions related
to its project finance facility. Specifically, effective internal controls were not designed and operating to accurately
assess available market data in the valuation of its metals derivatives. This control deficiency resulted in the
restatement of the Company s 2005 annual consolidated financial statements; interim consolidated financial statements
for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and for each of the first three quarters of 2006; and, an audit adjustment to
the Company s 2006 annual consolidated financial statements. Additionally, this control deficiency could result in a
material misstatement of the Company s derivatives liabilities, gain on sale of interest in subsidiaries, minority interest
in subsidiaries, minority interest in loss of consolidated subsidiaries, and in the accumulated deficit accounts that
would result in a material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be
prevented or detected.

2. The Company did not maintain effective controls over the monitoring of its compliance with certain
covenants related to its project finance facility. Specifically, effective internal controls, including monitoring by
management with the requisite level of experience commensurate with the Company s loan compliance requirements,
were not designed and operating to enable the identification of covenant violations which effect certain of the
Company s financial statement disclosures and presentations. This control deficiency could result in the
misclassification of the amount outstanding under the project finance facility, as well as the derivatives liabilities as
non-current liabilities, that would result in a material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial
statements that would not be prevented or detected.
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These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2006
consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting does not
affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management s assessment that Apex Silver Mines Limited did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by
the COSO. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the
control criteria, Apex Silver Mines Limited has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the COSO

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
April 2, 2007
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investments
Restricted investments
Ore inventories
Materials and supply inventory
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Current assets
Property, plant and equipment (net)
Ore inventories
Deferred financing costs
Value added tax recoverable
Investments
Restricted investments
Other
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Derivatives at fair value
Current portion of long term debt
Current liabilities
Long term debt
Derivatives at fair value
Deferred gain on sale of asset
Asset retirement obligation
Total liabilities
Minority interest in subsidiaries (Note 12)
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Shareholders equity (Deficit)
Ordinary Shares, $.01 par value, 175,000,000 shares authorized; 58,577,700 and
50,444,890 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit during development stage
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders equity (Deficit)
Total liabilities and shareholders equity (Deficit)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
December 31, 2005
2006 Restated

(in thousands except share data)

$ 49,840
31,942
325,536
65,343
3,183
3,149
9,984
488,977
641,758
21,341
19,485
54,158
42,255

2,122
$ 1,270,096

$ 47,979
3,405
39,080
4,408
94,872
492,195
779,118
1,400
5,761
1,373,346
40

586

669,487

(773,339 )
(24 )
(103,290 )
$ 1,270,096

$

4,808

135,182
132,000

67,49

5,824

1

345,305
379,138

21,604
20,052

12,392

2,020
$

$

3,096
5,652
2,270

780,511

74,487

85,505
320,021

145,7

2,003

19

553,248

34

504

486,762
(259,794

(243

227,229

$

780,511
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Expressed in United States dollars)

The years ended December 31,

2005

2006 Restated 2004

(in thousands except per share data)
Operating income and expenses:
Exploration $ (8,316 ) $ (5,235 ) $ (5,306
Administrative (21,247 ) (17,860 ) (18,162
Gain (loss) commodity derivatives (715,120 ) (151,515 ) 751
Gain (loss) foreign exchange and currency
derivatives 885 (678 ) 1,406
Asset retirement accretion expense (406 )
Amortization and depreciation. (403 ) (210 ) (55
Total operating expenses (744,607 ) (175,498 ) (21,366
Other income and expenses:
Interest and other income 19,678 14,295 6,108
Royalty income (Note 15) 1,619
Gain on sale of interest in subsidiaries 199,600
Gain on extinguishment of debt 2,875 6,765
Interest expense and other borrowing costs
(net of $26,146, $6,895 and $2,478
capitalized during 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively) (774 ) (7,335 ) (3,587
Total other income and expenses 222,998 13,725 2,521
Loss before minority interest and income
taxes (521,609 ) (161,773 ) (18,845
Income tax expense (749 ) 379 )
Minority interest in loss of consolidated
subsidiary (Note 12) 8,813 16
Net loss $ (513545 )  $ (162,136 ) $ (18,845
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities 24 ) 311 ) 68
Reclassification for loss on securities
included in net income 243
Comprehensive loss $ (513326 ) $ (162,447 ) $ (18,777
Net loss per Ordinary Share basic and
diluted(1) $ (9.09 ) $ (3.34 ) $ 0.41
Weighted average Ordinary Shares
outstanding 56,498,416 48,615,586 46,528,341
(1) Potential dilutive Ordinary Shares were antidilutive for all periods presented.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the period
from

December 22,
1994 (inception)
through
December 31,
2006

$ (81,747
(91,105
(865,668

1,613
(406
(1,799
(1,039,112

54,350
1,619
199,600
9,640

(11,696
253,513

(785,599
(1,128

13,388
$ (773,339

(267

243
$ (773,363

)

)
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Issuance of shares upon incorporation
December 22, 1994 ($0.85 per share)

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 1994

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 1995

Issuance of shares in private placement ($8.00
per share)

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 1996

Purchase of minority interest in ASC Bolivia
($11.00 per share)

Issuance of shares to associates ($11.00 per
share)

Issuance of shares for services ($1.49 per
share)

Stock option compensation expense

Issuance of shares upon Initial Public Offering
($11.00 per share)

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 1997

Exchange of Apex LDC shares

Stock options exercised ($7.91 per share)
Stock awards ($8.50 per share)

Unearned compensation

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 1998

Stock options exercised ($8.77 per share)
Sale of Ordinary Share units ($12.00 per unit)
Commissions paid in stock ($12.00 per share)
Stock awards ($12.06 per share)

Unearned compensation (net)

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 1999

Stock compensation ($10.88 per share)

Stock awards ($9.13 per share)

Unearned compensation

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 2000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Additional

Ordinary Shares Paid-in
Shares Amount Capital
(in thousands except share data)
8,822,546 $ 882 $ 5571
8,822,546 88.2 5,571
8,822,546 88.2 5,571
4,256,700 42.6 32,407
13,079,246 130.8 37,978
268,496 2.7 2,951
138,595 1.4 1,523
115,207 1.2 232

417
5,523,372 552 54,720
19,124,916 191.2 97,820
7,079,006 70.8 (71
25,001 0.3 197
21,838 0.2 185

(186
26,250,761 262.5 97,946
25,549 0.3 224
8,090,132 80.9 94,005
84,184 0.8 (1
15,542 0.2 187

(87
34,466,168 344.7 192,275
5,100 0.1 55
15,361 0.2 140

273
34,486,629 344.9 192,743

EQUITY

Accumulated
Deficit

$

(213
13
(1,861
(2,074

(11,723
(13,798

(14,985
(28,783

(11,030
(39,812

(7,979
(47,791

(7,740
(55,531

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive Total

income
(loss)

Shareholders
Equity

$ 5,660
13
5,446
(1,861
3,585

32,449
(11,723
24,311

2,953
1,525

233
417

54,775
(14,985
69,229

198
186
(186
(11,030
58,397
224
94,086

188

(87
(7,979
144,828
55

140
273
(7,740
137,557

)
)

)

)
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company (Continued)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Balance, December 31, 2000

Stock to acquire mineral rights ($9.43 per
share)

Stock options exercised ($10.36 per share)
Stock issued as note payment ($10.95 per
share)

Stock ($11.04 per share) and options to
consultants

Stock awards (net) ($9.27 per share)

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 2001

Sale of Ordinary Shares ($13.10 per unit)
Stock to acquire mineral rights ($15.37 per
share)

Stock options exercised ($9.12 per share)
Stock issued as note payment ($16.19 per
share)

Stock ($13.34 per share) and options to
consultants

Stock awards (net) ($12.95 per share)
Offering costs

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 2002

Stock options exercised ($9.77 per share)
Stock Warrants exercised ($12.92 per share)
Stock ($15.13 per share) and warrants to
consultants

Stock awards (net) ($16.90 per share)
Stock issued as note payment ($14.53 per
share)

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 2003

Stock options exercised ($11.03 per share)
Stock awards granted ($17.48 per share)
Stock to consultants ($19.64 per share)
Sale of Ordinary Shares net, ($21.02 per
share)

Fair value of stock options granted

Stock option modification costs associated
with retirement of the Chairman, a Board
member and an employee

Unrealized gain on marketable equity
securites

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2004

EQUITY
Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive Total
Ordinary Shares Paid-in Accumulated income Shareholders
Shares Amount Capital Deficit (loss) Equity
(in thousands except share data)
34,486,629 $ 3449 $ 192,743 $ (55531 ) $ $ 137,557
96,136 1.0 906 907
39,119 0.4 405 405
70,875 0.7 775 776
36,000 0.4 525 525
73,638 0.7 678 679
(8,584 ) (8,584
34,802,397 348.0 196,032 (64,115 ) 132,266
500,000 5.0 6,545 6,550
58,307 0.6 892 892
555,244 5.6 5,057 5,063
58,895 0.6 953 954
204,655 2.0 3,561 3,563
88,819 0.9 1,149 1,150
(53 ) (53
(8,654 ) (8,654
36,268,317 362.7 214,137 (72,769 ) 141,731
317,220 32 3,096 3,099
60,000 0.6 775 775
137,987 14 2911 2,912
79,829 0.8 1,348 1,349
11,287 0.1 164 164
(6,044 ) (6,044
36,874,640 368.7 222,430 (78,813 ) 143,986
159,700 1.6 1,760 1,762
228,500 2.3 2,718 2,720
23,681 0.2 465 465
10,393,276 103.9 208,508 208,612
3,220 3,220
4,128 4,128
68 68
(18,845 ) (18,845
47,679,797 $ 476.7 $ 443,229 $ (97,658 ) $ 68 $ 346,116

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company (Continued)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Balance, December 31, 2004

Stock options exercised ($9.37 per share)
Stock granted as compenstaion ($17.63 per
share)

Stock compensation accrued

Fair value of stock options granted

Stock to consultants ($16.06 per share)
Stock to construct power line ($14.66 per
share)

Shares issued to retire debt, ($15.59 per
share)

Shares issued to purchase common stock of
unrelated entity, ($15.58 per share)
Unrealized loss on marketable equity
securites

Net loss (Restated)

Balance, December 31, 2005 (Restated)
Stock to construct power line ($15.09 per
share)

Shares issued to retire debt, ($15.77 per
share)

Stock to consultants ($15.90 per share)
Stock compensation accrued

Stock options exercised ($12.52 per share)
Stock granted as compensation ($19.30 per
share)

Sale of Ordinary Shares, net ($23.70 per
share)

Unrealized gain on marketable equity
securities

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2006

EQUITY
Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive Total
Ordinary Shares Paid-in Accumulated income Shareholders
Shares Amount Capital Deficit (loss) Equity
(in thousands except share data)
47,679,797 $ 476.7 $ 443,229 $ (97,658 ) $ 68 $ 346,116
31,118 0.3 292 292
82,500 0.8 416 417
175 175
2,381 2,381
10,647 0.1 171 171
1,134,799 11.4 16,629 16,640
1,490,029 14.9 23,220 23,235
16,000 0.2 249 249
311 ) @311 )
(162,136 ) (162,136 )
50,444,890 $ 504.4 $ 486,762 $  (259,794) $ (243) $ 227229
369,033 3.7 5,724 5,728
1,086,653 10.9 17,114 17,125
1,699 27 27
5,451 5,451
283,425 2.8 3,406 3,409
17,000 0.2
6,375,000 63.8 151,003 151,067
219 219
(513,545 ) (513,545 )
58,577,700 $ 585.8 $ 669,487 $ (773,339) $ (24 ) $ (103,290)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED
An Exploration and Development Stage Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net cash used in operating activities (Note 13)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Sale of available-for-sale investments

Purchase of held-to-maturity investments

Sale of held-to-maturity investments

Purchase of available for sale restricted investments
Sale of available for sale restricted investments
Purchase of held-to-maturity restricted investments
Sale of held-to-maturity restricted investments
Payment of derivative premiums (net)

Advance for construction of port facility

Released from (transfer to) restricted cash to collateralize

credit facility, letters of credit and interest payments, net
Procceds from sale of interest in subsidiary

Payment of selling costs related to sale of interest in
subsidiary

Capitalized costs and additions to property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of Ordinary Shares (net of
issuance costs of $4,781, $0 and $9,803 for 2006, 2005
and 2004 respectively)

Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes

Payment of debt issuance costs

Payment of notes and long term debt

Proceeds from note to power line contractor
Borrowings under project finance facility

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
Supplemental information:

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized

Income taxes paid

Supplemental non-cash transactions: (See Note 13)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2006
(in thousands)

$ (70,727 )

(627,320 )
324,842
(24,662 )
35,613
(251,500 )
279,900
(22,199 )
66,676

(48,293 )

103,239
224,000

(6,384 )

(276,924 )
(223,012 )

156,794

(671 )
2,176 )
1415

180,000

3,400

338,771

45,032

4,808

$ 49,840

$ 774
$ 541

2005
Restated

$ (24338 )

(635,950
811,990
(5,466
145,538

335
(27,343
14,776
(101
(2,000

(135,036

(168,612
(1,869

16,640

(12,421
(1,236

292
3,275
(22,932
27,740

$ 4,808

$ 10,883
$ 261

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2004

$ (9,218

(459,534
175,989
(226,295
35,069
(15,285

(26,562

(2,308
(518,926

208,612
339,987
(11,900
91

1,762
538,370
10,226
17,514

$ 27,740

$ 2859
$

For the period
from

December 22,
1994 (inception)
through
December 31,
2006

$ (177,604

(1,820,512
1,388,794
(263,869
222,620
(266,450
280,235
(49,877
81,452
(48,394
(2,000

(34,905
224,000

(6,384

(563,729
(859,019

580,357
339,987
(24,992
(5452
1,415
180,000
15,148
1,086,463
49,840

$ 49,840

$ 14,516
$ 802
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation, Recapitalization and Operations

Apex Silver Mines LDC ( Apex LDC ) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on November 23, 1994 as a 30-year limited
duration company and was capitalized on December 22, 1994. Apex Silver Mines Limited (  Apex Silver or the Company ) was formed under the
laws of the Cayman Islands in March 1996 for the sole purpose of serving as a holding company for certain ownership interests in Apex LDC. A
recapitalization was affected on August 6, 1996 whereby approximately 8.8 million or 55% of the then-outstanding shares of Apex LDC were
exchanged on a one-for-one basis for identical equity instruments of Apex Silver (the Recapitalization ). Apex Silver had no shares outstanding
prior to the Recapitalization. In conjunction with the Recapitalization, Apex Silver and the shareholders of Apex LDC entered into a Buy-Sell
Agreement (the Buy-Sell Agreement ) which was designed to maintain the same beneficial interest in Apex LDC attributable to all shareholders
of Apex LDC prior to the Recapitalization. Pursuant to the terms of the Buy-Sell Agreement, upon the request of the shareholders, Apex Silver
was required to purchase the remaining outstanding shares of Apex LDC in exchange for cash, ordinary shares or a combination thereof, at the
Company s option. During 1996 and 1998, Apex Silver acquired the remaining outstanding shares of Apex LDC by exchanging on a one-for-one
basis identical equity instruments of Apex Silver. Upon completion of the purchase of 100% of the outstanding shares of Apex LDC a total of
approximately 20.2 million shares had been exchanged with Apex LDC. The recapitalization was considered a reorganization of entities under
common control and consequently, for purposes of these financial statements, Apex Silver is considered the successor to Apex LDC and

includes the carry over basis of all of the assets and liabilities of Apex LDC, from the inception date of December 22, 1994.

The Company s principal activities are the exploration and development of mineral properties. The Company is currently an exploration and
development stage company as it has not yet realized revenues from planned operations. Activities since inception have included acquisition of
mineral interests, raising capital through debt and equity transactions and exploration and development activities. The Company is in the process
of developing its San Cristobal property located in southwestern Bolivia and expects that development activities will be complete and
commencement of operations will result in the first sale of concentrates in the third quarter 2007. Although the Company s senior corporate and
operating management have significant experience in developing, constructing, financing and operating very large mining complexes in many
countries, the Company has never developed or operated a mine or managed a mine development project and there are certain risks associated
with our ability to successfully complete the development of the San Cristobal project and commence production activities, including our ability
to achieve anticipated production volumes, manage cost increases and operate the project in accordance with the terms and covenants of our
project finance facility as described in Note 7.

The Company conducts exploration activities in Central America and South America and currently holds interests in non-producing mineral
properties in Bolivia, Mexico, Peru and Argentina.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ( GAAP ). The preparation of the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
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APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company (Continued)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in United States dollars)

the date of the consolidated financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The more
significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions relate to mineral reserves that are the basis for future cash flow
estimates utilized in impairment calculations and units-of-production depreciation, depletion and amortization calculations: environmental
reclamation and closure obligations; estimates of recoverable metals in stockpiles; valuation allowances for deferred tax assets and the fair value
of financial instruments. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Accordingly, actual results may differ significantly from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

The policies adopted, considered by management to be significant, are summarized as follows:
a. Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and San Cristobal Transportadora
de Electricidad S.A. ( SC TESA ), a variable interest entity consolidated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
No. 46R ( FIN 46 ) (see Note 20). All inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated at consolidation.

The Company consolidates more-than-50%-owned subsidiaries that it controls and entities over which control is achieved through means other
than voting rights. In cases where the Company does not own 100% of the interest in the consolidated subsidiary it recognizes a minority interest
in the subsidiary and a minority interest in the gains or losses recorded by the subsidiary. In cases in which losses applicable to the minority
interest in a subsidiary exceed the minority interest in the subsidiary, such excess and any further losses ordinarily applicable to the minority
interest are charged against the Company s interest, if the minority interest does not have any obligation to fund such losses. Future earnings, if
any, are credited to the Company to the extent that losses attributable to the minority interest were previously absorbed by the Company.

On September 25, 2006 the Company sold 35% interests in the subsidiary holding its San Cristobal project, the subsidiary that will market the

San Cristobal concentrates and the subsidiary that holds the derivative positions required by the project finance facility to Sumitomo Corporation

(' Sumitomo ) for $224 million in cash and retention of certain interests in future silver and zinc production. Pursuant to the Company s principles
of consolidation, the Company fully consolidates the results of operations of its San Cristobal project and reports Sumitomo s participation as a
minority interest. (See Note 12 for further details of the transaction.)

b. Translation of foreign currencies

Substantially all expenditures are made in United States dollars. Accordingly, the Company uses the United States dollar as its functional and
reporting currency.

c Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
d. Restricted cash and investments

The Company segregates cash and investments the use of which is restricted by contractual agreement and reports the amounts separately in the
financial statements. Per the terms and conditions of the San
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Cristobal project finance facility, the Company was required to deposit cash and/or investments in an account the use of which is restricted to the
development of the San Cristobal project. In addition, at December 31, 2006 the Company recorded restricted cash and investments to
collateralize certain letters of credit related to the development of the San Cristobal project and to provide the amounts necessary to pay interest
payments on the 4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes through 2007, per the terms of the notes.

e. Investments

Available for Sale Available for sale securities are recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses recorded as a
component of equity, unless the value of the security is considered impaired. Realized gains and losses and
non-temporary impairments in value are recorded in the statement of operations. No impairments were recorded for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Held to Maturity Held to maturity investments are debt securities which the Company has the ability and intent to hold
until maturity and are recorded at amortized cost. Income is recorded based upon the current yield of the security. Any
non-temporary impairment in value will be recorded in the statement of operations at the date of the impairment. No
impairments were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

f Work in process inventories

During March 2005, a committee of the Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) reached a consensus (EITF Issue No. 04-6) that stripping costs
incurred during the production phase of a mine are variable production costs that should be included in the costs of inventory produced during
the period that the stripping costs are incurred. In January 2006, the EITF issued additional guidance defining the commencement of production
as the period when saleable minerals are first extracted in greater than de minimis amounts. The EITF consensus is effective for the first
reporting period in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. During 2006, the Company began mining oxide and sulfide ores at its San
Cristobal project, and placed the ore in stockpiles for future processing. The quantity and value of the minerals mined were sufficient to declare
the start of ore production according to the EITF consensus. The Company has included the associated costs of the ore placed in stockpiles as
ore inventories on its consolidated balance sheets.

The Company records costs related to production activities as inventory held for sale in the ordinary course of business or work in process for
such sale. Work-in-process inventories include ore produced and stockpiled for which further processing is necessary before a product is ready
for sale. The Company uses the average cost method to assign costs to the units of ore stockpiled during the period. Inventories are carried at the
lower of cost or the current net realizable value. If costs held in inventory exceed their net realizable value, the excess cost is recognized as a loss
in the current period. Net realizable value reflects the gross realizable value ( estimated selling price ) reduced by estimated costs of completion
and disposal as of the balance sheet date. Gross realizable value reflects the anticipated average realization that the inventory will generate when
it is sold.

At December 31, 2006 the Company had stockpiled approximately 1.3 million tonnes of sulfide ore and 5.2 million tonnes of oxide ore in
work-in-process ore inventories at its San Cristobal project at a carrying cost of approximately $24.5 million.
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g Mining properties, exploration and development costs

The Company expenses general prospecting costs and the costs of acquiring and exploring unevaluated mineral properties. When a mineral
property is determined to have proven and probable reserves, subsequent development costs are capitalized to mineral properties. When a
mineral property is acquired that has proven and probable reserves, acquisition costs and subsequent development costs are capitalized to
mineral properties. When mineral properties are developed and operations commence, capitalized costs are charged to operations using the
units-of-production method over proven and probable reserves. Upon abandonment or sale of a mineral property, all capitalized costs relating to
the specific property are written off in the period abandoned or sold and a gain or loss is recognized.

Beginning September 1, 1997, all costs associated with the Company s San Cristobal project have been capitalized. Capitalized costs at San
Cristobal include all direct costs associated with the project, certain interest, depreciation on assets being used to construct the project and other
internally allocated costs directly associated with the advancement of the project.

No amounts related to other mineral properties have been capitalized.

h. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over useful lives of thirty to forty years or the life of the mine
whichever is shorter. Mining equipment and machinery are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over useful lives of
three to eight years or the lease period, which ever is shorter. Other furniture and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of three to five years. Depreciation on plant and equipment used in the construction of an asset is
capitalized to the constructed asset.

The Company records leases as a capital lease if at the lease inception it meets one or more of four criteria in accordance with Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases ( FAS No. 13 ). The Company records capital leases as an asset and an obligation
at the lesser of an amount equal to the present value at the beginning of the lease term of minimum lease payments during the lease term or fair

value of the leased assets.

i. Asset retirement obligations

The Company records asset retirement obligations in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations ( FAS No. 143 ), which establishes a uniform methodology for accounting for estimated reclamation and
abandonment costs. According to FAS No. 143, the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation ( ARO ) is recognized in the period
in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. An offsetting Asset Retirement Cost ( ARC ) is capitalized as part of the
carrying value of the assets with which it is associated, and depreciated over the useful life of the asset. During the second half of 2005, the
Company commenced certain activities at its San Cristobal property, primarily certain earth works and plant construction that will require future
reclamation and closure expenditures. Prior to the second half of 2005 there were no activities that resulted in an ARO (see Note 8).

Jj. Asset impairment

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amount
may not be recoverable. If the sum of estimated future net cash flows on an undiscounted basis is less than the carrying amount of the related
asset, an asset impairment is
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considered to exist. The related impairment loss is measured by comparing estimated future net cash flows on a discounted basis to the carrying
amount of the asset. Changes in significant assumptions underlying future cash flow estimates may have a material effect on the Company s
financial position and results of operations.

k. Deferred financing costs
The company defers direct costs incurred in connection with obtaining financing and amortizes the costs over life of the financing.
L Stock compensation

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value based method of accounting for stock options as presented in Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ( FAS No. 123 ), as amended by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure ( FAS No. 148 ).

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-Based Payment ( FAS No. 123R ), using the
modified prospective approach, which revised FAS No. 123 and superseded Accounting Principles Board (  APB ) Opinion 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees . The Company also adopted the short-cut method for calculating the pool of windfall tax benefits as allowed by FAS
No. 123R-3 and determined it to be zero. The adoption of FAS No. 123R did not have a material impact on the Company s financial position or
results of operations.

The Company recognizes stock based compensation costs using a graded vesting attribution method whereby costs are recognized over the
requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award. The Company recognized stock based compensation costs of $5.4
million, $2.9 million and $10.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. The 2004 amount includes $4.1
million associated with the extension of the expiration dates of stock options previously granted to the retiring Chairman and a retiring employee
and a $2.5 million new grant to the retiring Chairman. Approximately $0.9 million, $0.7 million and $1.4 million of the costs for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively were related to compensation paid to employees directly working on the San Cristobal project
and were capitalized, with the remaining costs charged to expense (see Note 11).

m. Net earnings (loss) per Ordinary Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) available to holders of Ordinary Shares by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that would occur if securities or
other contracts to issue Ordinary Shares were exercised or converted into Ordinary Shares.

Outstanding options to purchase 2,992,572, 2,859,781, and 2,437,071 Ordinary Shares were not included in the computation of diluted earnings
per share at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively, because to do so would have been antidilutive. Also, warrants to purchase 450,000
Ordinary Shares for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and notes convertible for 10,132,320, 10,831,132 and
11,879,350 Ordinary Shares for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively, because to do so would have been antidilutive. Therefore, basic loss per
share is the same as dilutive loss per share.
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n. Derivative positions

The Company records all open derivative positions on its consolidated balance sheet at estimated fair value. Changes in the fair value of the
open derivative positions are recorded each period in earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated
as part of a hedge transaction and, if so, the type of hedge transaction. Through December 31, 2006 the Company had not accounted for any of
its derivatives as hedge transactions. Therefore, all open derivative positions have been adjusted to estimated fair value at the end of each
reporting period with the related change in value recorded to earnings.

The Company determines the fair value of its open derivative positions by applying market values obtained from the counterparties holding the
Company s derivative positions. The Company independently verifies that the values received from the counterparties are based on major
commodities price indices such as the LME and COMEX and other available market data. (See Note 2s for discussion of the restated fair market
value of the Company s open derivatives liability for the periods September 30, 2005 through September 30, 2006). As of December 31, 2006,
the fair market value of the Company s open derivatives liability was a net $818.2 million (see Note 9).

0. Variable Interest Entities

During 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46R  Variable Interest Entities ( FIN 46R ), which provides guidance on the identification and
reporting for entities over which control is achieved through means other than voting rights. FIN 46R defines such entities as variable interest
entities ( VIEs ). In April 2005 the Company entered into a long-term contract with San Cristobal Transportadora de Electricidad, S.A. ( SC
TESA ), a subsidiary of Ingelec, S.A., ( Ingelec ) a company in the power line construction and transmission services industry, to construct a
power line and transport power to the San Cristobal project from the Bolivian power grid. The Company has determined that the contractual
arrangements result in the classification of SC TESA as a VIE. In addition, because of the restrictive requirements of the contract, effectively
giving the Company control of SC TESA, the Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary of SC TESA resulting in the full consolidation

of SC TESA beginning in April 2005. At December 31, 2006 the consolidation of SC TESA results in the elimination of a $14.5 million note
receivable from SC TESA, the recognition of $0.1 million of additional cash, $21.0 million of additional property, plant and equipment and $2.8
million of additional value added tax recoverable (see Note 11).

p. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as all changes in stockholders equity, exclusive of transactions with stockholders, such as capital
investments. Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss) and changes in certain assets and liabilities that are reported directly in
equity. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 Comprehensive Loss included the change in the market value of available for
sale securities and is reported on the Statements of Consolidated Operations and Comprehensive Loss.
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q. Reclassifications

Certain revisions in classification have been made to the 2005 and 2004 financial information to conform to the 2006 financial statements to
ensure comparability.

r. New Accounting Standards

In March 2006 the EITF reached a tentative consensus (EITF Issue No. 05-1) that the issuance of equity securities to settle an instrument that
becomes convertible upon the issuer s exercise of a call option should be accounted for as a conversion (as opposed to an extinguishment) if, at
issuance, the debt instrument contains a substantive conversion feature other than the issuer s call option. The EITF concluded that if an
instrument is deemed convertible at issuance, then a subsequent conversion of the instrument is in accordance with a conversion privilege that
existed at issuance and is, therefore, outside the scope of APB Opinion No. 26, Early Extinguishment of Debt. Therefore, the issuance of shares
to settle debt pursuant to the original terms of the debt instrument should be afforded conversion treatment. If the instrument does not contain a
substantive conversion feature at issuance, the issuance of equity securities to settle the instrument should be recognized as a debt
extinguishment. EITF Issue No. 05-1 became effective for interim or annual reporting periods beginning after June 28, 2006, following its
ratification during June 2006. The Company previously accounted for two transactions involving the buy-back of its convertible debt as an
extinguishment under APB Opinion No. 26. Ratification of EITF Issue No. 05-1 will require similar future transactions be accounted for as
conversions.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. 3 ( FAS No. 154 ), is effective for years beginning after December 15, 2005. FAS No. 154 changes the requirements for the
accounting and reporting of a change in accounting principle. The statement, which applies to voluntary changes as well as changes required by
accounting pronouncements that do not otherwise provide specific transition provisions, requires retrospective application to prior period s
financial statements where practical. FAS No. 154 did not have an impact on the Company s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, ( FIN 48 ), an
interpretation of Financial Accounting Standards Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold

and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax

return. The Interpretation requires that the Company recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that position is more

likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods and disclosure. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective beginning January 1,

2007 with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. The
Company does not believe the adoption of FIN 48 will have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

During September 2006 the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 Fair Value Measurements ( FAS No. 157 ). FAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Standard addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required
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to use a fair value measure for recognition or disclosure purposes under U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, this Standard does not require any new fair
value measurements. FAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect the adoption of FAS No. 157 to have a material impact on its financial position
or results of operations.

During September 2006 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 ( SAB 108 ) which establishes an approach to the quantification of
unadjusted financial statement errors based on the effects of the error on each of the company s financial statements and the related financial
statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred to as a dual approach because it essentially requires quantification of unadjusted errors
under both balance sheet and income statement approach. SAB 108 permits companies to record the cumulative effect of initially applying the

dual approach in the first year ending after November 15, 2006 by recording the necessary correcting adjustments to the carrying values of assets
and liabilities as of the beginning of that year with the offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings. The Company
has no unadjusted errors and the adoption of SAB 108 did not have an impact on its financial position or results of operations.

. Correction of an Error Related to the Valuation of Open Derivative positions

Pursuant to the requirements of the lenders of its $225 million project finance facility, the Company was required to provide price protection for
a portion of its planned production from the San Cristobal project. In the third quarter 2005, the Company entered into silver, zinc and lead
derivative positions utilizing primarily forward sales, but also puts and calls, to comply with this requirement. As discussed above, the Company
records its open derivative positions at their estimated fair value on its balance sheet and records the change in estimated fair value in earnings at
the end of each reporting.

The Company s derivative positions mature or expire on various dates over an approximate six-year period commencing in July 2007. Many of
the derivative positions mature or expire beyond the periods covered by the major commodity price indices such as LME or COMEX, or expire
in future periods covered by those indices with respect to which only limited trading activity has occurred. In instances where only limited
market activity exists, the Company had historically used price projections to estimate a forward price curve provided by an independent third
party employing statistical analysis and models to estimate the fair value of its open derivative positions. The models used by the independent
third party relied on commodity price indices out to three months and mean reversion statistical estimates beyond the three month period.
Recently, the Company reassessed the market information reflected in the commodities prices indices out to twenty seven months and quoted
prices from the counterparties holding our derivative positions and concluded that the additional market information is a more reliable indicator
of fair value than the independent third party price projections previously used. Accordingly, the Company concluded the derivative liability
related to its open derivative positions was understated at December 31, 2005 by $95.1 million ($1.96 per share).

Based on this reassessment, management concluded that the Company had understated its liability related to its open derivative positions
commencing with the quarter ended September 30, 2005. Additionally, correcting the error in the valuation of the open derivative positions
impacted the gain and minority interest the Company recognized on the sale of the 35% interests in the the subsidiary holding its San Cristobal
project, the subsidiary that will market the San Cristobal concentrates and the subsidiary that
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holds the derivative positions required by the project finance facility. The gain on the sale increased from $119.8 million to $199.6 million and

as a result, management has concluded that the Company s financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, the year ended
December 31, 2005 and the first three quarters of 2006 need to be restated. The restatements had no impact on the Company s cash or investment
balances or cash flows.

The impact of the restatement on the Company s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 is summarized in the
following table:

As Previously Reported As Restated
Year to Inception to Year to Inception to
Date Date Adjustments Date Date
(in thousands except share data)
Operating income and expenses:
Gain (loss) commodity derivatives $ (56,417 ) $ (55450 ) $ (95,098 ) $ (151,515 ) $ (150,548 )
Other operating expenses (23,983 ) (143,957 ) (23,983 ) (143,957 )
Total operating expenses (80,400 ) (199,407 ) (95,098 ) (175,498 ) (294,505 )
Other income and expenses 13,725 30,515 13,725 30,515
Loss before minority interest and
income taxes (66,675 ) (168,892 ) (95,098 ) (161,773 ) (263,990 )
Income tax expense 379 ) 379 ) (379 ) 379 )
Minority interest in loss of
consolidated subsidiary 16 4,575 16 4,575
Net loss $ (67,038 ) $ (164,696 ) $ (95,098 ) $ (162,136 ) $ (259,794 )
Other comprehensive income (loss) (311 ) (243 ) 311 ) (243 )
Comprehensive loss $ (67,349 ) $ (164,939 ) $ (95,098 ) $ (162,447 ) $ (260,037 )
Net loss per Ordinary Share basic
and diluted $  (1.38 ) $ (196 ) $ (334 )
Weighted average Ordinary Shares
outstanding 48,615,586 48,615,586
Liabilities and Shareholders
Equity
Current liabilities $ 85,505 $ 85505
Derivatives 50,621 95,098 145,719
Other long term liabilities 322,024 322,024
Total liabilities 458,150 95,098 553,248
Minority interest in subsidiaries 34 34
Accumulated deficit (164,696 ) (95,098 (259,794
Total shareholders equity 322,327 (95,098 227,229
Total liabilities and shareholders
equity $ 780,511 $ $ 780,511

The impact of the restatement on the Company s consolidated financial statements for the interim quarterly periods September 30, 2005 through

September 30, 2006 is discussed in Note 19.
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3. Investments

The Company invests only in government and corporate securities rated investment grade or better. The following table summarizes the
Company s investments at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

December 31, 2006 Cost Fair Value Carrying Value
(in thousands)

Investments:

Short-term:

Available for sale

Common stock $ 761 $ 779 $ 779

Corporate notes 5,935 5,995 5,995

Government bonds 6,972 6,973 6,973

Auction rate securities 306,785 306,789 306,789

Total available for sale 320,453 320,536 320,536

Held to maturity

Government bonds 5,000 4,991 5,000

Total held to maturity 5,000 4,991 5,000

Total short term $ 325,453 $ 325,527 $ 325,536

Long-term:

Available for sale

Corporate notes $ 6,988 $ 6,960 $ 6,960

Government bonds 33,374 33,295 33,295

Total available for sale 40,362 40,255 40,255

Held to maturity

Government bonds 2,000 1,996 2,000

Total held to maturity 2,000 1,996 2,000

Total long term $ 42,362 $ 42251 $ 42,255

Restricted Investments:

Short-term

Available for sale

Auction rate securities $ 59,800 $ 59,800 $ 59,800

Total available for sale 59,800 59,800 59,800

Held to maturity

Government bonds 5,543 5,500 5,543

Total held to maturity 5,543 5,500 5,543

Total short term $ 65,343 $ 65,300 $ 65,343
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December 31, 2005 Cost Fair Value Carrying Value
(in thousands)

Short-term:

Available for sale

Common stock $ 434 $ 686 $ 686

Bond funds 3,381 2,885 2,885

Auction rate securities 127,426 127,426 127,426

Total available for sale 131,241 130,997 130,997

Held to maturity

Corporate notes 1,003 998 1,003

Total held to maturity 1,003 998 1,003

Total short term $ 132,244 $ 131,995 $ 132,000

Restricted Investments:

Short-term

Available for sale

Auction rate securities $ 14,950 $ 14,950 $ 14,950

Total available for sale 14,950 14,950 14,950

Held to maturity

Corporate notes 2,003 2,004 2,003

Government bonds 50,538 50,191 50,538

Total held to maturity 52,541 52,195 52,541

Total short term $ 67,491 $ 67,145 $ 67,491

Long-term

Held to maturity

Government bonds $ 12,392 $ 12,173 $ 12,392

Quoted market prices at December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively were used to determine the fair values of the above investments.

The Company maintains the majority of its investments in auction rate securities (  ARS ) which provide acceptable interest rates with high
liquidity allowing the Company to convert the securities to cash every 7 to 35 days depending on the terms of the specific ARS. Auction rate
securities are floating rate securities with long-term nominal maturities of 25 to 30 years but are marketed by financial institutions with maturity
and interest rate reset dates at 7, 28, or 35 day intervals. The result is that the market always has large quantities of securities resetting their
interest rates every week resulting in high liquidity. Most of the Company s ARS at December 31, 2006 have maturities and reset dates of either
7 days or 28 days and annual yields ranging from 5.22% to 5.80%.

To fulfill the requirements of the San Cristobal project finance facility which was entered into in December 2005, the Company liquidated prior
to maturity approximately $34.0 million of investments in the fourth quarter of 2005 and $12.0 million of investments in the first quarter of
2006, which were previously recorded as held-to-maturity ( HTM ) securities. The Company recognized losses of $0.2 million and $0.1 million
on the liquidations during 2005 and 2006, respectively. The liquidations were necessitated by the terms of the project finance facility which
required the Company to transfer
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substantially all of its cash and/or investments to collateral accounts to restrict funds necessary to complete the San Cristobal project. Certain
covenants related to the project finance facility restricted the maturity dates of investments held in the collateral accounts to less than one year. A
portion of the Company s HTM portfolio had maturity dates slightly beyond the one year limitation. As a result, prior to transferring the
securities to the project finance collateral accounts, those HTM securities with maturities greater than one year were liquidated and reinvested in
instruments with maturities less than one year. The Company recorded as investing cash inflow an additional $126.3 million and $90.3 million
during 2005 and 2006 respectively, related to HTM securities that matured on their maturity dates. The Company believes the project financing
facility requirements which caused the Company to liquidate a portion of its HTM investments prior to their maturity represented an isolated,
unanticipated event that did not change the Company s ability or intent to hold its remaining HTM investments to maturity.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party might fail to fulfill its performance obligations under the terms of a financial instrument. For
cash and equivalents and investments, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet. We mitigate credit risk for cash
and equivalents and investments by placing our funds and investments with high credit-quality financial institutions, limiting the
amount of exposure to each of the financial institutions, and monitoring the financial condition of the financial institutions.

The Company invests with financial institutions that maintain a net worth of not less than $1 billion and are members in good standing

of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation ( SPIC ). Of the Company s $514.9 million total of cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, short and long term investments and restricted investments (the Funds ) at December 31, 2006, $510.6 million was held at nine

large multinational banks. The bank holding the largest amount of the Funds held $175.1 million. The bank holding the second largest
amount of the Company s Funds at $149.6 million is also the bank holding the restricted funds for development of the San Cristobal
project per the terms of the project finance facility. The seven other banks held $185.9 million in total with amounts ranging from $5.0
million to $52.5 million per bank.

4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other assets consist of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005

(in thousands)
Prepaid insurance $ 1,949 $ 824
Accrued interest receivable 1,348 758
Prepaid consulting and contractor fees 3,507 3,874
Prepaid import taxes and duties receivable 1,637
Other 1,543 368

$ 9984 $ 57824

The prepaid consulting and contractor fees at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist primarily of advance payments made to contractors for work
being performed at the San Cristobal project.
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5. Value Added Tax Recoverable

The Company has recorded value added tax ( VAT ) paid in Bolivia and related to the San Cristobal project as a recoverable asset. Bolivian law
states that VAT paid prior to production is recoverable as a credit against Bolivian taxes arising from production, including income tax. The
VAT is expected to be recovered through future production from the San Cristobal project. Future changes to Bolivian tax law could have an
adverse effect on the Company s ability to recover the VAT paid in Bolivia. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the VAT recoverable was $54.2
million and $20.1 million, respectively. The VAT recoverable amounts include $5.3 million and $0.8 million of recoverable Bolivian import
duties for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company has also paid VAT in Bolivia as well as other countries, primarily related to exploration projects, which has been charged to
expense as incurred because of the uncertainty of the recoverability.

6. Property, Plant and Equipment, net

The components of property, plant, and equipment, net were as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
Mineral properties $ 117,390 $ 117,103
Construction in progress 482,979 232,288
Buildings 13,590 8,423
Mining equipment and machinery 13,580 10,127
Other furniture and equipment 3,166 1,966
630,705 369,907
Less: Accumulated depreciation (6,962 ) (4,298 )
623,743 365,609
Equipment under capital lease 22,183 14,928
Less: Accumulated depreciation (4,168 ) (1,399 )
18,015 13,529

$ 641,758 $ 379,138

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $403,000, $210,000, and $55,000 respectively. For the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, depreciation associated with the San Cristobal project was capitalized in the amounts of $5.2
million, $2.7 million, and $0.4 million respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively, the Company recorded capitalized interest of $26.1 million and $6.9 million to
the San Cristobal property. The capitalized interest amounts are related to the Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes, the project finance facility
and equipment under capital lease (see Note 7).

Under the terms of the project finance facility (the Facility (see Note 7)) all of the Company s assets at its San Cristobal project are collateralized
by the borrowings under the Facility.

At December 31, 2006 the company recorded a lease obligation of $17.3 million related to outstanding capital leases.
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7. Debt

The Company s debt consists of the following:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Current Long term Current Long term

(in thousands)
2.875% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024 $ $ 180,000 $ $ 180,000
4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024 109,987 129,987
Project finance facility 180,000
Note payable to Ingelec for Power line 1,415
Note assigned to Sumitomo (see Note 12) 7,853
Capital lease obligations 2,993 14,355 2,270 10,034

$ 4,408 $ 492,195 $ 2,270 $ 320,021

2.875% Notes and 4.0% Notes

In 2004, the Company sold $200.0 million of its 2.875% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes (the 2.875% Notes ) due 2024 resulting in net
proceeds of $193.0 million, after deducting underwriters fees and related offering costs of $7.0 million. In 2004, the Company also sold $140.0
million of its 4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes (the 4.0% Notes ) due 2024 resulting in net proceeds of $135.1 million, after
deducting underwriters fees and related offering costs of $4.9 million. Both the 2.875% Notes and the 4.0% Notes (the Notes ) are convertible
into the Company s Ordinary Shares at a conversion rate of 34.9406 shares per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes (equal to an initial
conversion price of approximately $28.62 per share), subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. Holders may convert their Notes only if:

(1) the price of Apex Silver Ordinary Shares reaches a specified threshold; (ii) the trading price for the Notes falls below certain thresholds;

(iii) the Notes have been called for redemption; or (iv) specified corporate transactions occur. Full conversion of the Notes would result in the
issuance of approximately 10.1 million of the Company s Ordinary Shares. Accumulated interest on the Notes is paid twice a year in March and
September.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Notes were deferred and are being amortized to interest expense over ten years which
corresponds to the related call provisions. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company amortized approximately $1.6 million, $2.1 million and
$0.7 million of the deferred costs, respectively. At December 31, 2006 the unamortized balance of deferred financing costs related to the Notes
was approximately $7.6 million.

During 2006 the Company issued 1,086,653 of its Ordinary Shares, valued at $17.1 million, and repurchased $20.0 million of its outstanding
4.0% Notes. During 2005 the Company issued 1,490,029 of its Ordinary Shares, valued at $23.2 million, and repurchased $20.0 million of the
2.875% Notes and $10.0 million of the 4.0% Notes. The transactions represented early extinguishments of debt and the Company recorded
related gains of $2.9 million and $6.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company also recognized
accelerated amortization of deferred issuance costs of $0.5 million and $0.9 million related to these extinguishments during 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The Notes purchased in the transactions have been cancelled.
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The indentures for the Notes have financial and other covenants which, among other things, require the Company to provide copies of its Annual
Report on Form 10-K (the Form 10-K ) to the trustee within 30 days after such reports are filed with the SEC. The Company did not file its 2006
Form 10-K within the prescribed timeframe and on March 21, 2007, it received a notice of default from certain holders of the Notes. The

Company does not believe that its failure to file its 2006 Form 10-K within the prescribed timeframe was a breach of covenant under the related
indentures. The Company filed the Form 10-K within the 60 day cure period and therefore, no event of default occurred.

The indenture relating to the 4.0% Notes requires the Company to maintain restricted investments to cover the payment of interest through 2007.
The amount invested will at maturity equal the interest payments due. As of December 31, 2006, $5.5 million of restricted investments were
designated for this purpose. Failure to comply with the covenants contained in the indentures relating to the Notes or failure to cure any related
violations within specified periods could result in an event of default, pursuant to which the holders of the Notes could demand immediate
repayment of all amounts outstanding, including accrued and unpaid interest.

San Cristobal Project Finance Facility

In December 2005 the Company entered into a $225 million project finance facility ( the Facility ) for development of the Company s San
Cristobal project. At December 31, 2006 the Company had borrowed $180 million under the Facility. The Company borrowed an additional $20
million in February 2007, resulting in total outstanding borrowings of $200 million. The Company is required to pay a 1.0% annual commitment
fee on the undrawn amount of the Facility. Interest on the outstanding amounts drawn under the Facility is based on LIBOR plus a credit spread,
which at December 31, 2006 was 3.3%. The first principal payment under the Facility is due in December 2008 with final maturity in

December 2012. In connection with the sale to Sumitomo of a 35% interest in certain of the Company s subsidiaries (see Note 12), Sumitomo
guaranteed the repayment of 35% of the Facility until completion of the project with the Company guaranteeing repayment of the remaining
65% of the Facility until completion of the project. Project completion must occur by December 31, 2008.

The Facility contains covenants that require the Company to, among other things, maintain certain security interests, financial ratios after project
completion, insurance coverage, minimum sales contracts and metals price protection contracts as well as other requirements. Failure to comply
with these covenants or to cure related violations within specified periods could result in an event of default, pursuant to which the project
lenders could require repayment of all amounts outstanding under the Facility and cash settlement of any derivative liabilities associated with the
San Cristobal project. (See Note 9).

As a result of the restatement referred to in Note 2, the Company breached certain representations and covenants regarding the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. On March 15, 2007, the Company obtained waivers from the project lenders for these
breaches and any related events of default. The Company has also obtained waivers of compliance with certain technical covenant violations and
confirmation that the effects of the restatement on the Company and other affiliated obligors did not constitute a material adverse effect, as
defined.
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Pursuant to the debt covenants contained in the Facility, the Company is also required annually to submit a revised Construction Budget,
Operating Plan, and Financial Model (collectively the Updated Plan ) for the San Cristobal project by November 1. The Company is currently
operating under the Construction Budget, Operating Plan and Financial Model initially approved by the lenders when the Facility was entered
into (the Initial Plan ) which remains in effect until the Updated Plan is approved. The Company submitted its Updated Plan for 2007 in a timely
manner. The Updated Plan required prices of $5.25 per ounce for silver, $0.48 per pound for zinc and $0.26 per pound for lead, compared to
spot prices as of March 27, 2007 of $13.27, $1.45 and $0.84, respectively. The Updated Plan also reflected higher operating costs than
previously assumed primarily as a result of the impact of record high commodity prices. A large portion of Apex s operating costs are directly
influenced by these high commodities prices, including costs for diesel, reagents, and tires. The low metals prices required by the Facility
coupled with higher current operating costs resulted in projected cash flow that would be insufficient to meet certain other Facility requirements,
including minimum cash flows and debt service coverage ratios required after completion. As a result, the Company requested that the lenders
approve certain waivers and amendments to permit the use of higher metals prices. In early January 2007, the lenders rejected the Updated Plan.

As provided by the terms of the Facility, representatives of the lenders and the Company have since been engaged in discussions to agree upon a
mutually acceptable Updated Plan. The representatives of the lenders have proposed higher metals prices than those contained in the agreement
that will allow the Company to present an Updated Plan that will meet the Facility s financial requirements. The representatives of the lenders
have also proposed an adjustment to the Facility s repayment schedule to require a larger percentage of principal to be repaid in earlier years and
an increase in the mandatory cash flow sweep from 35% to 45% of excess cash flow. The Company and Sumitomo have agreed to purchase zinc
puts covering approximately 73 thousand tonnes of zinc production in 2008 and 2009. The Company will also fund a $91 million margin
account with the two banks holding the derivative positions and Sumitomo will provide a post-completion guarantee of the derivative positions
in the amount of $49 million. This support will be decreased by 33% at the end of each of the years from 2008 through 2010.

The Company and Sumitomo have accepted these proposals and amendments to the Facility agreements and an Updated Plan for submission to
the lenders are being drafted. Once the amendments to the agreements and Updated Plan are complete, an affirmative vote by the lenders is
required for final approval. At the date of this filing, formal approval of the amendments to the Facility agreements and the Updated Plan by the
requisite majority of lenders has not yet been obtained. While there can be no assurances that lender approval will be obtained, management
believes the necessary amendments and the Updated Plan will be approved by the requisite majority of lenders.

If the amendments and the Updated Plan are not approved by the lenders, until such time as approval is obtained, the Company would be
required to operate in all material respects, as defined by the Facility, in compliance with the Initial Plan. If the Company s operations fail to
comply with the Initial Plan in all material respects, the lenders could declare a default and require the Company to settle all amounts
outstanding under the Facility and derivatives liability. Because the Company s current projections indicate that cash flows and operating ratios
will exceed those in the Initial Plan, the Company believes that operations will comply in all material respects with the Initial Plan. However, the
Company cannot predict
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what actions the lenders might take if they deem that the Company is not in material compliance with the Initial Plan.

If an event of default occurs, the lenders could require immediate payment of amounts outstanding under the Facility and settlement of the
derivatives liability. If such a demand were successfully made, the Company would require additional debt or equity financing in order to satisfy
its obligations. There is no assurance that the Company would be able to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms, or at all. The Company
had liabilities in excess of its assets at December 31, 2006 as the result of its derivative liability.

Direct costs incurred in obtaining the Facility were deferred and will be amortized to interest expense over the term of the Facility. During the
year ended December 31, 2006, the Company amortized approximately $1.0 million of the deferred costs. The Facility was put in place in
December 2005 and no related amortization was recognized in 2005. At December 31, 2006 the unamortized balance of deferred financing costs
related to the Facility was approximately $11.9 million.

[Project finance facility payment

schedule [Less Than 2 3 4 5

(in thousands) Total 1 Year Years Years Thereafter
As of December 31, 2006 180,000 [ | 64,620 | 195,220 20,160 |

As provided in the proposed amendments to the Facility, as discussed above, the payment schedule for the Facility may be modified to reflect
total payments of $115.9 million in years two and three and $64.1 million in years four and five.

Capital Leases

During 2006 and 2005 the Company took delivery of certain leased mining equipment to be used in stripping and future mine production, and
recorded related capital lease liabilities at December 31, 2006 and 2005 of $17.3 million and $12.3 million, respectively. During 2006 and 2005
the Company made payments of $2.7 million and $2.3 million related to the capital lease obligations, respectively. The Company will be
required to make additional payments of $3.0 million during each of 2007 and 2008, $2.4 million during 2009, $1.9 million during 2010, $1.8
million during 2011 and $5.2 million thereafter.

8. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company developed an asset retirement plan for its San Cristobal project which is currently under construction and is expected to begin
production during 2007. The plan includes estimated reclamation, remediation and closure requirements based on government requirements,
World Bank financing requirements and the Company s policies. Beginning in the third quarter of 2005 the Company has been conducting
activities at its San Cristobal project including earthworks, plant construction and mining activities that fall within the scope of the asset
retirement plan and as such, will require future reclamation and closure expenditures.

The Company prepares estimates of the timing and amount of expected cash flows when an asset retirement obligation ( ARO ) is incurred. The
fair value of the ARO is measured by discounting the
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expected cash flows using a discount factor that reflects the credit-adjusted risk-free rate of interest. The Company records the fair value of an
ARO when it is incurred and changes in the fair value of the ARO are recorded as an adjustment to the corresponding asset carrying amounts.
The ARO is adjusted to reflect the passage of time (accretion cost) calculated by applying the discount factor implicit in the initial fair-value
measurement to the beginning-of-period carrying amount of the ARO. The company records accretion costs to expense as incurred.

The following table summarizes activity in the Company s asset retirement obligations:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
Beginning balance $ 2,003
ARO arising in the period 3,367 1,988
Changes in estimates, and other
Liabilities settled
Accretion expense 391 15
Ending balance $ 5,761 2,003

9. Sales Contracts and Derivative Positions

Certain covenants related to the project finance facility required the Company to provide price protection for a portion of its planned production
of metals from San Cristobal. During the third quarter of 2005, the Company entered into certain derivative positions utilizing primarily forward
sales but also puts and calls to comply with the project finance facility covenants. In order to maintain leverage to silver market prices, the
Company entered into proportionally more zinc and lead positions than silver positions. Non-cash mark-to-market gains and losses from the
open derivative positions may fluctuate substantially from period to period based on spot and forward prices and option volatilities.

In addition, the Company made limited investments in shorter duration put and call options and other metals derivative positions not required by
the project financing facility. During 2006, the Company made $48.3 million of net cash payments and realized a $42.6 million loss to settle
these discretionary derivative positions. At December 31, 2006 the Company did not have any outstanding discretionary derivative positions.

The Company marks its open derivative positions to estimated fair value at the end of each accounting period with the related change in
estimated fair value recorded to earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company recorded a non-cash mark to market loss of
$672.5 million and a realized loss of $42.6 million compared to a $151.5 million non-cash mark-to-market loss for the year ended December 31,
2005 and a non-cash mark-to-market gain of $0.8 million recorded for the year ended December 31, 2004. The 2006 and 2005 losses are the
result of continuing high spot and forward prices for silver, zinc and lead. The actual financial impact of the required project financing facility
derivative positions will not be known until the positions are closed on their future settlement dates. The Company does not intend to settle the
open derivatives position contracts relating to the project financing facility prior to their settlement dates which begin during the second half of
2007. At the time of final settlement, the gain or loss recorded will exclude previously recognized non-cash mark-to-market gains or losses. The
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Company recently corrected an error in determining estimated fair value of its open derivative positions leading to a restatement of prior period
financial statements, as described more fully in Footnote 2s.

The following table sets forth the Company s open derivative positions at December 31, 2006. The contracts will be settled for cash based on
monthly average prices for each metal in the period indicated.

Current Maturity Date
Less Than 2to3 4to5
1 Year Years Years Thereafter Total

(in thousands except prices)
Forward Contracts

Silver (ounces) 110 160 160 160 590
Average price $ 740 $ 7.15 $ 7.15 $ 7.12 $ 7.9
Zinc (pounds) 18,906 451,553 305,338 775,797
Average price $ 048 $ 048 $ 048 $ $ 048
Lead (pounds) 35,273 244,488 43,210 322,971
Average price $ 030 $ 030 $ 028 $ $ 030
Put Option Contracts Owned (net)

Silver (ounces) 200 1,500 3,120 4,280 9,100
Average price $ 525 $ 554 $ 572 $ 593 $ 578
Call Option Contracts Written

Silver (ounces) 7,700 1,920 180 9,800
Average price $ $ 817 $ 886 $ 895 $ 832
Zinc (pounds) 551 13,228 13,779
Average price $ 057 $ 057 $ $ $ 057
Lead (pounds) 1,102 26,455 27,557
Average price $ 039 $ 0.39 $ $ $ 0.39

The following table sets forth the fair value of the Company s open derivative positions based on indices such as the LME and COMEX and
valuations from counterparties holding the Company s derivative positions at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the change for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Amount To Be Realized In

Less Than 2to3 4to5
Period Ended 1 Year Years Years Thereafter Total

(in thousands)
12/31/2005 Restated $ 5,652 $ 62,268 $ 77,584 $ 5,867 $ 151,371
12/31/2006 $ 39,080 $ 570,982 $ 207,696 $ 439 $ 818,198
2006 Change $ 33,428 $ 508,714 $ 130,112 $ (5,428) $ 666,827

During 2005, the Company recognized a $0.9 million mark to market loss on a foreign currency collar transaction utilizing puts and calls that
were put in place during 2004 to hedge currency fluctuations related to payments required on certain long-lead equipment purchased for the San
Cristobal project that
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was denominated in Euros. The transaction resulted in a realized gain of $0.5 million during the two years it was in place. No such gains or loses
were recognized during 2006 and at December 31, 2006 the Company did not have any foreign currency derivative positions.

The Company s 2.875% and 4.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2024 have several embedded derivatives that have been
determined to have no value.

Credit Risk and Risks Relating to the Use of Derivatives

Credit risk is the risk that a third party might fail to fulfill its performance obligations under the terms of a financial instrument. For
derivatives, when the fair value of a derivative is negative, as in the Company s case at December 31, 2006, we assume no credit risk.
However, should the Company s derivative positions become positive, the Company would become exposed to credit risk. All of the
Company s derivative positions at December 31, 2006 are required by the project finance facility and per the terms of the facility are
concentrated with two counterparties. The two counterparties are of high credit-quality and the Company monitors their financial
condition at regular intervals. Under the terms of the derivative agreements, the counterparties cannot require the Company to
immediately settle outstanding derivatives, except upon the occurrence of customary events of default such as covenant breaches,
including financial covenants, insolvency or bankruptcy.

10. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes ( FAS No. 109 ) on a tax jurisdictional basis. The Company and certain of its subsidiaries operating in the Cayman
Islands do not file income tax returns as the Cayman Islands currently does not impose any form of taxation. The Company files Bolivian,
United States and certain other foreign country income tax returns. These tax returns and the amount of taxable income or loss reported are
subject to examination by the relevant taxing authorities. The Company and subsidiaries have not generated taxable income since inception, but
did incur withholding taxes on investment income and inter-company fees in 2006 and 2005.

Income (loss) before income taxes consists of the following:

For the year ended December 31,

2005

2006 Restated 2004

(in thousands)
Cayman Islands $ 489,775 ) $ 1,134 $ (12,017 )
Bolivia $ 4,545 $ (14,530 ) $ 2,860 )
United States $ (4,048 ) $ 142 $ (1,685 )
Switzerland $ 145,338 $ (145,791 ) $
Sweden $ 42,645
Luxembourg $ (215,259 )
Other International $ G055 ) $ 2728 ) $ (2,283 )

$ (521,609 ) $ (161,773 ) $ (18,845 )
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The Company s provision for income taxes of approximately $0.7 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, are related to withholding taxes paid in the United States and Bolivia.

The components of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

For the year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 22927 $ 9,830
Stock-based compensation 4,752 3,773
Property, plant and equipment 1,730 1,730

Other 273 6

Total deferred tax assets 29,682 14,525
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 32 118

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities 32 118

Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance $ 29,650 $ 14,407
Less: Valuation allowance $ (29650 ) $ (14,407 )
Net deferred tax asset $ $

At December 31, 2006, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards in certain non-U.S. jurisdictions. Of these, $26.3 million of net
operating losses in Bolivia have no expiration, and $57.5 million in other foreign jurisdictions will expire in future years through 2016. In the
U.S., there are $7.9 million of net operating loss carryforwards which will expire in future years through 2026, of which $1.1 million is excluded
from the deferred tax calculation until the Company can reduce taxes payable. If realized, the deferred tax benefit and corresponding adjustment
to paid in capital would be $0.4 million.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $29.7 million and $14.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively, relates
principally to the uncertainty of the utilization of certain deferred tax assets, primarily net operating loss carry forwards in various tax
jurisdictions. The Company continually assesses both positive and negative evidence to determine whether it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets can be realized prior to their expiration. Based on the Company s assessment it has determined the deferred tax assets are not
currently realizable. However, the Company s assessment may change as it moves from the development phase to the production phase of certain
mining properties. The Company will continue to monitor Company-specific, mining industry and worldwide economic factors and will reassess
the likelihood that the Company s net operating loss carry forwards and other deferred tax attributes will be utilized prior to their expiration.

11. Stockholder s Equity

Stock Option Plans The Company has established a plan to issue share options and other awards of the Company s shares
to officers, employees, consultants and agents of the Company and its subsidiaries

F-31

92



Edgar Filing: APEX SILVER MINES LTD - Form 10-K

APEX SILVER MINES LIMITED

An Exploration and Development Stage Company (Continued)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in United States dollars)

(the  Plan ). Under the Plan, the total number of options and other awards granted cannot exceed two million Ordinary Shares. Options and
other awards under the Plan are not transferable unless otherwise provided for in a specific award agreement. Options exist for a term, not to
exceed ten years, as fixed by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. Options typically vest ratably over periods
of up to four years with the first tranche vesting on the date of grant or the first anniversary of the date of grant.

The Company has also established a share option plan for its non-employee directors (the Director Plan ). Under the Director Plan, the total
number of options granted cannot exceed five percent of the Company s outstanding Ordinary Shares. Pursuant to the Director Plan,
non-employee directors receive (i) at the effective date of their initial election to the Company s Board of Directors, an option to purchase the
number of Ordinary Shares equal to $50,000 divided by the closing price of the Ordinary Shares on the American Stock Exchange (the AMEX )
on such date, (ii) at the close of business of each annual meeting of the Company s shareholders, an option to purchase the number of Ordinary
Shares equal to $50,000 divided by the closing price of the Ordinary Shares on the AMEX on such date, and (iii) at the close of business of each
meeting of the Company s Board of Directors, options valued at $3,000 calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to purchase
Ordinary Shares with an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Ordinary Shares on the AMEX on such date. Options granted under the
Director Plan vest on the date of the grant and expire ten years after the date of the grant or three years after the date that such non-employee
director ceases to be a director of the Company. Options granted under the Director Plan are transferable only in limited circumstances.

A summary of the combined options of the Plan and the Director Plan at December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended is
presented in the following table:

Weighted

Average

Exercise Weighted Aggregate

Number Price Per Average Intrinsic

Options of Shares Share Remaining Contractual Life Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 2,859,781 $ 1442 6.4 Years $ 6,664,178
Granted during period 465,367 $ 16.29 9.8 Years $
Forfeited or expired during period (49,151 ) $ 16.71 $ 289,983
Exercised during period (283,425 ) $ 12.03 $ 1,935,633
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 2,992,572 $ 14.90 6.3 Years $ 5,657,246
Exercisable at end of period 2,192,191 $ 14.14 5.2 Years $ 5482514
Expected to vest at the end of the period 800,381 $ 16.98 9.1 Years $ 174,732

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the assumptions noted
in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company s stock. The Company uses historical data to
estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the Black-Scholes model. The expected term of options granted represents the
period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding, based on past
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experience and future estimates and includes data from both the Employees Plan and the Directors Plan. The risk-free rate for periods within the
expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The Company currently does not foresee the
payment of dividends in the near term.

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Expected volatility 43.8% - 46.1% 42.6% - 43.8% 44.8% - 45.0%
Weighted average volatility 45.5% 43.6% 44.9%
Expected dividend yield
Expected term (in years) 5.77 3.85 3.89
Risk-free rate 4.62% 4.15% 2.95%

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company granted options with weighted average grant date fair values of $3.6
million, $2.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively; options were exercised with total intrinsic values of $1.9 million, $0.3 million and $1.6
million, respectively; and the total fair value of options vested was $2.7 million, $1.8 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-vested stock options granted pursuant to the Plan was $3.7 million
which the Company expects will be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.1 years.

From time to time the Company grants restricted shares under the Plan to certain key employees as a retention incentive. These grants typically
vest over four years either at 25% per year or at an escalating rate of 10% during the first year and 15%, 25% and 50% for the succeeding three
years. During 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Company recorded $1.6 million, $0.4 million and $nil, respectively, as compensation costs related to the
restricted share grants.

A summary of the status of the Company s non-vested restricted stock grants at December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended is
presented in the following table:

Weighted Average

Number Grant Date Fair
Non-vested Shares of Shares Value Per Share
Non-vested at December 31, 2005 170,700 $ 18.41
Granted during period 92,800 $ 15.60
Vested during period (36,925 ) $ 1824
Forfeited during period (3,000 ) $ 16.03
Non-vested at December 31, 2006 223,575 $ 17.30

As of December 31, 2006, unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-vested restricted shares granted pursuant to the Plan was $2.2
million. The Company expects that the unrecognized cost will be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.0 year.

During 2005 the Company granted stock-based performance bonuses under the Plan to certain employees related to cost and completion date
targets at the San Cristobal project. The following table is a
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summary of the status of the Company s stock-based performance bonuses at December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended:

Weighted Average

Number Grant Date Fair
Non-vested Shares of Shares Value Per Share
Non-vested at December 31, 2005 32,000 $ 1541
Granted during period $
Vested during period $
Forfeited during period (6,000 ) $ 1625
Non-vested at December 31, 2006 26,000 $ 15.21

As of December 31, 2006, unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-vested performance bonuses granted pursuant to the Plan was $0.1
million. The Company expects that the unrecognized cost will be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.6 years.

Total compensation costs recognized for stock-based employee compensation awards was $5.4 million, $2.9 million and $10.1 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and included amounts capitalized of $0.9 million, $0.7 million and $1.4 million
for the respective years. The 2004 amount includes $4.1 million associated with the extension of the expiration dates of stock options previously
granted to the retiring Chairman and a retiring employee and $2.5 million related to a new grant to the retiring Chairman.

Warrants At December 31, 2006, 450,000 warrants to purchase Ordinary Shares were outstanding. The warrants are
exercisable at prices ranging from $12.92 to $20.79 with a weighted average exercise price of $19.29 and have
expiration dates ranging from April 1, 2008 to September 27, 2009.

Convertible Debt In connection with the Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes, the Company may be required to issue
up to 10,132,320 of its Ordinary Shares should the Note holders convert, per the terms of the notes, at a conversion
rate of 34.9406 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (equal to an initial conversion price of $28.62 per
Ordinary Share). The Notes are due in 2024.

During 2006 and 2005, the Company issued Ordinary Shares to repurchase a portion of its outstanding Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2024. (See Note 7 for details of the transaction).

Common Stock Issuances During 2006, the Company completed a public offering of 6,375,000 of its Ordinary Shares at
$24.45 per share ($23.70 per share, net of commissions) resulting in net proceeds of $151.1 million.

Per a loan agreement between the Company and SC TESA, the Company issued 369,033 and 1,134,799 of its Ordinary Shares, valued at $5.7
million and $16.6 million during 2006 and 2005 respectively, to SC TESA for the construction of the power line to the San Cristobal project.

The $22.3 million advanced to SC TESA will be repaid to the Company with interest through credits against electric transmission operating

costs. The Company has determined that SC TESA is a variable interest entity of which the Company is the primary beneficiary and
consequently, the financial statements of SC TESA are fully consolidated with the Company s financial statements for the 2006 and 2005 periods
presented (see Note 20).
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During 2005 the Company invested in Mariana Resources Limited, an Australian based exploration company with properties in South America,
exchanging 16,000 of the Company s Ordinary Shares valued at $249,000 for 1,689,000 common shares of Mariana also valued at $249,000. The
Company acquired approximately 9% of the outstanding shares of Mariana.

In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company granted 1,699, 10,647, and 23,681 Ordinary Shares to consultants for services rendered and recorded
costs of $nil, $0.2 million and $0.5 million respectively.

12. Minority Interests

On September 25, 2006, pursuant to a purchase and sale agreement among the Company, certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries and Sumitomo
Corporation ( Sumitomo ), the Company sold to Sumitomo 35% interests in three subsidiaries that own the San Cristobal project, market San
Cristobal project concentrates and hold the metals derivative positions required by the San Cristobal project lenders, in exchange for $224
million in cash and certain deferred payments based on silver and zinc production from the Project. The Company continues to own the
remaining 65% of these three subsidiaries ( majority interest ) and continues to fully consolidate their financial statements and recognizes a
minority interest for Sumitomo s 35% interest ( minority interest ). The Company also agreed to assign Sumitomo a 35% interest in the $22.3
million note receivable ($7.8 million; see Note 7) the Company holds from the San Cristobal project power line construction and transmission
contractor.

Pursuant to the purchase and sale agreement, the Company agreed to indemnify Sumitomo generally for breaches of representations and
warranties discovered within one year of closing resulting in damages to Sumitomo exceeding $3 million, up to a cap of $40 million, provided
that for breaches related to title to shares of the acquired companies, subordinated debt, certain transferred agreements and real and personal
property required for the San Cristobal project discovered within six years of closing, the cap is $224 million. Sumitomo agreed to indemnify the
Company generally for breaches of representations and warranties that are discovered within one year of closing, resulting in damages to the
Company exceeding $3 million, up to a cap of $40 million.

Pursuant to a deferred payments agreement dated September 25, 2006 Sumitomo will make the following deferred payments to the Company in
respect of production from the San Cristobal project and future expansions: (i) quarterly payments equal to 22.86% of Sumitomo s share of
payable silver production from the San Cristobal project, or approximately 8% of total payable silver production, payable in cash or silver at
Sumitomo s option, and (ii) quarterly cash payments equal to 20% of Sumitomo s share of payable zinc production from the San Cristobal project,
or approximately 7% of total payable zinc production, multiplied by the zinc price in excess of $1,800 per tonne.

The Minera San Cristobal ( MSC ) Shareholders Agreement dated September 25, 2006 provides that the majority shareholder will control the
MSC board and appoint the board chairman. MSC is the subsidiary that owns and operates the San Cristobal project. As long as the minority
shareholder holds more than 25% of MSC, certain significant matters require the approval of the minority shareholder director including
approval of annual programs and budgets, increases of 15% or more over budgeted capital expenditures or operating expenses (with customary
exceptions for emergencies and compliance), merger or liquidation, permanent cessation or suspension for more than 180 days of mining at or
abandonment of the San Cristobal project. If a deadlock with respect to adoption or amendment in excess
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of 15% of a program and budget continues for 180 days, the majority shareholder s directors are then entitled to approve the program and budget.

Under the MSC shareholder agreement, the Company and Sumitomo are required to provide their respective proportionate shares of shareholder
debt or equity funding required for MSC to achieve commercial operations, or be diluted on a two for one basis. Following commercial
operations, the Company and Sumitomo may choose to provide their proportionate share of required external funding or dilute on a one for one
basis. Dilution by the Company or Sumitomo of its ownership interest in MSC will result in transfers of shares in the other two subsidiaries, so
that the parties ownership interests in the three companies remain identical. If Sumitomo were to dilute below 25% solely as a result of its failure
to provide future funding, and were to refuse to approve a program and budget proposed by the Company for more than 180 days, Sumitomo
would have the right to sell to the Company all (but not less than all) of its remaining interest in MSC for $224 million, reduced pro rata by the
percentage of year-end 2005 reserves produced from the San Cristobal project (the Put Right ). Management has determined that the probability
of Sumitomo exercising the Put Right is remote and accordingly has not assigned a value to the Put Right at December 31, 2006.

Each of the Company and Sumitomo has a right of first refusal to acquire any interests in MSC that the other wishes to sell or, if the party
wishing to sell has less than a 25% interest in MSC, a right of first offer. In the event of a change of control of the Company, Sumitomo would
be relieved of its right of first refusal and first offer obligations for two years. Any party that acquires an interest in MSC must acquire a pro rata
interest in the other two subsidiaries.

The MSC Shareholders Agreement provides that available cash will be distributed quarterly, first to pay the $5.4 million annual management fee
due from MSC to the Company, then to shareholders that have advanced loans on behalf of a non-funding shareholder, then to shareholders who
have advanced shareholder loans pro rata to their ownership interests, and then as cash dividends. An additional aggregate $0.3 million annual
management fee is jointly payable to the Company by the other two jointly owned subsidiaries.

The Company and Sumitomo have also entered into a two year Option Agreement dated September 25, 2006, pursuant to which Sumitomo may
acquire a 20 percent to 35 percent interest in each of certain active exploration properties at historical cost, and in each of certain of the
Company s inactive exploration properties at historical cost once the Company has spent $200,000 in exploration costs on the property.
Sumitomo must exercise its option on each active property within 60 days of receiving complete information regarding the property and on each
inactive property within 60 days of the Company spending $200,000 on the property. At December 31, 2006 Sumitomo had not exercised its
options to acquire any exploration properties.
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The Company also amended the San Cristobal project finance facility in connection with the sale to Sumitomo, as follows: (i) the Company and
Sumitomo provide severally pro rata to their respective 65% and 35% ownership interests in MSC, and not jointly, San Cristobal project
completion and cost overrun support; (ii) the Company and Sumitomo guarantee severally pro rata to their MSC ownership interests, and not
jointly, the performance of the metals derivative positions; (iii) the Company was permitted to withdraw from accounts controlled by the lenders
$70 million of contingent overrun financing previously required by the project lenders; (iv) Sumitomo guarantees up to $45.5 million of overrun
funding by the Company; (v) the Company was permitted to remove from escrow approximately $5.7 million previously deposited to meet
interest payments on its subordinated notes, and was no longer required to escrow an additional $10.4 million; and (vi) additional cure periods
for certain representation and covenant defaults and certain defaults related to completion of the project are permitted, as is the substitution of a
replacement sponsor in the event of certain defaults, bankruptcy or expropriation events.

The Company recorded a minority interest in the assets and liabilities sold of $8.8 million and recognized a gain of $199.6 million related to the
transaction. The gain is net of approximately $6.4 million of selling costs incurred by the Company related to the transaction. (See Note 2s above
for a discussion of the revised valuations of our open derivative positions which impacted the gain and minority interest the Company
recognized on the sale to Sumitomo.) The revised valuation of the derivative positions resulted in the gain on the sale being increased from
$119.8 million to $199.6 million. The $199.6 million gain is calculated as the difference between the cash proceeds (net of selling costs) and the
book value of the interests sold. The book value includes the mark-to-market liability on the open metals derivative positions required by the
project finance facility, excludes pre-feasibility exploration and other costs previously expensed, and was reduced by the book value allocated to
the retained interests in future silver and zinc production. The payments related to the retained interests in future production will be recorded as a
reduction of minority interest as they become receivable by the Company.

The Company may be required to pay up to an estimated $4.0 million bonus to the project construction management contractor contingent upon
certain project completion parameters. Sumitomo is deemed to have already paid its 35% share of the bonus as part of the initial cash payment.
Therefore, Apex Silver has agreed to reimburse Sumitomo its $1.4 million share of the bonus if it is paid. Apex Silver will defer $1.4 million of
the gain until such time as the payment is made or determined not to be payable and has recorded the amount to the current portion of long term
debt at December 31, 2006.

Subsequent to the close of the transaction with Sumitomo, the Company incurred certain losses primarily related to marking to market its open
derivative positions entered into in connection with the project finance facility. Such losses would normally be shared by Sumitomo in
proportion to its 35% interest in the subsidiary recording the losses. However, generally accepted accounting principles do not permit the
allocation of losses to the minority interest in excess of the minority owner s interest in the subsidiary, unless the minority interest has a primary
obligation to fund such losses. The Company and Sumitomo have each guaranteed their respective share of the project finance obligations and
the related metals derivative positions through the completion of the San Cristobal project at which time the guarantees will terminate and the
lenders recourse will be solely to the project. Since the derivative positions are expected to be funded through future earnings from the San
Cristobal project, the Company does not anticipate that Sumitomo will be required to fund their proportionate interest in the mark-to-
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market losses prior to the completion of the San Cristobal project. Although Sumitomo s share of the subsidiary s losses for the year ended
December 31, 2006, was $107.7, the Company only recognized an $8.8 million minority interest benefit and absorbed the remaining $98.8
million loss. The $8.8 million minority interest benefit reduced the minority interest balance on the Company s consolidated balance sheets to $0
at December 31, 2006. The Company anticipates recovering the $98.8 million it absorbed, and any additional minority interest losses it may
absorb, from future earnings prior to distribution to the minority interest.
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13. Cash Flow Information

The following table reconciles net loss for the period to cash from operations:

For the years ended December 31,

2005

2006 Restated 2004

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (513545 ) $ (162,136 ) $ (18,845 )
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Amortization and depreciation 403 210 55
Amortization of deferred financing costs 552 1,944 638
Accretion of asset retirement obligation 391 15
Amortization of premiums and discounts (2,122 ) 69
Mark-to-market loss on derivative positions 715,120 151,515 491
Loss (gain) on Euro hedge 872 (1,406 )
Gain on extingushment of debt 2,875 ) (6,765 )
Gross gain on sale of interest in subsidiary (199,600 )
Minority interest in loss of consolidated subsidiary (8,813 ) 34
Stock compensation 4,508 2,281 8,651
Shares issued in consideration for services 60
Shares issued to purchase mineral rights
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable (650 ) 344 (1,074 )
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets
net of amounts capitalized (3,142 ) 1,592 961 )
(Increase) in inventories (27,672 )
Increase in value added tax recoverable (net) (34,106 ) (13,656 ) (1,157 )
Increase in accrued interest payable net of amounts
capitalized 55 21 1,604
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities net of amounts capitalized 1,068 (657 ) 2,735
Other increase (decrease) 299 ) (21 ) O )
Net cash used in operating activities $ (70,727 ) $ (24338 ) $ (9,218 )
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The following table details supplemental non-cash transactions:

For the years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

(in thousand except per share)
Capitalized stock based compensation costs $ 943 $ 693 $ 1,417
Payment of debt with Ordinary Shares at an average of $15.77 in 2006 and $15.59 in
2005 per share respectively $ 17,125 $ 23235 $
Capitalized consulting services paid with Ordinary Shares at an average value of $15.90,
$16.06 and $19.64 per share respectively $ 27 $ 171 $ 465
Purchase of common stock of unrelated entity with Ordinary Shares at an average value
per share of $15.58 in 2005 $ $ 249 $
Depreciation expense capitalized $ 5,168 $ 2733 $ 412
Debt and equity offering costs incurred $ 4,781 $ $ 21,703
Initial measurement of asset retirement obligation $ 3,367 $ 1,988 $
Equipment acquired through capital lease $ 7,255 $ 13,539 $

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases The Company has non-cancelable operating lease commitments as follows:

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
San Cristobal mining lease payments $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000
Corporate headquarters office lease $ 375000 $ 378,000 $ 126,000 $ $

The Company is required to make mining patent lease payments to the Bolivian government to maintain its rights to the San Cristobal mining
concessions. The Company has made such payments totaling approximately $400,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $360,000 per
year for the years ending December 31, 2005 and 2004.

The lease for the corporate headquarters office space expires in 2009. Payments associated with this lease were recorded to rent expense by the
Company in the amounts of $380,000, $338,000 and $271,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.

Letters of Credit At December 31, 2006, the Company had outstanding irrevocable standby letters of credit related to the
San Cristobal project in the aggregate amount of $6.5 million. The letters of credit include $4.5 million associated
with the rail contract to transport metal concentrates to the port facilities and $2.0 million associated with the
construction management contract. At December 31, 2006 the Company deposited $8.0 million to collateralize the
letters of credit and has recorded that amount to restricted investments.

Escrow Amounts At December 31, 2006 the Company placed $4.0 million in an escrow account to provide for certain
requirements related to the development of the port facility for the San Cristobal project and recorded the amount as
restricted cash.
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Project Financing Per the terms and conditions of the San Cristobal project finance facility the Company was required to
deposit cash and investments in an account the use of which is restricted to the development of the San Cristobal
project. At December 31, 2006 the remaining balance in the account was $79.7 million of which $27.9 million was
recorded to restricted cash and $51.8 million recorded to restricted investments.

Capital Commitments The Company entered into agreements with certain service providers and placed orders for certain
long-lead equipment and construction materials for its San Cristobal project resulting in open commitments totaling
approximately $49.7 million at December 31, 2006. If the Company cancelled all of these agreements or orders at
December 31, 2006, it would incur cancellation fees totaling approximately $32.2 million. In addition the Company
would be required to pay the rail contractor at the San Cristobal project a diminishing termination fee during the life
of the contract. The rail termination fee begins at $35.6 million during the first full year of operations and diminishes
to $nil at the end of the contract. In addition to the $49.7 million of open commitments at December 31, 2006, the
Company intends to commit to an approximately additional $60 million of purchase obligations in the future to
complete the San Cristobal Project.

Taxes The Company is receiving certain tax and duty benefits on a portion of the equipment it is importing for its San
Cristobal project. The benefits are contingent upon fulfilling certain expenditure commitments within a specified
period of time and returning certain equipment off shore within a specified period of time. Failing to comply with
these commitments would obligate the Company to refund the benefits received.

Performance Bonus The Company may be required to pay up to an estimated $4.0 million bonus to the San Cristobal
Project construction management contractor contingent upon certain project completion parameters and a $2.3 million
bonus to the company constructing the port facilities for early completion of the facilities. Based on the current project
status the company does not consider either payment probable and at December 31, 2006 no amounts have been
accrued.

Political Contingencies The Company continues to monitor the political uncertainties in Bolivia resulting from the
Bolivian government s renegotiation of agreements with oil and gas producers and statements regarding possible
changes in current policies affecting the mining industry (see Item 1A, Risk Factors). If the San Cristobal project were
nationalized, or if taxes were substantially increased or significant royalty payments imposed, the Company might be
unable to recover its investment in the project and could have substantial liabilities including liabilities to the lenders
under the project finance facility and liabilities to counterparties holding the derivative positions required by the
project lenders. In addition, changes in Bolivian law may have an adverse effect on the Company s ability to recover
VAT receivable (see Note 5).

In May 2006, the Constitutional Court of Bolivia issued a ruling declaring certain articles of the 1997 Mining Code unconstitutional. The Court s
ruling is not effective until May 2008 and the Court urged the Bolivian Congress to enact legislation during that time which may supersede the
ruling. Although the Court s ruling is not expected to impact our ability to operate the San Cristobal project, the ruling may limit the
transferability of our mining concessions and restrict our ability to mortgage our San Cristobal mining concessions as collateral to the lenders
providing financing for the project.
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Other Contingencies As previously disclosed, the company has concluded, based on the results of an internal investigation
conducted under the direction of our Audit Committee, that certain senior employees of one of our South American
subsidiaries were involved in making impermissible payments of approximately $125,000 to government officials in
2003 and 2004 in connection with an inactive, early stage exploration property that is not related to any of our active
exploration or development properties. Based on findings to date, no changes to our previously filed financial
statements are warranted as a result of these matters. We have contacted the Department of Justice ( DOJ ) and SEC
and reported the results of our internal investigation. We have been informed that the SEC and DOJ have commenced
an investigation with respect to these matters, including possible violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. We
are cooperating fully with the SEC and DOJ investigations. We cannot predict with any certainty the final outcome of
the investigations, including any fines or penalties that may be imposed.

15. Royalty Income

During 2004 the Company sold to Excellon Resources Inc. ( Excellon ) the mineral rights on a section of the Company s Platosa property in
Mexico and retained a 5% net smelter return ( NSR ) royalty interest that decreases to a 2% NSR after the Company has received $4.0 million of
royalty payments. The Company separately entered into a joint venture agreement for the future development of the remaining property at

Platosa whereby it retained a 49% interest to Excellon s 51% interest. The Company can buy back a controlling interest in the development
property of up to 51%, with a payment to Excellon of $1.0 million. During 2006 Excellon began test mining on the royalty section of the

property and produced silver, zinc and lead with a net smelter value of approximately $32.4 million on which the Company recorded royalty
income of $1.6 million.

16. Foreign Currency

Gains and losses on foreign currency derivatives and translation consist of the following:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Gain (loss) on Euro derivatives $ $ 872) $ 1,406
Gain (loss) on re-measurement of monetary assets denominated in other
than US dollars 885 194
Total $ 885 $ (678 ) $ 1,406

The re-measurement of monetary assets is related to certain taxes receivable and other accounts denominated in Bolivia s local currency.

The Euro derivatives loss during 2005 and gain during 2004 is related to the marking to market of open Euro derivative positions held by the
Company related to certain capital equipment purchased for San Cristobal for which the price was denominated in Euros. The Company held no
such derivative positions during 2006.
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17. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables, VAT recoverable, accounts payable, other
current liabilities, derivative positions and long-term debt. Except for the VAT and long-term debt, the carrying amounts of these financial
instruments approximate fair value due to their short maturities.

The estimated fair values of the Company s long-term financial instruments as measured on December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(in thousands)
Value added tax recoverable $ 54,158 $ 51,492 $ 20,052 $ 17,000
2.875% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2024 180,000 145,800 180,000 135,000
4.00% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2024 109,987 97,000 129,987 107,000
Project finance facility 180,000 180,000
Capital lease obligations 17,348 17,348 12,304 12,304
Derivative positions (2005 Restated) 818,198 818,198 151,369 151,369

The fair value of the VAT recoverable is estimated based on the expected timing of future cash flows and the Company s incremental borrowing
rate of 4.67%. The fair value of the Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes is based on quoted market values. The fair value of the project
finance facility and capital lease obligations have market rates of interest and the fair value is equal to the carrying value.

18. Segment Information

The Company s sole activity is exploration for and development of mineral properties containing silver and substantially all of the Company s
long-lived assets are related to the Company s San Cristobal project in Bolivia. The Company s other principal assets consist primarily of cash
and short-term, long-term and restricted investments held in US government and US corporate securities. As such, the Company s chief operating
decision maker views the Company s consolidated financial information as one segment.
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19. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the Company s restated quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

First Second
Quarter Quarter
(in thousands except per share)
2006 Restated Restated
Net income (loss) for the period $ (174,412 ) $ (80,502 )
Net income (loss) per Ordinary Share
basic $ (3.39 ) $ (140 )
diluted $ (3.39 ) $ (140 )
2005
Net loss for the period . $ 483 ) $ (2,823 )
Net loss per Ordinary Share
basic and diluted $ (0.10 ) $ (006 )
2004
Net loss for the period $ 4661 ) $ (3,166 )
Net loss per Ordinary Share
basic and diluted $ (0.11 ) $ (007 )

Third

Quarter

Restated

$ 67,756

$ 1.16

$ 1.15
Restated

$ (82,145

$ (1.68

$ (6,612

$ 0.14

)
)

)

Fourth

Quarter

$ (326,387 )
$ (5.58 )
$ (5.58 )

Restated

$ (72,315 )
$ (1.44 )
$ (4,406 )
$ (0.09 )

As discussed in Note 2s, the Company restated the fair market value of its open derivative positions which in turn affected the gain and minority
interest recognized on the indirect sale of a 35% interest in the Company s San Cristobal project during September 2006. The restatements

affected the quarterly periods ended September 30, 2005 through September 30, 2006.

The first and second quarters of 2006 include restated derivative position losses of $172.8 million and $78.1 million respectively. The third
quarter 2006 includes a restated derivative position loss of $119.9 million and a restated gain of $199.6 million related to the sale of a 35%
interest in our San Cristobal project. The fourth quarter 2006 loss includes a $344.2 million derivative loss. (See Note 9 for a discussion of the

metals derivative positions)

The third and fourth quarters of 2005 include restated derivative position losses of $79.7 million and $73.9 million respectively.
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The following table summarizes the impact of the restatement on the historical balances reported on the Company s consolidated balance sheets

for the quarters ended:

Derivatives

As previously reported
Adjustment

As restated

Total liabilities

As previously reported
Adjustment

As restated

Minority interest in subsidiaries
As previously reported
Adjustment

As restated

Accumulated deficit

As previously reported
Adjustment

As restated

Total shareholders equity
As previously reported
Adjustment

As restated
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September 30,
2005

$ 7,179
70,049
77,228

$ 415701
70,049
485,750

$ 38

38

$ (117,430 )
(70,049 )
(187,479 )
$ 351,204

(70,049 )
281,155

March 31,
2006

$ 91476
208,937
300,413

$ 524,364
208,937
733,301

$ 41

41

$ (225269 )
(208,937 )
(434,206 )
$ 288,003

(208,937 )
79,066

June 30,
2006

$ 130,265
226,004
356,269

$ 593,356
226,004
819,360

$ 41

41

$ (288,704 )
(226,004 )
(514,708 )
$ 377,278

(226,004 )
151,274

September 30,
2006

$ 177,224
300,506
477,730

$ 692,992
300,506
993,498

$ 88,403
(69,527 )
18,876

$ (215973 )
(230,979 )
(446,952 )

$ 451,062
(230,979 )
220,083
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(Expressed in United States dollars)

The following table summarizes the impact of the restatement on the historical amounts reported on the Company s consolidated statement of

operations:

Gain (loss) commodity derivatives
As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Total operating expenses

As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Gain on sale of interest in subsidiary
As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Total other income and expense

As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Gain (loss) before minority interest and
income taxes

As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Minority interest in loss of consolidated
subsidiaries

As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Net income (loss)

As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Comprehensive income (loss)

As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated
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For the Quarter
Ended Sept. 30,
2005

$ (9,640
(70,049
(79,689

$ (15,158
(70,049
(85,207

$

$ 3,061
3,061

$ (12,097
(70,049
(82,146
$ 1

1

$ (12,096
(70,049
(82,145

$ (12,066

(70,049
(82,115

)
)
)

)

)

For the Quarter
Ended March 31,
2006

(amounts in thousands except per share data)

$ (58,979
(113,839
(172,818

$ (65772
(113,839
(179,611

$

$ 5260
5,260

$ (60,512
(113,839
(174,351
$ (7
(7

$ (60,573
(113,839
(174,412
$ (59,688

(113,839
(173,527

)
)
)

)

)
)

)

For the Quarter
Ended June 30,
2006

$ (61,076
(17,067
(78,143

$ (68,391
(17,067
(85,458

$

$ 5,009

5,009

$ (63,382
(17,067
(80,449

$ (63,435
(17,067
(80,502

$ (63,358
(17,067
(80,425

)
)
)

)

)
)

)

For the Quarter
Ended Sept. 30,
2006

$ (45432
(74,502
(119,934

$ (51,741
(74,502
(126,243

$ 119,800
79,800
199,600

$ 124269
79,800
204,069

$ 72,528
5,298
77,826

$ 257
(10,273
(10,016

$ 72,731
(4,975
67,756

$ 72,171
(4,975
67,196

)
)

)

)
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(Expressed in United States dollars)

Net income (loss) per Ordinary Share basic
As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

Net income (loss) per Ordinary Share diluted
As previously reported

Adjustment

As restated

20. Subsequent Events

$
(1.43
(1.68

$
(1.43
(1.68

(0.25

(0.25

)

$
.21
(339

$
221
(339

(1.18

(1.18

$ (110
(0.30
(1.40

$ (110
(0.30
(1.40

)

$ 1.25

(0.09 )
1.16

$ 1.23

(0.08 )

1.15

During February 2007 the Company borrowed an additional $20 million against the $225 million San Cristobal project finance facility, bringing
to $200 million the total borrowings against the facility. The funds are restricted to the development of the San Cristobal Project.

As a result of the restatement referred to in Note 2, the Company has breached certain representations and covenants regarding the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP as well as certain minor technical covenants. In March 2007 the Company received waivers
and confirmations from its lenders for these potential covenant violations and any related events of default.

During March 2007 the Company received a notice of default by holders of at least 25% of the aggregate principal amount of each of the
2.875% and 4.0% Convertible Notes Due 2024 because the Company did not file its Form 10-K for the year ended 2006 on a timely basis. The
Company does not believe that its failure to file its Form 10-K timely was in breach of a covenant. The Company filed the Form 10-K within the
60 day cure period applicable to breaches of this covenant. Accordingly, without respect to whether there was a violation of covenant, no event

of default occurred.
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